NCR REKEHIEERERERR AT

SHUIFA China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

Stock Code BT : 750

Annual Report

2019




CONTENTS
B &

CORPORATE INFORMATION
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Consolidated:
Statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in equity
Statement of cash flows
Notes to financial statements

CE-NAEFEFERE PEAKEEEXEREEBRAA

NCIE-S
hEMBRE
TRERE
EEERAMS
EIEENmEDN
EELSREEE
ExeneE

Y8 3 % BLAD HR =
REZM B ®RE

o AL .
e

BEakHEME2ERER

BB R
HEEHR
RenER
1 75 SRR MY A

Page & 15

~N oA

24
40
50
75

83
85
87
89
93



China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFUBRE

(For the year ended 31 December) (BiZ+=-A=+—HILLFE)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY TEMBRE
RMB’000 AREBFT
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RF ZT-R"HF ZT—tF ZT-N\F ZT-ILF
Revenue ' @N 4,182,049 5,239,564 5,675,386 4,416,563 3,306,519
Gross profit EF 884,383 1,134,710 1,138,857 620,901 28,270
Profit (loss) before tax R AT A (B 18) 447,370 626,922 270,378 (562,959) (976,452)
Profit attributable to owners KAREB AL T

of the Company 355,986 501,961 143,797 (678,801) (995,228)
Basic earnings (loss) per share BREAREF (EE)

(RMB)* (ARE) 0.509 0.661 0.172 (0.814) (1.004)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share &R #EER T (EE)

(RMB)* (ANRET)* 0.374 0.659 0.172 (0.814) (1.004)
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,045,360 4788195 4,699,411 4825233 4,682,596
Current assets MEEE 5,606,612 6,206,336 7675517 6,571,894 7,274,664
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 3,610,834 3,064,308 3,448,327 245,129 4,602,960
Current liabilities mEaR 2,540,015 3,725,973 4,436,268 7,460,266 3,317,564
Net assets BEFE 3,501,123 4,204,250 4,490,333 3,691,732 4,036,736

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic * TE-RFEREAREERFOL AR

MEFHEEEARRRBRIAEG EK2.608
TZERREFELRBRAERD &R
—ERERENZEERBRMETHER
& -

and diluted earnings per share for the years 2015 has been adjusted and
restated for the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every five
existing shares held by shareholders of the Company at the price of HK$2.60
per share.

IT&EXENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY
FATHE A BT

RMB’'000

RMB’'000

ARETF T AREETFT
6,000,000 5,675,386 600,000 501,961
5,239,564 J00000| 355,986
5,000,000
4,182,049 it lendles 200,000 143,797
4,000,000
; h |
3,306,519
3,000,000 200,000
400,000
2,000,000
600,000
1,000,000 -678,801
-800,000
0 -1,000,000 = -995,228
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

On behalf of the Board of directors, | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue, including tariff adjustment,
was RMB3,486,376,000. During the year, with debt default, the Group
actively took various measures to ensure the continuous development of
its business. Despite a decline in its overall performance, its corporate
operation remained stable and orderly. During the period, the Group
became a state-owned listed company after the completion of merger,
acquisition and reorganization. Shuifa Energy Group Limited (ZKZ£gEJR&E
E AR A7]), which is a subsidiary of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd. (/K% & B
APBRAF]), a state-owned enterprise in Shandong province, subscribed
for 66.92% of shares in the Group, at a cash consideration of HK$1,550
million, thus becoming a controlling shareholder of the Group. Foreign
defaulted bonds were replaced with US$414 million three-year new bonds.

SOLAR BUSINESS

During the year, the total revenue from the sales of Solar EPC, renewable
energy goods and electricity (including electricity charges subsidy) was
RMB1,939 million, including the electricity sales of RMB313 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.2%.

In terms of photovoltaic EPC, the Group carried out strategic cooperation
with many central enterprises to achieve high-quality growth in EPC
projects, through mutual complementation. As at the end of 2019, the
Group’s 200MW photovoltaic EPC orders in hand cover Guangdong,
Shaanxi, Guizhou and other regions and amounted to a contract amount
of approximately RMB800 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 541.5MW photovoltaic power
station projects. Sales agreements have been signed for 100MW
photovoltaic power stations in Gansu and Xinjiang, and the transactions
are scheduled to be completed in 2020.

CONVENTIONAL CURTAIN WALLS AND GREEN
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION BUSINESSES

The revenue from conventional curtain walls and green building
construction businesses for the year was RMB1,399 million, including the
conventional material revenue of RMB239 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 9.9%.

AANERREFE MAREZAKEEHEE
“E-NAFTA=TBULEFEZEF

BE-Z-—NF+=ZA=1+—H0 X£5£H
W A (B2 4% (B 4 Bh) A R #3,486,376,000
T AFEEBEHRENMET  AEETHE
BEDRSBEBHEREGBERE  #A
BEEEFLRETE BOEBELKATE
BF MR AEBIEF TKHFHEEME
RABREZER FTRAR - ILEAEEMK
BHEEERAR TEMNBRARIKERERSE
EAR AT AILSEBTRERBALE
E66.92% 8% AREBEZRARRE - 3%
NENEHFEBRBIVUEE T =FCHHE
3‘5’; °

ABGRERH

RFE - APGEELEPC - I BARERERMBE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

During the year, the Group undertook major projects including the new
LEEREPL)

and the Traditional Chinese Medicine Science and Technology Industrial

airport in Beijing, Shanghai International Exhibition Centre (

Park of Co-operation between Guangdong and Macao (E8& {F & %
B EEE).

construction, the Group completed the 13th five-year national research

In terms of research and development of green building

and development plan and participated in the global typical BIPV case
study of the International Energy Agency.

NEW MATERIAL BUSINESS

The revenue from the New Material business for the year was RMB148

million, representing a year-on-year increase of 17.5%. In terms of
construction and vehicle-used light-adjusting film, the Company actively
cooperated with Fortune 500 companies. A total government subsidy of
RMB12 million was obtained for the smart color-switching glass, which
was recognized as an entrepreneurship and innovation project for 2018

in Zhuhai.

FUTURE PLAN

The Group will define its development plan, fully rely on the advantages as
a state-owned enterprise, and give full play to the unique comprehensive
competitiveness of “state-owned enterprise + listed company”.

In the clean energy sector, based on the established solar energy, wind
energy and stored energy businesses, the Group will gradually develop gas,
heating, hydrogen energy and other businesses, so as to finally form a
clean energy industry cluster with multiple capacities and complementary
advantages. In the green building construction sector, the Group will
organically combine building technologies, energy-saving technologies and
new energy technologies, and gradually develop its businesses in the fields
of architectural design, general contracting of projects and subcontracting
of engineering specialties, and improve and extend the green building
industry chain. In the smart manufacturing sector (new materials), the
Group will enhance corporate core competitiveness through research and
development, and scientific and technological innovation, and externally
explore more cooperation methods, so as to expand the industrial scale.

REE REBEAZTIERIES - EFE
BHRL - BREEFBENEEXRSS
AER -AHECRENMBIE A£EE
RT=hBEREHAEE - 2EBE KR
JRE 2 BRE A BIPV I A 55 o

R E Y
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B WESBAMAE A AREL200
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERB®E

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective accountability. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors consider that,
for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in
the Code, except for the deviation from paragraph A.2.1 of the Code as
described below in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”
on page 13.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph C.3 of
the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the Listing
Rules. It has also established a nomination committee and a remuneration
committee with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures
are in place to protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company from the listing date up
to the date of this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BERAWE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all
major matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior
management who are delegated with the authority and responsibility for
day-to-day management and operation of the Company. The Directors have
the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises nine Directors, including four executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Zheng Qingtao, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. Liu Hongwei, who is also the Vice-chairman of the Company,
Mr. Wang Dongwei and Mr. Chen Fushan, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Zhang Jianyuan and three independent
non- executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. Wang
Ching, and Dr. Tan Hongwei.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over
half of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent
non- executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made
in the best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board
Committees”). Further details of these committees are set out below on
pages 15 to 17.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the business
operations and development of the Group. The Board is comprised of
members with extensive business, government, regulatory and policy
experience from a variety of backgrounds. There is diversity of nationality,
ethnicity, educational background, functional expertise and experience. A
Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in 2013.
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BERAWE

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-
hoc meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Notice of board meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior
to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notices will also be given to the
Directors for ad-hoc board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All
the Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors
were provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of
the Board meetings.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder of
the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical
Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by a written resolution.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be
present at meetings dealing with such conflict issues.

An updated list of the Directors identifying the independent non-executive
directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is maintained on
the website of the Company and the website of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERB®E

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 4 Board meetings. R EHHE EFTg_BTINESE S
The attendance of individual Directors at the board meetings and annual ZoRESLFESe R ARERAT

general meeting are set out below: ReEMBERIEINNT :
Board Meetings EFeEF
Attendance
HEER
Annual

Name of Directors General Meeting Board Meeting
BEEps RRBFAE Exgea
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zheng Qingtao (appointed on 28 November 2019) & ELE(R-_FE—N 4

FT—AZFtNEEZE) N/A 38 A 11
Mr. LIU Hongwei BT 1/1 4/4
Mr. Wang Dongwei (@ppointed on 28 November 2019) TRBHRE(R=-F—AF

T—AZTNHEZ L) N/A 138 A 1/1
Mr. Chen Fushan (appointed on 28 November 2019)  EiEILI%E4 (R-FE—NEF

FT—AZFNEEZE) N/A i@ A 171
Mr. XIE Wen (resigned on 28 November 2019) @ ONEERZFE-NEF

T—AZFNEEE) 0/1 3/3
Mr. Xiong Shi (resigned on 28 November 2019) BE OREER-ZE—NF

+—A=ZFNHEFF) 1/1 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Wang Suhui (appointed on 28 November 2019) TEBLET(R=_F-—NF

FT—AZFNEEZE) N/A T8 A 171
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan (appointed on 28 November 2019) FRER T E(R=ZF—1F

T—AZTNHEZ L) N/A 1 i A 1/1
Mr. Zhuo Jianming (resigned on 28 November 2019) BEBREER-_F—NF

+—A=ZFNHEFF) 0/1 3/3
Dr. Li Hong (resigned on 28 November 2019) EREBT(R-FE—SF

T—AZFNEEE) 0/1 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Dr. WANG Ching T RiEx 0/1 4/4
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SXKEBEE 0/1 4/4

Dr. Tan Hongwei ERHEL 0/1 4/4



CE-NAEFEFERE PEAKEEEXEREEBRAA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERB®E

SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE, EXPERIENCE AND
ATTRIBUTES OF DIRECTORS

All Directors of the Board had served in office during the period under
review. Every Director commits to give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their
understanding and commit to high standards of corporate governance. The
executive Director brings his perspectives to the Board through his deep
understanding of the Group’s business. The non-executive Directors and
the independent non- executive Directors contribute their own skills and
experience, understanding of local and global economies, and knowledge
of capital markets to the Group’s business. The Company is responsible
for arranging and funding suitable continuous professional development
programmes for all Directors to hone and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is required
to undertake an induction program to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of his duties and responsibilities. The induction program
includes an overview of the Group’s business operation and governance
policies, the Board meetings’ procedures, matters reserved to the Board,
an introduction of the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities
and duties, relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings with
senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, all Directors had
participated in appropriate continuous professional development activities
by ways of attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

EERE AR CRREMH

PEEFEXRENNOEMBERNER - &5
EEAGRARHBBMIBENERRAN
EBL EFEMTRARFERRALH
FRKFHEEER HTEFEBYEA
SEEBHRATHREEBRHESTAESZS -
FATESRBUFPTESINARES
B BE MRS - B R 2EREENRH
NREATSHAEEERENMBEMELE
Ble RRBBEELHREDMEESE
THENFEIEREERE UBERRE
RN BB RE o

B B2 35 3

BHERTHIFRITES A2 A BRE
NRERESBENEEALERE - LB
RERRAREXRBEEREETBRROM
NCEFEEEIRRF RETEFEARAK
MER BEXZEEWHN BEEFWEER
BE BEERANELR BE+_EAE
FELEFZRENERCHBHRAE
EeRBENBENEMER(WEE) -

REBETRGEXEACSF 2REZE2NA
SEEEE  ABRENEFRSEZANE
kgt W RBEEELEABEL2EE
ARYEMBENBERATHEESELEM -
FR G 2REFHAESECBELFEER
BREY BREOFEABUARREBHES
BEREENEI R XHEHEMER -
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The company secretary of the Company maintains records of training ARAlz REIMERFESHREFI 28
attended by the Directors. The training attended by each Director during B NFARN SESHRBIZBRET

the Year is tabulated as follows: N
Training Records 15 3 & £
Name Type of trainings  Training matters
i EER EHEE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BFED) (M #E2)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zheng Qingtao BEREER=_F-NEF
(appointed as Chairman on 28 November 2019) +—A-+NAEZEALE) a, b i, i, i, v
Mr. LIU Hongwei (Vice-chairman) Bk E(BFR) a, b i, i, i, v
Mr. Wang Dongwei (appointed on 28 November 2019) TREXE(R=ZF—NF
+—AZ+/\AEZ(F)
Mr. Chen Fushan (appointed on 28 November 2019) BREELEE(RZFE-—NEF
T—A=+/NAEZ)
Mr. XIE Wen (resigned on 28 November 2019) H O OXEER—ZFE-NEF
+—A=+/THEE) a, b i, i, i, v
Mr. Xiong Shi (resigned on 28 November 2019) R REERZ=ZF-NF
+—A=1F/HEE) a b i, i, iii, iv
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Wang Suhui (appointed on 28 November 2019) TEBLET(R-_F—NF
+—AZ1+/NHEZ(F)
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan (appointed on 28 November 2019) REREER=ZF-NF
+—AZ+/NA#EZ(F)
Dr. Li Hong (resigned on 28 November 2019) TREL(R-_F—NF
T—AZF/NHEF) a b i, i, il v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Dr. WANG Ching T mft a b i i, i, v
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon SKELE a, b i, i, il v
Dr. Tan Hongwei EREEEL a, b i, i, i, iv
Note 1: P 5EL -
a attending seminar or training session a HEMEREFIEeR
b self-development and updates relating to general economy, business b HEERBMBHBELEE EBKER -2
development, director’s duties and responsibilities, etc. ENBRENETS
Note 2: B 52 -
i corporate governance i TEER
ii regulatory compliance ii AR BT
iii finance iii B 15

iv management and operation iv EHEREE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group for the period from 1
January 2019 to 28 November 2019 during the year, is responsible
for the leadership and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all
material issues are decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu
Hongwei is also responsible for running the Group’s business and effective
implementation of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware
of the requirement under paragraph A.2.1 of the Code that the roles of
chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Following the appointment of Mr.
Zheng Qingtao as the Chairman of the Group on 28 November 2019, Mr.
Liu Hongwei has been re-designated as the Vice-chairman of the Group.
The Group is now fully comply with the relevant requirement under the
Code.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess a
wealth of professional and industry expertise and management experience
and have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have
played a significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent
judgment and their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision.
In particular, they bring an impartial view on issues of the Company’s
strategy, performance and control. The Board also considers that
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice on the
Company’s business strategy, results and management so that all interests
of Shareholders are taken into consideration, and the interests of the
Company and its shareholders are taken into account in all business
decisions. The Company has received the annual confirmation signed by
each independent non-executive Director to acknowledge their respective
independence. After prudent enquiry, the Board is of the view that each
of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Dr. WANG Ching, and Dr. Tan Hongwei
maintains the independence as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

EFRETHAR

BlaIht: MAFE-_ZT—hF—HA—H
EZT-AFT—AZ+H/\REMEEAE
BEIF AEREEFEENEZTENAN
B HRMBEXNSHAEEGUAE
RMUERTAELREK - BIALELEETAR
REBEBNEFEARTEBRBENE X
it ARBNEER - RBETRFA21EK
ZHRE IFERTREINACEDL
TREF-ALTEE RBBFHEER
E-NE+-AZ+HN\REZERTEEE
B BAKELEFIEAEEREIE - &
SERABETEMATHBETOHABRE -

BYFBTES

AARIFIABMIEMITEZHABEENE
REFAMBREEER EREFERH
BEXNER REZBRERMBLAOHE -
EEFETEEEENAE TEZEN
RREBREESE - KAl 2 EARE KA
EENEZEL WEHERHIALER -
EXETRA BUFATESERARA
MEBRE XEREERRHELER
At - BEROFAEN RO EZE - A EH
REPNMEERARRREBRRNME -
ARAERBEBIIFNTESHERRK
EEANBYUMMBEENFERSR - BF
EEREK EFERR HKEEEF
RELREAEE T ERF LT RRIE313
EFa:0F vl
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All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on
an annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities
referred to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new
business opportunity introduced to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify
its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
Throughout 2019, no claim had been made against the Directors and the
officers of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation and that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

All of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles. The term of appointment of each Independent Non-
Executive Director has been set out in the section headed “Directors’
Service Contracts” of this report. Each independent non-executive Director
is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any
change that may affect his independence and must provide an annual
confirmation of his independence to the Company.

ARBNFABBLIFRTESTHEFEN
hE (7] HE B8 T AN R B 0 ¥ RS M A L ROOR
EoRAHERM AEEHKEHFOD
1 o

EEREABEZEERRR
RE fH

ARFEREEFAREEH ZETY
AMEEERSEABEFEEZAEERRE
H-R_T-NF AEHARFEER
BARABEREERAR -

ZX EBRBRES

ARAAABRERBERRBFAE L
ER=Z O ZEFEABRFEER BERE
ERELBFHESTE—R-

MBFRTEERBYNATESTHES
EREEH  HERFARBEERAUNK
RBEFAgLtHmESRINERSEME B8
VRMTESFZEMERAREEFRG
BRI o MR EM AT BRI
HITESBEIMMED  IBUFRTE
EPARRAEDEATHNERITEALRR
A W ARARARIREEABEELIENF
EHERE -
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Code.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial
reporting process and internal control procedure of the Group, to review
the financial information of the Group and to consider issues relating to the
external auditor. The Audit Committee consists of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat,
Simon and Dr. Tan Hongwei, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2019
and for the year ended 31 December 2019, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the system of internal control.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

EEZEE
BREER

AREETETRRNE3 2123231 K& <A
FCIEMME REESER_ZFT/N\F+
“ATNEBBHABRRKIEREZES -
ERZEENIZREREEAEENY
BREBREMAMEZEREF FHAEE
AR A RE B AR INE & B
EH -ERLETH-LBURNTES
(AIEREL - HRBEREREAFE LA
B EREEENTIERDKELRLE - &

REEREEHNASEERE_Z-NFRA
=tRLEREARBE—T-NET_A=
T-RALFENGAEPBRER  AEEM

RmmestRARERRAEZE R -

BE_ZT-NEFT_A=t—HLHFE &

RZEERITMAGH -

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit TRHENEBEZZESEKELEEENER
Committee’s meetings:
No. of Audit Committee
meetings attended/held:
Directors: B/ BITEXRZESY
BH=E: BFINRE:
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) FXE(FE) 2/2
WANG Ching F X 2/2
Tan Hongwei B 2/2
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its ERZESERBEARZERBITHBE
duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee can be viewed EREEe s ETBEGETNARTH
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange. Ul N B R T AR U A o
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages
for all Directors. The Remuneration Committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive Directors and the Chairman
and Vice-chairman of the Board, namely, Dr. Tan Hongwei, Mr. Zheng
Qingtao (appointed on 28 November 2019), Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon,
Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Xiong Shi (resigned on 28
November 2019). The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Dr.
Tan Hongwei.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to assess individual performance of the Directors and
review the remuneration packages and overall benefit of the Directors.

The following table shows the attendance and members of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019:

FHWEES

ARBEFFREBLUGHMTE  REBEESF
RZEBEBNFT_ATNLBEBBHRER
RIFHNEES - FHEEENTIERE
ERARREENRGREE A BHH K
KU EZEFTHRELEERA
EFENFINSTERIEAREBAENIZ
FFrRAEESELHEBER - FMEZESH
FKE(BR=UBIIFATETUALE
EZRTRRBIE AKX BEREEL
BEEEEMNRE-NAF+—-AZTN\R
BZRE) Hk¥ELE - IRELT Ok
FERBREEMR-_ZE-AF+—HA=+
NBEEE)  FHEZEemBAFHLES
B

HEZZ-AEF+_A=+—HBILFE - %
MEZBEERIT-REF UFHESEZE
ARBRBHNEZSHFHNETBREREN -

TREJIBE-_FT-NAFT-_A=1+—HIE
FEVFMZEEKRELFEEZNBER:

No. of Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE/BOFHNEES
2= SBNRE:
TAN Hongwei (Chairman) S (EE) 171
ZHENG Qingtao BEBR-_F-NF

(appointed on 28 November 2019) +—AZ+NHEZ(F) 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon K3 1/1
WANG Ching T = 1/1
LIU Hongwei 24T 4 11
XIONG Shi R ORR-ZF—NF

(resigned on 28 November 2019) +—A=+/HEF) 0/1

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of
reference, details of which can be viewed on the website of the Company
and the website of the Stock Exchange.

FHEZEeRREHARERBEITERE
VP EZEecBABERAEEHBHNE
RFBREGEARN  ARAFBUIRARAEMHE
ub B X P A b R R e
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.5 of the Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board on a regular basis
and making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes. The Nomination Committee consists of five members, including
three independent non-executive Directors and two executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zheng Qingtao (appointed on 28 November 2019), Mr. Liu
Hongwei, Mr. Xie Wen (resigned on 28 November 2019), Dr. Wang
Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, and Dr. Tan Hongwei. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Zheng Qingtao.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement of
qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and approval
of such nomination by the Board. The Nomination Committee will evaluate
potential candidates by considering factors such as professional expertise,
relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting. The following table shows the attendance and members
of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2019:

REEESE

RAREFTAEASENEZHRREERD
ﬁm ﬁﬁié\_ggﬂi+*ﬂ+hﬁ
BBMAZRKRIIEREEE - IREZE8
EHXIEREOETHARIEETSHREE -
RE - AR Z T A RBLHE B E &
BHRNESSREEHX -REZEEHA
UK B (BE=Z B IERITERT KM
TER)HERK - BEERLERZE—NF
T—B-tNBEZRT) B4t Hx
FEMRZZ-NF+—AZF/\BEE)
R%i*%%%%i&@mmﬁi 12
FLEERUBERLERTER-

RERFEERREEZ B S H A MNERE
MALTHWER YthEFS RN LBBI

BRRE - RAEZBEERBEEMEERIM -
GELRES 1I/\L1%T7T/+&EW§.@I§¥#
EHERE NEITRIE -

BE_T-NEFT-_A=THLFE &
HEREERTINERE TRINBE-FT
“NF+-A=+-BLFEREZZEEN
BHFEGHNBR:

No. of Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held:

Directors: HE/BITREZEESE
HxE BBINRE:
ZHENG Qingtao BMEBR=_F—NF

(appointed as Chairman on +—AZF+NAEZFBEE)

28 November 2019) 1/1
LIU Hongwei 24T 4 1/1
XIE Wen #H OXR=ZF—NF

(resigned on 28 November 2019) +—AZ=+/VHEFF) 0/1
WANG Ching F = 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon 5 K B 1/1
TAN Hongwei s 1/1

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest terms of
reference, details of which can be viewed on the website of the Company

and the website of the Stock Exchange.

REZBEERHEARERETEREA
k%i,\AZHHIJH%Z,\&,\E#Fﬁ CH
RMBREERN BEREFBURARAHE
ub BB X P Ak R R e
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) is
responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each meeting of the Board
or the Board committees including any dissenting views expressed by
the Directors, which should be available to all Directors for inspection.
He is also responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply
with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board
on corporate governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
document are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the intended
dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board committees. It is
the responsibility of the Company Secretary to send the draft minutes of
the meetings of the Board or the Board committees to all Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the aforesaid meetings. Final
versions of minutes of meetings of the Board or the Board committees
are also required to be sent to all Directors for record. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are followed.

Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as well as internal
codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in
the annual and interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate
disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The audit committee of the Board is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the authorized external auditors and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The Company
engaged Ernst & Young as its external auditors, and also engaged Ernst
& Young in connection with the comfort letters and other assistance in
respect of the issue of senior notes. Details of the fees paid/payable to
Ernst & Young during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

B AT B =

EXgERZESRENTE BEELE
HE K T HMNED i BRAM - HE S AF A BUED 2 B
& R HE PRGN - DA B B O AR A% BURD B E K
REARNEMER MEESFELHER
BR - ARFEEBLRKGEIEBHARI
AEEE UYRHREBETEARENSR
R A1 B R Lok @R E TS o B
E-T-AFTA=+-HLEFEEN
N2 KEFMEBANERFBNOT:

Audit service
— Interim review and annual audit

ZH R

— Interim review and annual audit of
China Singyes New Materials Holdings

- PEE B M FEE A

RMB8,050,000
A . #8,050,0007T

~ o B R A R A A
(TREHHR])

RMB1,500,000

Limited (“Singyes New Materials”) FHIERMEE ST A R #1,500,0007T

Non-audit services FE 1% AR 7
- Tax service - BB RB HK$134,500
134,500/% 7T

Internal control and risk management

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Group’s system of internal control and risk management as well reviewing
its effectiveness an on-going basis, and, in particular, considering the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, training programmes
and budget. The Board will conduct periodic review, at least annually,
which cover all material aspects, including financial, operational, risk
management functions and is in compliance with all relevant regulations
and endeavor to enhance the internal control and risk management
measures of the Group. Such systems are designed to manage the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors consider that the internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit functions for the Group as the need
arises. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review the need for an
internal audit function annually.

MARES 12 & B be B 1R
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The Group appointed external independent professional advisors to review
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2019. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal

control and risk management system.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2019, which were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 75 to 82.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective and on-going
communications with Shareholders and continues to act in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps
Shareholders and investors informed of its business performance and
strategies by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure policy which
complies with the Listing Rules and provides all Shareholders equal access
to such information. The Company also publishes all documents on the
Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) also provides
a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the Shareholders
directly. The Directors and the committee members are available to
answer questions during the AGM. Notice of AGM, annual report, financial
statements and related papers were posted to Shareholders for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
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At each general meeting, the chairman of the meeting proposes individual
resolutions in respect of each substantially separate matter. All matters at
the Company’s general meetings are resolved by poll and the procedures
for conducting a poll will be explained at the meeting. Independent
scrutineer will be engaged to ensure all votes at general meeting are
properly counted. Poll vote results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and HKEX in a timely manner.

AGM proceedings and policies regarding Shareholders’” communication of
the Company are continually reviewed in the light of corporate governance
best practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirements under Paragraph O of the Code which is effective from
1 April 2012.

(a)  Convening of general meeting on requisition by shareholders

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Company’s registered
office in Bermuda at 4th Floor North Cedar House, 41 Cedar
Avenue, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong
Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within three (3) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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(b)

(c)

XERAWME

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any
number of the shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company,
or not less than one hundred of such shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled to
receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office in Bermuda at 4th Floor North
Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its
principal office in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31/F, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong for the attention of the Board on the secretary of the Company,
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in writing to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the enquiries.

(b)

(c)

RIREXE LIEERBFHNIEF

REBRE-NN-FRFE KR
RAETABRODEE NMERARR 268
BRBEREZ D Z—(5B%) * %K
ZEBRRTMER —BRALAERER

ﬁﬁ“_ VA B R MR T fE BR K
ERRRFELERNEZSH LA

%ikﬁ&ﬁ%hﬁmEﬂ&
M@i'&mh$tﬂ—¥%mﬁﬁ
KEgR FREARE PR EIEK
HES FRENEHHAE B4
E%Wm&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@imkﬁ
B - AME2FAREZES A
ETﬁFm%xIﬁ RBHzE
)R RITHINA S (MR E A At
EHASETH-—ABBEARAR
AEETMI =R G R4th Floor
North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda) & HZ&#
ERFRUREETHBEPRIRE
2005 5= RO B B A E31#3108
E)EREARAEETER, /KD A W
E - WA R PAE AN R AR B
XZHRHE - IRHERR 2HF%NE
gEE ARz X —BERKRRRESF
Reg AZE2BRAEEREFHNAN
B stk E SRR REZRE

= o

FEFEEEH

BERAIAEEFE R AR R EBHN T
ENERREIEHEENR ° HHARA]
RIETBRAMEBEI2RER - T
ERAFASTHAD -



SE-NFEFEEHRSE PEK

BE R REEERAA 23

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i3

BERAWE

INVESTOR RELATION

During the period under review, there had been no significant change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

The Company has been introducing, and continues to introduce, measures
to comply with the Corporate Governance Code. Enhancing corporate
governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Stock Exchange but about promoting
and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Board in respect
of corporate governance during the Year:

(@) review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b)  review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees
and the Directors; and

(e)  review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board considered the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2019 are effective and
adequate. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve
our current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes
and developments. Any views and suggestions from our shareholders to
promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy solution provider and building
contractor. Our main businesses are design, fabrication and installation
of curtain wall, green building and solar projects. Solar projects included
Building Integrated Photovoltaic System (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar
system and ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC");
we also engaged in the manufacturing and sale of renewable energy
goods. Our BIPV system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic
technology into the architectural design of buildings and structures and
(ii) conversion of solar energy into electricity for use. Our system allows
the electricity generated from solar panels to be connected to the power
grid of a building and the electricity generated from sun power will be
consumed simultaneously. No extra electricity storage cost is required.
In addition, we also engage in the production and sale of renewable
energy goods, including smart grid system and solar thermal system. In
2011, we also started a new business called Indium Tin Oxide (“ITO")
business or “New Material” business. Leveraging on our track record
and extensive experience in our curtain wall business, we will further
strengthen and develop our renewable energy business in respect of
BIPV systems and renewable energy goods. Apart from the above, we
also provide engineering design services and engage in the sale of
curtain wall materials. Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus on
solar business. In the long run, we will aspire and strive to grow into an
enterprise with a focus on renewable energy business.

CURTAIN WALL AND GREEN BUILDING BUSINESS

In 2019, our curtain wall and green building construction business
dropped by RMB352.1 million or 23.4% as compared to RMB1,502.3
million in 2018. The Group’s business both inside or outside Mainland
China had significantly been affected after the Company failed to
redeem its 2018 Senior Notes, details of which has been set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 October 2018 the “Default”.
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SOLAR EPC BUSINESS

Due to the tightening of the lending environment inside Mainland China,
and also because of the Default, the Group’s ability in getting new
financing had been impacted significantly. Since the initial working capital
requirement for Solar EPC is high, the progress of vast majority of the
Group’s Solar EPC projects were impacted. Therefore, our solar EPC
revenue dropped by RMB606.1 million or 28.8%.

DEVELOPMENT OF RENEWABLE ENERGY GOODS

Apart from Solar EPC, we also produce different kind of renewable energy
goods. Renewable energy goods include solar photovoltaic materials and
solar thermal products. Solar thermal products include air-source heat
pump, solar heat collectors and solar heating system.

SELF-DEVELOP SOLAR PROJECTS

At 31 December 2019, the Group had around 431.6 MW of grid
connected solar projects and 42.4 MW projects awaiting for grid
connection.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

EBERMEORE
A

TRINREADHE:

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—N\F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEER AREBEET
Curtain walls and green buildings BN EEE
- Public work - AHTE 148.5 384.9
— Commercial and industrial -Im 648.9 696.5
- High-end residential -EEEE 352.8 420.9
1,150.2 1,502.3
Solar EPC K F5BEEPC
— Public work - AHETRE 1,115.3 1,070.3
— Commercial and industrial -Imn 380.5 1,031.6
1,495.8 2,101.9
Total construction contracts BRESNBEE 2,646.0 3,604.2
Sale of goods EmiHE
- Conventional materials - FEHEmr 239.4 217.8
- Renewable energy goods - A BAERERE D 130.7 321.9
- New materials - FM R 148.0 126.0
Total sale of goods EmiHEEE 518.1 665.7
Sale of electricity, including tariff adjustment S Hi5E - BIEEEHEL 312.6 283.6
Rendering of design and other services IR AT R H A AR 7 9.6 14.0
Rendering of operation and maintenance REETREERS
service - 13.1
3,486.3 4,580.6
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Gross profit and gross profit margin EMREFE
2019 2018
—E-NF —EN\F
RMB million % RMB million %
ARBEETR AREBEER
Construction contracts BEED
— Curtain walls and green -BERGEERE
buildings 5.5 0.5 113.7 7.6
— Solar EPC - KF58EEPC (60.1) 4) 365.9 17.4
(54.6) (2.1) 479.6 13.3
Sale of goods EmiEE
- Conventional materials - EH A 36.0 15 37.8 17.3
— Renewable energy goods - A BERRE®M (3.4) (2.6) 27.2 8.4
- New materials - Fi R 57.6 38.9 55.9 44.4
90.2 17.4 120.9 18.2
Sale of electricity, including BNHE  BESE
tariff adjustment 17 B 167.1 53.5 166.3 58.7
Rendering of design and R R R H A AR
other services 5.4 55.8 11.2 80.4
Rendering of operation and RHETREERE
maintenance service - - 6.9 52.3
Total gross profit and gross BREF REFE
profit margin including tariff BIEEE AL
adjustment 208.1 6.0 784.9 17.1

27
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The Group’s revenue (including tariff adjustment) decreased by
RMB1,094.3 million or 23.9%, from RMB4,580.6 million in 2018 to
RMB3,486.3 million in 2019. Gross profit (including tariff adjustment)
decreased by RMB576.8 million or 73.5%, from RMB784.9 million in
2018 to RMB208.1 million in 2019.

1)

2)

Curtain wall and green building

Revenue from curtain wall and green building business in 2019
amounted to approximately RMBI1,150.2 million, representing a
decrease of RMB352.1 million or 23.4% compared with 2018. The
drop was mainly because of the decrease in onshore and offshore
curtain wall EPC businesses due to the lack of liquidity resources
after the Defaults. Meanwhile, a gross profit of RMB5.5 million was
recorded in 2019 (2018: gross profit of RMB113.7 million).

In 2019, because of the Defaults, the Group lack of liquid cash to
finance the material procurement costs as well as labour cost for its
curtain wall projects, as a results, the Group sometime failed to meet
the original scheduled construction deadline, in order to maintain
customer relationship, we had to accept unfavorable contract prices,
at the same time, extra costs were usually be incurred because of
the increase in project execution time.

Solar EPC

Revenue from solar EPC amounted to RMBI1,495.8 million,
representing a decrease of RMB606.1 million or 28.8% from
RMB2,101.9 million in 2018. Since second half of 2018, because of
the tightening in lending market in Mainland China and Hong Kong
and also because of the default of various senior notes, the liquidity
position of the Group had significantly be affected and hence the
Group’s ability to continue its existing projects in a normal way
and obtaining new projects also been deteriorated. Majority of the
Group’s solar EPC projects cannot be delivered in accordance with
the original schedule, the Group was not be able to get a favourable
contract price from customers, also because of the increase in cost,
gross margin in vast majority of the Group’s projects were therefore
negatively affected.
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3)

Sale of products

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of conventional materials accounted to RMB239.4
million, increased by RMB21.6 million or 9.9% compared
with 2018, it was mainly because of increase in material
sale in some oversea areas, gross profit margin went down
to 15%.

Sale of renewable energy goods recorded a decrease of
RMB191.2 million or 59.4%, gross loss margin of 2.6% was
recorded during the year.

New Material business represented sale of Indium Tin Oxide
(*ITO”) film and its products. ITO film can be processed
into touch-screen ITO film and switchable ITO film, while the
switchable ITO film can further be processed into smart light-
adjusting glass and smart light-adjusting projection system.
ITO film and smart light-adjusting products are relatively
new to the consumers in China and therefore, the market
penetration is currently quite low. Riding on the increasing
sales volume generated by our Group’s successful marketing
strategies, revenue in 2019 increased by RMB22 million or
17.5% while gross profit margin decreased to 38.9% (2018:
44.4%).

3)
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(iv)  The following table sets out the Group’s self-invested solar vy TREIINAEER-_Z-NF
power stations as at 31 December 2019. +ZA=+—HETKRENK
f5RE | b o
Pending grid
On-grid connection In-progress Total
Bt 48 #Orm ' @t
Location MW MW MW MW
ih 2 JKE JKE JKE JKE
Guangdong province BRE 178.6 139 67.5 260
Northwest China B 7 k& 113 285 - 141.5
Golden Sun/Distributed & A S,/ i =,
Power ES 138 - - 138
Overseas NEEIN 2 - - 2
431.6 424 67.5 541.5

The Group’s accumulated

on-grid capacity was 541.5

megawatts (“MW”) at 31 December 2019, which comprised

of 138 MW Golden Sun or

distributed power stations, and

401.5 MW ground-mounted solar farms inside Mainland China

and a 2 MW solar farm overseas. The sale of electricity,

including tariff adjustment, amounted to RMB312.6 million in
the year 2019 (2018: RMB283.6 million).

rEEBRZ-ZZ—NLF+ZRA=
TN RFAHNETE RS415
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Revenue and gross profit contribution from different business RETEZKBFHHWKRARER :
sectors:

Revenue split (including tariff adjustment) WA (BIEEERFE)
2019 2018
—E-AF —F-N\F

RMB million % RMB million %

ARBEER ARBEBEER
Conventional business! EEEL 1,399.2 40.2 1,734.1 379
Renewable energy business? Al B AR ¥ 752 1,939.1 55.6 2,720.5 59.4
New material business R EY 148 4.2 126.0 2.7
3,486.3 100.0 4,580.6 100.0

Gross profit split (including tariff adjustment) EMIFD(EIEEEFL)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB million % RMB million %

AREEER ARBBEER
Conventional business! R 46.9 22.5 162.7 20.7
Renewable energy business? Al {4 RE IR 152 103.6 49.8 566.3 72.2
New material business R ER 57.6 27.7 55.9 71
208.1 100.0 784.9 100.0

L Included curtain wall and green building construction contracts, sale of L PRERBLGCRELSYN HEERM
conventional materials and rendering of design and other services. BRI R AT R E AR -
2 Included solar EPC construction contracts, sale of renewable energy goods 2 BIEKRIGEEEPCIZEEAY - SHEFRERE

and sale of electricity and tariff adjustment. mMEEEENREE[E -
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains mainly represented deferred income released,

gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, government grants and

compensation income.

An analysis of major items of other income and gains is as follows:

HAtb W A K i 58

A U A Tk 3 o B 8 00 JE U2 -

EWME - BEMREHRE

EBA -

BT 8 B K2

HHMEARKENTEBEENSTAT

2019 2018
—Z-hEF —ZENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBETF T
Deferred income released to profit or loss BHBEEEBRBEATR
over the expected useful lives of the related BEEZHEZEERA
assets 13,373 10,118
Bank interest income RITH B WA 999 5,479
Government grants BT 4 B 24,840 10,615
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE BEMZED
plant and equipment g = - 11,927
Gain on disposal of associates k=3 R—/NEIEE OBl g 36,274 -
Gain on settlement of derivative financial HEETEERIENKS
instruments - 4916
Compensation income E R A - 7,342
Foreign exchange gain, net PEH Wz JFHE 12,070 -
Reversal of provision compensation for breach — [B] 48 & 4 8% 8 # #5
of contracts 67,251 -
Others HAi 6,756 8,177
161,563 58,574
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB23.8 million or 23.4%,

the increase in selling and distribution was mainly because of the expense

incurred to source new contracts in 2020.

5 & K o) 86 B S8 0 A R #523,800,0007T
8234% HEMDHZEMEEZEAR -F
“EFEEDHFANEENRAX -
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses dropped by RMB25.6 million as compared with
the year 2018. The drop was mainly caused by the drop in staff cost.

Other expenses

Other expenses in 2019 mainly represented bank charges and loss on
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by RMB62.8 million or 13.2%. The
drop in finance costs were mainly because of the drop in average balance
in bank and other loans in 2019.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense during the year included RMB13.8 million of taxation
charge (2018: RMB63.8 million) and RMB2.5 million of deferred tax credit
(2018: RMB45.5 million of deferred tax charge).

The taxation charges mainly represented the income tax provision for
subsidiaries inside Mainland China. No deferred tax charges on dividend
withholding tax based on 5% of the net profits in the operating subsidiaries
located inside Mainland China were provided for both years.

Current ratio

The current ratio being, current assets over current liabilities at 31
December 2019 was 2.19; and a net current liabilities of RMB888.4
million was noted at 31 December 2018, this was mainly because of the
Group was unable to re-finance its senior notes in 2018 which resulted
in defaults and cross defaults of certain bank and other loans, and which
would become immediately repayable if requested by the lenders.

ITHRRAX

BT \FEMRAL  THAIBRIARE
25,600,0007C - AW EBRE R B T
AR A e

HAt B2

TE-NFHEMAXEIERRTREUAR
HEWE BMELRBEBHEIE -

B & R A

& E 8 B & B AN R DA R #662,800,0007T
H13.2% MERAKBLHEZERRA D -Z
—NFRTREMBERZFHLERD -

FrEBi<

RAFE ISHIEREREHA
R #13,800,000t(Z T —N&FE: AR
63,800,0007T) & IE & % 18 H &£ A R
2,500,0007C (ZZ—N\F ELEHR BT A
R #45,500,0007T) °

MESXHIBETEANENBRANME
WEE AEERMEFEIREGRIZM
MBI REER S EMBRRANS%ETEE
PR BIEMBAHRBER AR o

BN =

RZB-AFFT A=+ —HHNRHH X
(AMRBHEELRBAMB) R219: R_F—
NF+ZA=+t—HAERRBEEFEA
[R#888,400,0007T - TEZRHRAEER
—E-NFEZIZSHEHBEAZEBRE &
HERETROTREMERRZHNETE
o MEHERAZR ERKREAE
2o



34

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DN

A debt restructuring has been completed in 2019, majority of the Group’s
bank and other loans were extended. Apart from that, the Company issued
approximately US$414 million of new senior notes in December 2019
to refinance the original convertible bonds, 2018 senior notes and 2019
senior notes. The liquidity position of the Group had significantly been
improved.

Trade receivables/trade and bills payables turnover days

BEBEECKR T -NFK » REBE KIS
DT REMEFTIGOIER o o AR
AN ZZ — N F + = A % 77 47414,000,000
ELFHNBAERE  AHRBEATBRKES
“E)\ERERBR-_F-NAFEER
BETHBRE AEBNRBESHANRE
BEWE -

EREZRE BLAESHEREM
SEEAER

At 31 December At 31 December

2019 2018

R=ZF-hF RZZE—N\F

+=ZA=+—-8B +ZA=+—H

Turnover days Days Days
AEA ¥ R
Trade receivables B E 5 R IE 403 288
Trade and bills payables JENE S HRIERENZEE 130 106

Trade receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables for the year divided by
the revenue (excluding tariff adjustment) during the year and multiplied by
the number of days during the year. Trade receivables turnover days at 31
December 2019 was 403 days. Trade and bills payables turnover days is
calculated based on the average of the beginning and ending balance of
trade and bills payables for the year divided by the cost of sales during
the year. Trade and bills payables turnover days at 31 December 2019
was 130 days.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s primary source of funding included receivables from
construction contracts and material sale, as well as income from electricity
sale. Apart from that, in previous years, the Group also use bank and loans
and offshore senior unsecured notes as an alternative source of financing
for its capital expenditure and working capital. In 2018, the Group was
unable to re-finance certain of its debts. The Group had completed a series
of steps to re-finance those debts and the steps taken were summarised
as follows:

The Company’s offshore senior notes include the 2018 USD Senior
Notes, the 2019 Senior Notes and the 2019 Convertible Bonds. As of 31
December 2018, the total outstanding principal amounts of the 2018 USD
Senior Notes, the 2019 Senior Notes and the 2019 Convertible Bonds
are US$155.26 million, US$260 million and RMB96 million, respectively.
The Company announced on the HKSE on 18 October 2018 that it had
defaulted on its 2018 USD Senior Notes and Admiralty Harbour Capital
Limited and Kirkland & Ellis were appointed as the Company’s financial
and legal advisers to assist it with a potential offshore debt restructuring.

The 2019 Senior Notes and the 2019 Convertible Bonds subsequently
payment-defaulted in February 2019. On 5 June 2019, the Company
announced the share subscription agreement with Shuifa Energy Group.
Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Company conditionally agreed
to allot and issue to the subscriber 1,687,008,585 ordinary shares at the
price of HK$0.92 per share. The subscription shares would represent
approximately 66.92% of the issued share capital of the Company (the
“Subscription”). The gross proceeds from the Subscription are expected
to be approximately HK$1.552 billion. It is intended that the proceeds
from the Subscription will be used for restructuring of existing debts, fees
and expenses related to the overall restructuring exercise and providing
general working capital and normalised funding levels for the Company’s
ongoing operations. The Subscription and the offshore debt structuring
are said to be inter-conditional on one another.
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On 19 July 2019, the Company announced its Restructuring Support
Agreement (RSA) following its signing of such with certain bondholders.
The RSA contained proposed restructuring terms to be implemented
through schemes of arrangements in the required jurisdictions, which will
need to be approved by the requisite majority of scheme creditors, and
sanctioned by the relevant courts at a later stage. On 14 August 2019,
the Company announced that holders holding approximately 98.39% of
the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Offshore Notes had
acceded to the RSA.

As announced by the Company on 15 October 2019, subject to certain
conditions, the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue to
Shuifa Energy Group, and Shuifa Energy Group agreed to subscribe for,
at Completion, 1,687,008,585 Subscription Shares at the Subscription
Price of HK$0.92 per Subscription Share. The aggregate amount of the
consideration for the Subscription Shares is approximately HK$1,552
million. The Subscription has subsequently been completed on 28
November 2019 pursuant to an announcement of the Company on the
same date.

On 1 November 2019, the Company issued a notice of scheme meeting
in Hong Kong High Court to the Scheme Creditors of the Company, and
pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 25 November
2019, the scheme meeting was duly held on 25 November 2019. The
Scheme Creditors present and voting (in person and/or by proxy) at the
Scheme Meeting unanimously passed a resolution approving the Hong
Kong Scheme and the Bermuda Scheme. And by an order dated 4
December 2019, the Supreme Court of Bermuda sanctioned the Bermuda
Scheme (“Bermuda Sanction Order”), and an office copy of the Bermuda
Sanction Order was delivered to the Bermuda Registrar of Companies
on 11 December 2019. By an order dated 5 December 2019, the High
Court of Hong Kong sanctioned the Hong Kong Scheme (“Hong Kong
Sanction Order”) and an office copy of the Hong Kong Sanction Order was
registered with the Hong Kong Registrar of Companies on 16 December
2019.
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On 19 December 2019, a 2.00% cash-pay and 4.00% pay-in-kind
guaranteed senior notes due 2022 with the amount of USD414,931,692
(the “2022 Senior Notes”) issued was issued by the Company to refinance
fully outstanding amount and unpaid accrued interest of the 2018 USD
Senior Notes, 2019 Senior Notes and the Convertible Bonds. The 2022
Senior notes is listed in Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures of the Group amounted to RMB67.8 million for the
year (2018: RMB578.2 million) and were mainly for the acquisition and
construction of self-invested solar power stations.

Borrowings and bank facilities

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank and other loans of
RMB2,912.3 million with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong
Inter Bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 1.3% to 15% for property mortgage
loan and revolving loans in Hong Kong. Interest rates for domestic loans
inside Mainland China were ranging from 4.78% to 24%.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and most
of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for those of the overseas
subsidiaries which functional currencies are currencies other than RMB
and certain items of cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in
HK$, US$ and other currencies.
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If RMB strengthens/weakens against HK$ as a reasonable possible
change of 5%, the loss before tax of the Group will increase/decrease by
approximately RMB82,189,000 (2018: the loss before tax of the Group
will increase/decrease by approximately RMB13,697,000), due to changes
in fair values of monetary assets and liabilities. The Group does not
consider that it has any significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in the
exchange rate between US$ and RMB as a reasonable possible change
of 5% in RMB against US$ would have no significant financial impact on
the Group’s loss.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and
its associates. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 8.00% and 27.88% of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively. All of these customers have good credit quality by taking
into account of their credit history, and a long-term business relationship
has been established by both parties. The Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring procedures
to ensure that there will be follow-up action to recover overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.
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Dividend

The Directors of the Company do not recommend payment of a final
dividend (2018: nil). The actual dividend payout ratio in each year will
depend on the actual performance of the Group, the general industry and
economic environment.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had about 1,440 employees.
Employee salary and other benefit expenses dropped to RMB169.5 million
in the year 2019 compared with RMB211.4 million in the year 2018. It was
generally because of the drop in number of employees, and the average
salary and bonus. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on
the performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed regularly
every year. Apart from provident fund scheme (according to the provisions
of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the
state-managed retirement pension scheme (for Mainland China employees)
and medical insurance, discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance.
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The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

TR EHRESNHEFR

Name Age  Position i Fie B®

Zheng Qingtao 45 Chairman and Executive Director BEE 4588,  ERRBITEZR
Liu Hongwei 56 Vice-Chairman and executive Director EFAN 565% BIEFREWTESR
Wang Dongwel 37 Executive Director IHRE 3758 HTEZR

Chen Fushan 47 Executive Director B 7 1L A7 WITEE

Wang Suhui 43 Non-executive Director T8 4358 FEBTES
Zhang Jianyuan 38 Non-executive Director KR 38m  HWITESF

Wang Ching 65 Independent non-executive Director T X 655 BUFHTES
Yick Wing Fat, Simon 62 Independent non-executive Director 5 K% 625% RV IEHITES
Tang Hongwei 60 Independent non-executive Director BARE 605 BUIEHITES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Qingtao, aged 45, has been appointed as the Chairman and
an executive Director of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has
been the assistant to general manager of Shuifa Group Co., Ltd. (/K%
£E AR 2T and general secretary of party branch* (E# % £:2)
chairman and general manager of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (/K% §E
TREB AR QA since March 2017. From February 2014 to February
2017 and from November 2012 to February 2014, Mr. Zheng served as
the general manager and chairman of Shandong Shuifa Tianyuan Water
Group Co., Ltd. (IWFRKEXFKBEEAFRAA]), and Liangshan County
Water Development Co., Ltd.* (L% K# R AR AR]) and Shandong
Shengdu Water Development Co., Ltd.* (IR E /KB ERFR QR
respectively. He worked at Shandong Water Conservancy Engineering
(IIFRKF TR 7%—1%‘
A]) as general manager and secretary of party sub-branch (23X 3£
from January 2007 to October 2012, and Shandong Water Conservancy
Engineering Company, Second Engineering Company* (LS 7K & T2 48
ARl — T 72 7A]) as deputy general manager from September 2001
to December 2007. During July 1995 to September 2001, Mr. Zheng has
taken the positions of engineering technician, party secretary (EZWE

Company, First Engineering Company*

5C) and party secretary (i?%ua at
(L& E =K
FITHB). Mr. Zheng obtained his bachelor’'s degree in political thoughts
(h 2 B 85 K 22)
in the PRC in 2003 and has approximately 20 years of experience in

secretary of youth league (B£& £
Shandong Province (No. 2) Water Conservancy Bureau*

education (B BE#E) at Qufu Normal University*

corporate senior management and approximately 10 years of experience
in the energy industry.
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Mr. Liu Hongwei aged 56, is the Vice-chairman and an executive
Director of our Company. He joined our Group since August 1995. He
is responsible for the formulation and execution of our Group’s overall
business strategies and policies as well as the overall management of
our Group. Mr. Liu has more than 12 years’ experience in the glass
manufacturing sector and more than 16 years’ experience in the curtain
wall engineering sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s degree in engineering
in July 1986 from Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan
University of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials engineering,
Mr. Liu worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise, Shaanxi
Glass Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Liu
was the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei
was the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety
Glass. In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai
Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly
known as Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai
City Township Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been an
executive Director of our Company. From August 1995 to October 2007,
Mr. Liu was appointed as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager, taking charge
of general supervising and controlling on technologies. In December 2000,
Mr. Liu was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the Guangdong
Province Construction Bureau. In January 2001, Mr. Liu was certified as
a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials by the Guangdong
Province Personnel Bureau.
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In 2003, Mr. Liu became an adjunct professor of Wuhan University
of Technology. In August 2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the
experts to the Standardisation Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry
of Construction for Curtain Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently
a member of the Standing Committee of the Zhuhai Municipal People’s
Congress of the PRC. Mr. Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. which is one of the major shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Wang Dongwei, aged 37, has been appointed as an executive Director
of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a deputy general
manager of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (K28R E B AR Q7)) since
June 2018. From May 2018 to June 2018, Mr. Wang was the assistant
to general manager at Shandong ENN Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (1L
R RERERAAF), and from November 2014 to April 2018, he
was a standing deputy general manager of Jinan ENN Combustion Gas
Co., Ltd.* (BEm B R| AR A A]). He served as the chief accountant
of Qingdao ENN Jiaocheng Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* (5 & #1 58 B
MRR AR 2 A]) from March 2011 to October 2014. Mr. Wang worked at
Laiyang ENN Combustion Gas Co., Ltd.* ((KEG ¥ B IRB AR A=) from
March 2008 to February 2011 and Qingdao ENN Jiaonan Combustion Gas
Co., Ltd* (EEHMERBBEMIAMR2AE]) from April 2006 to February
2008, as an executive of the finance department in both companies. From
August 2004 to March 2006, Mr. Wang took the position of a supervising
accountant of the finance department of Chucheng ENN Gas Combustion
Co., Ltd* (FEH I B KB PR A)), and from July 2001 to July 2004,
he was an accountant of Zibo Huaging Fire Resistant Materials Company
Limited* (18 ZEE i A M K BBR A F)). Mr. Wang obtained his master’s
degree in business administration at Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law* (RFREIBT 4 BE R2) in the PRC in 2012 and his bachelor’s
degree in accounting at Shandong Economics College* (111 5 4% 75 £ f )
(currently known as Shandong University of Finance and Economics) in
the PRC in 2003 and has approximately 15 years of senior management
experience in the energy field.
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Mr. Chen Fushan, aged 47, has been appointed as an executive Director
of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a deputy genera
manager of Shuifa Energy Group Limited (K28R E B AR A7) since
2019. During August 2014 to July 2018, Mr. Chen took the positions of
marketing director, member of party committee (2ZZ 8) and assistant
to director of the Heze branch (324> 17) and director of the Yucheng
branch (#8395 77) of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank. From June
2014 to July 2014, he served as the general manager of risk management
at the Heze branch (SRE%17) of Laishang Bank (38R 77). Mr. Chen
was the director of the Yucheng branch (3% 77) and operationa
director of the Heze branch (& #%17) from May 2011 to June 2014 and
from November 2010 to May 2011, respectively, both at Laishang Bank
(38R 17). He worked at China Construction Bank, as director of the Dan
County branch (2 8 3 77) from January 2007 to October 2010 and as
deputy director of the Yucheng branch (¥8%%377) from February 2006 to
December 2006. During August 1994 to January 2006, Mr. Chen served
as an international business settlement officer, savings officer, officer and
deputy manager of the credit department and customer service executive
of the Heze branch (3724 77) of China Construction Bank. Mr. Chen
graduated from Shandong Economics College* (LB AR #EEFT) (currently
known as Shandong University of Finance and Economics) with a major in
international finance in the PRC in 2001 and has approximately 25 years
of experience in audit, financial management, finance and initial public
offerings etc..
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wang Suhui, aged 43, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of our Company on 28 November 2019. She has been a deputy
general manager of the energy business department of Shuifa Group
Co., Ltd. (K EBE AR A A]) since March 2019. From 2016 to 2018,
she was a business manager of the asset operations division of Shuifa
Group Co., Ltd. (ZKEE £ E B R A 7). During 2004 to 2011, Ms. Wang
has taken the positions of auditor, senior manager and deputy director of
the management consultancy department of Xin Lian Yi Certified Public
Accountants Co., Ltd* (3785 € 5T Al = 7% F7). Ms. Wang obtained her
master’'s degree at the Shandong University of Science and Technology
in the PRC in 2004 and is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Zhang Jianyuan, aged 38, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director of our Company on 28 November 2019. He has been a manager
of the investment department at Shuifa Energy Group Limited (/K2 §E
JREBEABMRAT) since April 2017 and is the chairman of the board of
Shandong Shuifa Combustion Gas Co., Limited* (LI /KE AR D F).
From June 2016 to April 2017, he was the financial director of Shandong
Yinfeng Construction Engineering Technology Co., Limited* (1L R 58 & &
HRITREEHEZAER AR, During July 2012 to June 2016, Mr. Zhang served
as a director of the financial management department, vice financial
director and executive of the financial management center of Linuo Power
Group Co., Ltd* (h#EEHEE R BERAF]). He took the position of
financial manager at the Republic of Equatorial Guinea branch of Beijing
Shengdasen International Construction Contract Co., Limited* (db 5 5% 3%
HREIBR TR ABBRAT) from January 2010 to June 2012. During July
2003 to December 2009, Mr. Zhang served as an accountant and chief
accountant of subsidiary at Shandong Province Construction (Group) Co.,
Limited* (IUERAEZRZET(EB)BREEAQF]). Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Shandong Finance College* (IR BfERE2FT) (currently known
as Shandong University of Finance and Economics) majoring in finance
in the PRC in 2003 and has approximately 16 years of experience in
photovoltaics new energy, investment, mergers and acquisitions, financial
management and onshore and offshore projects.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and
asset management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the PRC.
He was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group for
Jih Sun Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director of JS
Cresvale Securities International Limited, the managing director of SinoPac
Securities Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities Co. Ltd.
in Taiwan, the director of Investment Banking Department at Standard
Chartered Bank Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear Stearns &
Co. Inc., New York and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the managing
director of Shanghai International Asset Management (HK) Co. Ltd., a
licensed corporation registered with Honk Kong Securities and Futures
Commission. He is also the executive director of Shanghai International
Shanghai Growth Investment Limited, an investment fund company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master
degree in business administration from the University of Houston and
Ph.D. in finance from Columbia University in the city of New York.
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Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 62, is our independent non-executive director
and chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Yick holds a Bachelor’'s degree
in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
majoring in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants in England. Mr. Yick has over 30 years of experience in audit,
direct investment, investment banking and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Yick also serves as an independent non-executive director and
chairman of the audit committee of Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong
Bio-technique Co., Ltd. and Shanghai International Shanghai Growth
Investment Limited (both are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Yick is
also an independent non-executive director, convener of the nomination
committee and member of the strategy committee and the audit committee
of Chengdu Xingrong Environment Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Since 1 October 2019, Mr. Yick has also
been appointed as the independent non-executive director and chairman
of audit committee and remuneration committee, member of nomination
committee of Modern Media Holdings Limited (listed on Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 72).

Tan Hongwei, aged 60, is our non-executive Director and also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. He is a professor and a doctoral
supervisor at the School of Mechanical and Energy Engineering of Tongji
University, a doctoral supervisor at the School of Architecture and Urban
Planning of Tongji University and the interdisciplinary double-engaged
responsible professor at the United Nations Environment Programme-
School of Environmental Sustainability of Tongji University. He is also
the key researcher of Climate Change Key Laboratory, the core member
of the first class academic peak team (building technology) of Tongji
University, the deputy director of the Tongji University Green Building and
New Energy Research Center, and the director of the Tongji International
Green Industry Innovation Center. Dr. Tan graduated from the Department
of Architecture of Tokyo University with a doctoral degree in 1995. Dr.
Tan has over 18 years of experience in the teaching and research in
respect of energy-saving building technologies, application technology
of renewable energy in buildings, building energy efficiency supervision
platform technology, urban low-carbon energy planning technology, urban
construction environment technology and other fields.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zhao Feng, aged 54, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
since August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined
our Group as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He
has approximately 12 years of experience in the construction sector and
approximately 11 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei
Province Shashi Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from
1987 to 1995. Mr. Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in
December 2004. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering
from Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of
Technology, majoring in materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became
the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and
responsible for managing its daily operation.

Zhang Chao, aged 47, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai Singyes.
Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager of the
business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 12 years
of experience in the construction sector and approximately 11 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Qigihaer Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in
industry and civil construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Zhang worked as a construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province Hei He
City Railway (Group) Company from 1995 to 2002. In January 2006, Mr.
Zhang was certified as a constructor by the Guangdong Province Personnel
Bureau. Mr. Zhang was also certified as a National Construction Appraiser
by the Construction Department in 2003 and construction engineer by
Zhuhai Personnel Bureau in 2005. In December 2007, Mr. Zhong was
registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of Construction.
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Luo Duo, aged 41, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 12 years of
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as the
vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November 2004 to
December 2006 and the director of design institute from January 2007 to
January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief engineer
of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered Structural
Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005. Ms. Luo
was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau
in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in Construction
Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in July 2001.

Liang Bingqgiang, aged 42, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai
Singyes and responsible for the development of the overseas market. He
has more than 13 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang
worked as the director of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing
representative office from July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for
Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to
March 2002. In August 2006, he was appointed as the manager of
the photo-electricity business department of Zhuhai Singyes. In April
2008, he was appointed as the deputy general manager of Singyes
Renewable Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an Assistant Engineer by
the Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001. Mr. Liang was certified
as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau in
January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor's degree in construction
engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in July 2000.
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YU Chon Man, aged 42, he has been the qualified accountant and
company secretary of our Company since 2008. He is responsible for
financial reporting and general investor affairs of our Company. He has
approximately 18 years of experience in financial accounting. Mr. Yu is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior
to joining us, he had approximately seven years of working experience with
international audit firms and was mainly responsible for financial auditing,
internal control reporting and compliance advisory. He graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’'s degree (Hons) in
accountancy in 2001.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director and chairman
of audit committee of Luxxu Group Limited (stock code: 1327).

Mr. Guo Yangyang, aged 36, was appointed as the co-chief financial
officer of the Group in October 2016. He graduated from the accounting
discipline of the China University of Mining and Technology in June
2005, and is an intermediate accountant. Since joining the Group in July
2006, he has worked as a manager in the Company’s financial planning
department and accounting and auditing department. He was appointed
as the chief accountant and deputy financial controller of the Company
in January 2011. He has over 10 years of financial and accounting
experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the
Company is located at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The Company has established a principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong,
and was registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as
an oversea company under Part X| of the Companies Ordinance on 29
August 2008. Mr. Yu Chon Man has been appointed as the authorised
representative of the Company for the acceptance of service of process
and notices on behalf of the Company in Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of
the Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution
comprising a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor,
it is principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of
conventional curtain walls and solar projects. Solar projects included
building integrated photovoltaic (“BIPV”) system, roof top solar system and
ground mounted solar system (collectively “Solar EPC”). The BIPV system
involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural
design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy into
electricity for use. In addition, the Group also engages in the production
and sale of renewable energy goods, including smart grid system, and solar
thermal system. The Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland
China.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall or solar form investors. In aggregate,
the largest and top five customers contributed approximately 11.5% and
26.5% of the Group’s total revenue in 2019 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminium
and glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2019, the top five suppliers
include material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees paid
or material purchase to its largest and five largest suppliers were about
5.6% and 16.6% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2019 respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries which principally affect
the results as at 31 December 2019 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 83 to 276. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 87 to 88 of the annual report and in note 49 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company‘s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the applicable
law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB11,997,000.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2019 are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements. Save as the
issue of 1,687,008,585 shares at a price of HK$0.92 per share to water
Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited on 28 November 2019, the
Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed
securities of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Qingtao

(appointed on 28 November 2019)
Mr. Liu Hongwei
Mr. XIE Wen

(resigned on 28 November 2019)
Mr. Wang Dongwei

(appointed on 28 November 2019)
Mr. Chen Fushan

(appointed on 28 November 2019)
Mr. Xiong Shi

(resigned on 28 November 2019)

Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Wang Suhui

(appointed on 28 November 2019)
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan

(appointed on 28 November 2019)
Dr. Li Hong

(resigned on 28 November 2019)
Mr. Zhuo Jianming

(resigned on 28 November 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Wang Ching

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon

Dr. Tan Hongwei

Upon completion of the Subscription on 28 November 2019 (as defined
by the announcement of the Company on 15 October 2019 and 28
November 2019), Mr. Zheng Qingtao has been appointed as the Chairman
and Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Wang Dongwei and Mr. Chen
Fushan have been appointed as Executive Directors of the Company;
Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Zhang Jianyuan have been appointed as
Non-executive Directors of the Company. On the same day, as part of the
completion arrangements, Mr. Xie Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi have been resigned
as Executive Directors, and Mr. Zhuo Jianming and Ms. Li Hong have
been resigned as Non-executive Directors of the Company.
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In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Wang Dongwei, Mr. Chen Fushan, Ms. Wong Suhui,
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Wang Ching are
required to retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Each of the above Directors will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
members of the Group was based on their individual performance as
well as market trends and practices. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2019 were within the following
bands:

BBEARRA 2 MANES7H5 - BEBEE - £
RELE BREBLELE - TREBERL K
RELE  ZARBEEEREIRELRER
BRBEAGLARFRE LUABES
BREREKRRBEFAG LBESE -

¥ R

AEEZEEREREREENKEB 2% MK
BEDHRBEERRRIART S B L RIEH
TUEBFT BEZZHMFEBIAREAMB
HERM L8R -
RBEE-FT-NF+_A=+—RHLFE "
XNEREEENBRER) ZHHN T
RATEE :

Number of Senior

Management
Bands HE EREEEHE
RMB100,001 to RMB1,000,000 A R#100,0017t £ A R#1,000,0007T 3
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000 A R #1,000,0017 = A R #2,000,0007T 3
Total: AEt: 6
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Wang Dongwei and Mr. Chen Fushan, the
executive Directors, has signed a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 28 November 2019 unless
terminated in accordance with the terms therein. Under the terms of the
letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by not less than
three months’ prior written notice or otherwise served by either party on
the other.

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the executive Director, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 13 January
2012, and will be automatically renewed for another three years upon
expiry.

Each of the non-executive Directors, Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Zhang
Jianyuan, has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 28 November 2019. Under the terms
of the letter of appointment, the appointment may be terminated by not
less than one month’s prior written notice or otherwise served by either
party on the other.

Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and Dr. Wang Ching, the independent non-
executive Directors, were appointed for a term of three years from 19
December 2008. Dr. Tan Hongwei, the independent non-executive
director, was appointed for a term of three years from 18 April 2018. Their
service contracts will be automatically renewed for another three years
upon expiry.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors has a service agreement with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies
of other companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.

EERBEN
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the board
of Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible persons
(being any Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time), consultant
or advisors of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board has
contributed or will contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”) who the
Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number
of Shares as the Board may determine at a subscription price determined
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option
Scheme

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 25,257,931
shares, representing 1.00% of the Company’s issued share capital as
at the date of this report. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, the exercise price of and/or the number of Shares subject to
the outstanding Share Options are required to be adjusted as a result of
a rights issue in July 2016. In accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock
Exchange on 5 September 2005 regarding adjustment of share options
under Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules, the exercise price of and the
number of Shares subject to the outstanding Share Options granted on
23 July 2009, 10 October 2011 and 22 May 2015 have been adjusted
with effect from 20 July 2016:

BT E

RZZBZNFET-_A+IAB RNRBHRMH—
BT E ((RBARETED -  REBK
#iE EF(EFENDATBHBERER
BERMAL (EE2RNBERRGREHE
SHASHEAEMMNINESHEER(E
B ERB) B FEEERMEER
ATDELBRE  AIZBREFSETE
MRBEERBESTEMEENRTROE
S

BRESEZAN

BREFSEERBDIMA S ANEE(EH
BRSO T B REREENEZNEE
BAL UERBREFETELENEMD
Bey e

BREGFETHROBEAR

RITEREBRESTEETEENMERR
M Al BE B AT HIRR 19 81 B & % /25,257,931
I8 - HERARBRAREBRADBITRA
1.00% ° R EZ B R 8l 2 50 - HKRAT
EHREZTEER SROBEE=-Z
—RNFELAHBMEELHE - BRBRER
BB ZERRBZAR_EZTRFNA
hBEEMAER EMARAEL703(13)KET
EREFAE 2@ AES  RZEZNFL
AZ+=B ZZE—f+A+HER=ZZF—
TERAZTZBRTZHEKRITEBRE
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Before Adjustments
FEA

subject to the

Exercise price

Share Options

hNEFERE PEKBEEXLEREEERAA

After Adjustments
Number Number
of Shares of Shares
subject to the
outstanding outstanding

Exercise price Share Options

per Share R R per Share B R R

Date of grant R TEBREZ BR THEBREZ
gl =p TEE R EE TEE RBEE
HK$ HK$

o BT

23 July 2009* —EERANFLEA=-t=8" 3.58 11,242,404 3.56 11,242,404
10 October 2011 —E2——F+A+H 2.68 7,231,599 2.67 7,231,599
22 May 2015 —E—RAFRA=-+=H 11.70 6,026,332 11.65 6,026,332
5 April 2017 —ZE—tFWNARH 3.55 12,000,000 N/AT i F N/AT 3 A

* expired on 22 July 2019

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the
shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1.0% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company and the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
with such Eligible Persons and his associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and terms (including the
subscription price) of such options being fixed before such general meeting
and other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time.

* RZE-NWFELAZ+ZHEM

ERERSHEHEARBINES KRG
L=

EHERHAHRSNETA T _@ASNE -
T AR 95 8 A b 5 &) R AN R BME ] L B
BEFERNEEAEBRALTRENBAE
(BB - DrEsE R mARTTEA IR E)
MBETRABTHORNDCER  TEEAER
RHAMEEITRMOHML0% - & —F&K
HiEB® El1.0% ERABARE - ARFA
BFHBR YAEARABRRERRRE
P MZREAEBALREBEAL
(EERLTRADTBERE  ZEBRE
WEERER(BREABBE) ANEERE
AGRITHETE  LABR ETRITE
MIEREMBRE °
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Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered
to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant
of any particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such
minimum period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on
which the offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised
according to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole
or in part by the grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry
by giving notice in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised
provided that the number of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board
lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple
thereof. Such notice must be accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the subscription price for the Shares in respect of which the
notice is given. The period during which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years from the date of grant. No
option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of approval of
the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the Company
in general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme by Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon
exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine,
save that such price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of offer to grant option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer to grant option (provided that the new issue
price shall be used as the closing price for any business day falling within
the period before the listing of the shares where our Company has been
listed for less than five business days as at the date of offer to grant
option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A consideration of RMB1.00
is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant of an option.
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Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at
any time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in
such event no further option will be offered but in all other respects the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
and options granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There was no exercise of any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted
at any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The share options granted on 23 July 2009 has been expired on 22 July
2019.

BRESTENERT F1Y

ARBARNBRASBEBRAZRIBES
SRR B BINER  HRTE
BROBRE HEBREIAAEELGLR
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS BRESE

As at 31 December 2019, no outstanding share options were granted to RZZE—NF+_A=+—8 ' @HEHRT
directors of the Company, movements of which are as follows: FHEBRERTARRIES  EZFHUT:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
Exercisable price per At 1 January during the during the during the during the At 31 December
Director Date of grant period share 2019 year year year year 2019
R-Z-hF RZZ-h#F
i REBEH s SROKE -A-H FRERE FREFTE FREHEE FREXR  TZB=t-B
(HK$)
(1)
Liu Hongwei 23/07/2009 23/01/2010- 3.56 455,082 - - - (455,082) -
EE: 22/07/2019
23/07/2010- 3.56 462,019 - - - (462,019) -
22/07/2019
23/07/2011- 3.56 462,019 - - - (462,019) -
22/07/2019
Sub-total 1,379,120 - - - (1,379,120) -
et
Xie Wen 23/07/2009 23/01/2010- 3.56 455,081 - - - (455,081) -
EIDS 22/07/2019
23/07/2010- 3.56 462,019 - - - (462,019) -
22/07/2019
23/07/2011- 3.56 462,019 - - - (462,019) -
22/07/2019
Sub-total 1,379,119 - - - (1,379,119) -

N %1—
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Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
Exercisable price per At 1 January during the during the during the during the At 31 December
Director Date of grant period share 2019 year year year year 2019
RZE-NF RZZ-NF
3 REBH s SROEE -A-B FRERY EREFE FREZHE EFrEX¥  tZA=t-H
(HK$)
(&)
Xiong Shi 23/07/2009 23/07/2010- 3.56 40,175 - - - (40,175) -
R 22/07/2019
Zhuo Jianming - - - - - - - - -
EEB
Li Hong - - - - - - - - -
FR
Wang Ching 23/07/2009 23/07/2010- 3.56 40,175 - - - (40,175) -
TR 22/07/2019
23/07/2011- 3.56 80,351 - - - (80,351) -
22/07/2019
Sub-total 120,526 - - - (120,526) -
e
Yick Wing Fat 23/07/2009 23/01/2010- 3.56 80,351 - - - (80,351) -
SxE 22/07/2019
23/07/2010- 3.56 80,351 - - - (80,351) -
22/07/2019
23/07/2011- 3.56 80,351 - - - (80,351) -
22/07/2019
Sub-total 241,053 - - - (241,053) -
et
Tan Hongwei - - - - - - - - -
il
Total 3,159,993 - - - (3,159,993) -

At




62

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EETHRES

The movements of share options granted to employees of the Group (apart
from the Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as

BE_T-NFT_A=THLFE K
TAEERE(EEFHRINNBREZLEB N

follows: N
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed
price per At 1 January during the during the during the during the At 31 December
Date of grant Date of grant share 2019 year year year year 2019
RZE-NF RZZ-NF
g = R BH BRITEE -A-B ERERE FrETE FREZHE FREAR TZA=t+-H
(HK$)
(BT
23/07/2019 23/01/2010-22/07/2019 3.56 1,772,486 - - - (1,772,486) -
23/07/2010-22/07/2019 3.56 2,251,261 - - - (2,251,261) -
23/07/2011-22/07/2019 3.56 4,058,664 - - - (4,058,664) -
10/10/2011 11/10/2012-10/10/2021 2.67 1,446,320 - - - - 1,446,320
11/10/2013-10/10/2021 2.67 1,446,320 - - - - 1,446,320
11/10/2014-10/10/2021 2,67 1,446,320 - - - - 1,446,320
11/10/2015-10/10/2021 2.67 1,446,320 - - - - 1,446,320
11/10/2016-10/10/2021 2.67 1,446,319 - - - - 1,446,319
22/05/2015 22/05/2016-21/05/2025 11.65 2,008,778 - - - - 2,008,778
22/05/2017-21/05/2025 11.65 2,008,777 - - - - 2,008,777
22/05/2016-21/05/2025 11.65 2,008,777 - - - - 2,008,777
05/04/2017 05/04/2018-21/05/2027 3.55 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
05/04/2019-21/05/2027 3.55 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
05/04/2020-21/05/2027 3.55 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
Total 33,340,342 - - - (8,082,411) 25,257,931

@5t
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The movements of share options granted to employees of the Group
under the share option scheme adopted by China Singyes New Materials
Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, during the year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:

BE_T-NEFT_A=T"HLFE R
BAKRENBRARTEREZERMHIZRE
BARRANBREAERTAEERE
MEREZEEHIT

Number of share options

BRENE

Exercise Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited
price per At 1 January during the during the during the during the At 31 December
Date of grant Date of grant share 2019 year year year year 2019
R=ZZ-h#F R=B-h%F
RHAH REAH BROTKE -B-B FRERH FRETE FRESEHE  FARRR  t=A=+-H
(HK$) '000 '000 ‘000 '000 '000 '000
(ET) TR T TR TR T TR
31/01/2018 31/01/2021-30/01/2028 116 7,000 - - - (1,767) 5,233
31/01/2022-30/01/2028 116 7,000 - - - (1,767) 5,233
31/01/2023-30/01/2028 116 7,000 - - - (1,766) 5,234
Total 21,000 - - - (5,300) 15,700

st

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the issue of 1,687,008,585 shares to Water Development (HK)
Holding Co., Limited for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$1,552,047,898, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase,
sell or redeem any listed securities of the Company during the year.

EEREROUBEFHER

HE-Z-AF+-_A=+—HILFE - #
BEFIWEEEAMBAL(ERR LTR
A1) 2 AN B S BAE AR B B 8 B IR T AE AT
MEBEREAZBE RO HIES

E;Ei - HERBEARE LHE

B LA 8K (B 491,552,047,89878 JT 1A K B &
E(F#) & KkAB R AR % 171,687,008,585
AR RARB R EMNB AR RNAE
EHEEE HEXERARRMEM LT
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which (i) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Company/name
of associated

EERERFAETETHRAER
ApE R E *EH??%H’\JHQ@ :
HERORESNESREA

i — 7L$+*H:+*E’%J§%$ﬁﬁ
% é%&zﬁ ZETBABRKEN

BE ATHRAR T&EWW&I(E%%%‘
%&Hﬁifﬂ Bl (T35 R BB G ;-
HEARGORESFEBDNIREE %&Hﬁ
EHIEBEXVEETR FE8D HABMEER
B 22 P ) 25 (B2 ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ%&,ﬁmﬁﬂﬂﬁlJéz
%1%%82%& TES R B B ) f 2 Rk
B) R (NRIEEF R BAE KA E352(58
aEﬁvﬁAaZ{ Frfgt e Mafas (iR
BEMBTAESETELRARINIZEST
B (MZESFR D) BME AR R KRB AE
T

corporation Number of Approximate %
Name NN Capacity Type of interest shares of shareholding
% & HEEEER g7 Em R B4 #E RESAT I
Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 203,802,750 8.08%
B4 HE e VIN/NEE] corporation ! o)
R EEER !
Note: MT?:E :

1. These 203,802,750 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose
share capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed
to be interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

1. #%203,802,7500% % {7 Fa Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. #5412 41 4 % 4 % 4G Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. A& A< 253% - 18 4 & % I H3
EIRG - BIAEEERERNZERD S
mERER -
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware, save as
disclosed above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a
chief executive of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise
notified to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group and the amount of each of such persons’ interest in such
securities, together with any options in respect of such capital, were as
follows:

FERRRKRG - HBEROR
BTN EERER

RZE-NFEF+ZR=+—H BEZM
B BREXEEESIN  ATALTIOEE (X
FARRBEZTHEIZITBABR)RARAR
I RBEROT  BEAEELENRIEES
NEVE IR EI6RBFENE T MM E
SEEE - HREE SR BRI EXVE
F2R3D B ZIEXBRAARNR W E 2 Em
FORE - HE R A MR AR
EABERTERERTMEMBKERRZ
BRAEG EREZEAARRAHEELS
A LD UAEREALTEERZFR
SHACEGHE  EREAZSFRAY
RzZERBERENT:

Long/short Capacity/nature Number Approximate %
Shareholder position of interest of shares of shareholding
[ E/RA 5/ RnitE B & B BRESABES L
Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited Long position Beneficial owner 1,687,008,585 66.92%
KEEE (BB ERERDA RE ERBEAA
Long position Person having a security 180,755,472 7.17%
159-) interest in shares
HEROERERZZ AL
KBEERFEEBBRAA Long position Interest of corporation 1,867,764,057 74.09%
159-) controlled by you
Pl 2 EE R
KBEEBERAR Long position Interest of corporation 1,867,764,057 74.09%
159-) controlled by you
Pl 2 EE R
Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. 2 Long position Beneficial owner 203,802,750 8.08%
RE EafiAA
Beyond Steady Limited (“Beyond Steady”) 2 Long position Beneficial owner 67,064,000 2.7%
BYHAERAR(RH]) 3 RE ERBBAA
Person having a security 64,004,000 2.5%
interest in shares
BRERMERER 2 AL
Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited Long position Interest in controlled 131,068,000 5.2%
(“Huarong International”) 3 kA& corporation
EREReRERERAA(TERER]) ° ZELERER
TEHREREETEROAERADR Long position Interest in controlled 131,068,000 5.2%

(China Huarong Assets Management Company
Limited*) (“China Huarong”) * ([REIZERR]) *
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1. Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited is 100% beneficially owned
by KEREREB AR AR and /KEELREB AR A is 100% beneficially
owned by K &£ B H R A G

2. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr.
Xie Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Zhuo Jianming as to 53%, 15%, 13%, 10%,
and 9% respectively.

3. Huarong International indirectly holds 100% equity interest in Beyond
Steady through Linewear Assets Limited. Huarong International is therefore
deemed to be interested in 131,068,000 Shares in which Beyond Steady is
interested. China Huarong holds 100% equity interest in =gl B 2GR &
£ /A @] (Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd.*) and Huarong Zhiyuan Investment
& Management Co., Ltd. which together holds 100% equity interest in
China Huarong International Holdings Limited. China Huarong International
Holdings Limited holds 100% equity interest in Camellia Pacific Investment
Holding Limited which holds 51% equity interest in Huarong International.
China Huarong is therefore deemed to be interested in 131,068,000 Shares
in which Beyond Steady is interested. According to the annual report of
Huarong International for the year ended 31 December 2019, Beyond
Steady should have a put option over the shares of the Company owned by
it as at 31 December 2019. No notice under the SFO has been received by
the Company for Beyond Steady, Huarong International and China Huarong's
short position as at 31 December 2019 in relation to the put option.

4. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,521,081,780 Shares in issue
as at 31 December 2019.

NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart
from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is actual
or potential conflict in interest.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2019.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2019.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in note 45 to
the financial statements are subject to the reporting, announcement and/
or independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Byelaws, or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Upon the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008 with
terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
the Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of
the audit committee are the three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is the
Chairman of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve as a
focal point for communication between other directors, the external auditor
and the internal auditor (where an internal audit function exists) of the
Company as regards their duties relating to financial and other reporting,
internal controls, external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to time. The audit
committee is to assist the Board in providing an independent review of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the
Board from time to time. The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.
For further details of the audit committee and other committees of the
Board, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
from pages 7 to 23.
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KEY FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The key financial and business performance indicators comprise
profitability trend and gearing ratio. Details of profitability analysis are
shown in “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report. Details of gearing ratio analysis are shown in Note 47 (Financial
Risk Management Objectives and Policies) to the Financial Statements in
this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff, and
contributes to the community in which we conduct our businesses and
creating a sustainable return to the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group has implemented energy saving practices in its offices and
premises where applicable. The Group also plans to upgrade its air-
conditioning and electricity systems to achieve the energy saving and
provision of clear air to workplace where possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its long-term goals
and development. To maintain its brand competitiveness and market
status, the Group aims at delivering consistently high standards of quality
in the service to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

USD414,931,692 2% cash-pay and 4% pay-in-kind senior
note due 2022

On 19 December 2019, the Company issued USD414,931,692 2% cash-
pay and 4% pay-in-kind senior note due 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”).
The 2022 Senior Notes are only offered outside the United States in
compliance with Regulation S under the United States Securities Act of
1933, as amended (“Regulation S”). The 2022 Senior Notes initially were
offered to eligible Scheme Creditors (as defined in the Announcement)
and the Holding Period Trustee The 2022 Senior Notes have been listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX”).

The major terms and conditions of the 2022 Senior Notes are as follows:

(i) Interest payment election

The Company may, at its discretion at any time, elect to pay interest
on the principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes on each interest
payment date (i) in cash (a “Cash Coupon Election”) at the rate of
2.00% per annum prior to a Cash Coupon Election and thereafter
at 6.00% per annum (the “Cash Interest”) and (ii) by increasing the
principal amount of the 2022 Senior Notes or by issuing any 2.00%
cash-pay and 4.00% pay-in-kind guaranteed senior notes due 2022
(the “Additional Notes”) in a principal amount equal to 4.00% of
the aggregate principal amount of the note then outstanding (the
“PIK Interest”). The Cash Coupon Election shall be irrevocable.
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(1)

(iir)

Mandatory redemption of the Company

On June 19, 2022 (the “Initial Mandatory Redemption Date”), the
Company shall redeem 40% of the 2022 Senior Notes outstanding
on the Initial Mandatory Redemption Date (including, for the
avoidance of doubt, any Additional Notes that have been issued as
PIK Interest and added to the principal amount of the Notes) at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof,
together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon (at the rate of
6.00% per annum, corresponding to the aggregate of the interest
ordinarily payable in cash and the interest ordinarily payable in kind)
to, but excluding, the Initial Mandatory Redemption Date.

Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the
Holders, the Trustee and the Paying Agent (each such date, an
“Optional Redemption Date”), at any time, the Company may at its
option redeem the notes outstanding on the applicable Optional
Redemption Date (including, for the avoidance of doubt, any
Additional Notes that have been issued as PIK Interest and added
to the principal amount of the notes) in whole or in part at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the aggregate principal amount
thereof together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon (at the
rate of 6.00% per annum, corresponding to the aggregate of the
interest ordinarily payable in cash and the interest ordinarily payable
in kind) to, but excluding, the applicable Optional Redemption Date.

(1)

(iii)
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has compliance and risk management policies and procedures,
and members of the senior management are delegated with the continuing
responsibility to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant
legal and regulatory requirements. These policies and procedures are
reviewed regularly. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied
in material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprises employees, customers and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Groups’ human resource management
is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package and implementing a sound performance appraisal
system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career development
and progression by appropriate training and providing opportunities within
the Group for career advancement.

Customers

The Group has the mission to provide excellent and creative customer
service whilst maintain our long-term profitability, business and
asset growth. Various means have been established to strength the
communication between the customers and the Group in the provision of
quality customer service towards market penetration and expansion.

Shareholders

One of our corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate value
to shareholders. The Group is poised to foster business developments for
achieving the sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding shareholders
by stable dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels,
liquidity positions and business expansion needs of the Group.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUE OF SHARES

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 15 October 2019
(the “Circular”), the Company issued 1,687,008,585 ordinary shares
(the “Subscription Shares”) at the Subscription Price of HK$0.92 per
Subscription Share to Water Development (HK) Holding Co., Limited. The
aggregate nominal value of the Subscription Shares is US$16,870,085.85.
The closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange of the shares on 29
March 2019, being the last trading day before the entering into of the
Subscription Agreement, was HK$0.99. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription is expected to amount to approximately HK$1,552,047,898.
The net proceeds, after taking into account the estimated expenses in
relation to the Subscription (including but not limited to miscellaneous
expenses on issue of new Shares certificates to the Subscriber, the
preparation of the circular and relevant transaction documents), would
be approximately HK$1,550,000,000, representing a net price of
approximately HK$0.92 per Subscription Share.

As at 31 December 2019, the use of proceeds were as follows:

As disclosed in
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the Circular 2019
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HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FER
Restructuring of existing debts of EHAEBEREER
the Group 550,000 390,770 71.5%
Fees and expenses related to the EEEEAETEEMN
overall restructuring exercise ERANMAY 85,000 85,000 100.0%
Financing the Group’s existing EPC ~ AAEBIEAKEPCERS
business REtEE S 500,000 167,930 33.6%
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acquisition opportunities e 300,000 - -
Providing general working capital ABAREBEMNFELER
and normalised funding levels for H-REEESRIE
the Group’s ongoing operations wBEKE 115,000 23,443 20.4%
Total BEr 1,550,000 667,143 43.0%

The remaining balance of unutilised net proceeds of approximately
HK$882,857,000 as at 31 December 2019 is expected to be utilised by
31 December 2020. The proceeds from the Subscription were used and
are proposed to be used according to the intentions previously disclosed
in the Circular.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock
Exchange, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited
by Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re- appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
By order of the Board

Zheng Qingtao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 April 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M % B R

e
EY::

To the shareholders of China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited

(formerly known as “China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited”)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Shuifa
Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (formerly known as “China Singyes Solar
Technologies Holdings Limited”, the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 83 to 276, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OUR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auwuditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RREE

BMERBEFEGHMAG(EEEE
AENBEMNBAEZEN(EEERE
AR ERTES - RFIRNZFEL A
TOEERABRELAUMRFE R EITE
HEXAEHEM SR - REFES
FHED R R M 2 B 2 A A8 12 T A ([T
A1) RMBINESE @ X ARMERE
STRIBETHEMBEEREEE - HAEE
BMESHERERRELES AT
P E R IE AR -

FAREEFZEE

PAREZSEHERBRMANEXHE R
REAAGAVBBERIBERRR/ERL
EH EUERREHSEAVMBHRRER
ETBERATRBERNE S T ETREN
BMTHELERREHREBNER - 1M
BT E - FHREEZTENFEENHE
M AL BE R e

BPERTABRSEHMAFECSEHE
HRAEHEF—HRANEL  BEA
MZEEENEME - Bt HAINEZE
BRTRBRYE AW RMRERNHERR M
AT RHIER - RFPFZEFD
EREFEEATEENEF - SEFILE
MOGREMBRERNELE R IRHER -



CE-NAFFERE PEKEREREREEBFRAF

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M % B R

Key audit matter

HREREHE

Revenue recognition for construction services

TSR AY LA T 5R

The Group derived a significant portion of its revenues
from construction-type contracts that were accounted for
by applying an input method that measures the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation in
the construction services. The input method involved the
use of significant management’s judgement and estimates
including estimates of the progress towards completion,
the scope of deliveries and services required, total contract
costs, remaining costs to completion and total contract
revenues. In addition, revenue, cost and gross profit realised
on such contracts can vary from the Group’s original
estimates because of changes in conditions.
EEENKRIOBMAREREEHILSONKRA - BEH
AESAERRBAEAR UEETE2BTEEREELN
BEMNERE B AEPREEEERE XHB KRG
BIEGTTIEE RNNEBERMERE B540K
RN TLIAZERTERAREGDRALRE - I BHEE
B2 A - KA RAE IR 8 E A ae B A AR R & B 2
EEBRAEMGTE -

The disclosures about revenue recognition for construction
services are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 4 to the financial
statements.
EAREERBWAEROBEES IR T BHRENT2.4
3%4 o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEELEREERTRUOMNEEN

Our audit procedures included:

TP EZEFBHE:

° assessing the controls over construction services
revenue recognition, cost forecast and progress billing
process;

I EERBBRAER KABAREEZEER
I8 72 Fr ey 2 1l
° reviewing the individually significant construction

contracts and the progress billings accepted by
related customers;

EHENEREZEANAREEEPERNEE

e o
EEE

° checking significant costs incurred to the delivery and
acceptance notes signed by related customers;
RERXNEEMNEAKAAREBEEFEENE

° comparing the forecast results of each significant
contract to its actual results and assessing
the historical accuracy of forecast prepared by
management;
HEERGHNTEREEEEBREBIEL B
R AT Ah B I 2 A B ) FRRI B0 B SR HERE M

° discussing the progress of construction services with
project-in-charges;
HTERAEAINREESGONEE:

o recalculating the percentage of completion of the
significant construction services;

ENAREREZERBOTIADLL

° performing physical inspection of the significant
constructions; and

HEAGHNATERRE Rk

° assessing the disclosures regarding the revenue
recognition of construction services in the
consolidated financial statements.

A E M MERANEREERERAERNRE

= o
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Key audit matter

HMRERER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract
assets

JEWE 5508 R & #) & 2 49 6 18 5F 14

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade
receivables and contract assets before impairment of
RMB3,706,413,000 and RMB2,199,246,000, respectively,
which were material to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

RZE-NAF+-A=+—B EXEZREANEKES
RIERAKNEED R /A R3706413,0007T & A R
2,199,246,000T - A EEE v e BHEAMEBE
K o

Assessing expected credit losses of those assets is a
judgmental area which involved significant management’s
judgement and estimation on forecasting future economic
conditions.
HEZEEECERGESEBABES PREXNE
I8 [ B HI B B AT R TR HA R R A B AR ©

The disclosures about the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets are included in notes 2.4,
3, 24, 25 and 47 to the financial statements.

BRI E ZHIA KA K E E 8 RE R b8 355 #5170
ISR R M E2.4 - 3~ 24 - 2547 o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREREREFLRTRNMEEN

Our audit procedures included:

BPIMEZRERF B

o assessing the controls over the Group’s estimation of
loss allowance for impairment;

A ERE G REBREBNZES

o checking the ageing analysis by customer;

REEPEWRZRNERER D

o checking the debtors’ historical payment patterns
and the bank receipts for the payments received
subsequent to year end;
REEBANBENTERXNUARFEZE KA
FREY IR AT YR

° evaluating information such as actual or expected
significant changes in the operating results of
customers, actual or expected significant adverse
changes in market conditions that may affect the
business and customers’ financial position by reading
public news and releases and discussing with
management for the estimated impact thereon; and
FRMEARFTHEMEERTHBFOTPEEE
BONERNTAHRERES  FleerBEBNERY
BRANBERKFBRT SRR E RSN E S E
EE VHEBENROTHEENTE R

° assessing the disclosures about the Group’s exposure
to credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.
G BRARANEHEESEERNEERR
BB 7% o
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

FHRAFNEMER

ERREZAHEMENEE - HLEH
BRERMABEN R BRR KR
L 3% H O A BRED 3R H R AN o

BHHSAMBERERNBERLTREE M
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S gk A
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BMTEHREAMEE - bW E - &M
BERWMEEMERE -
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B
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Wai Lap, Philip.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 April 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hit 2w W s &

o

—WEFERE PEKBEEXLEREEERAF

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ =T —NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AR T T
Revenue PN 4 3,306,519 4,416,563
Cost of sales 4 & B A (3,278,249) (3,795,662)
Gross profit E A 28,270 620,901
Tariff adjustment EEMEL 4 179,857 164,021
Other income and gains N N 5 161,563 58,574
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (125,575) (101,774)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (332,509) (358,076)
Impairment losses on financial and CREREHNEENRE
contract assets, net B8 F 58 (440,590) (325,561)
Impairment losses on inventories, net FTEREEBE TS 23 (4,236) -
Other expenses HEf A (12,381) (149,673)
Finance costs LB N 6 (414,488) (477,243)
Share of profits and losses of associates 9 15 B & A 7% | & &5 8 19 (16,363) 5,872
LOSS BEFORE TAX B Bt A B 18 7 (976,452) (562,959)
Income tax expense BT 15 % 32 i 10 (11,358) (109,268)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEEE (987,810) (672,227)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS: Hi2mEEE :
Other comprehensive loss that will not RERFEEFH»EE
be reclassified to profit or loss in TE SR E M2 mEEE
subsequent years:
Change in fair value of equity BEAFEFE8EEH
instruments at fair value through A H fib 2 4 25 7 e
other comprehensive income TEMNATFEEZE 21 639 (7,915)
Exchange differences on translation of BE B SRR ME N =58
financial statements (63,552) (112,339)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AEEHMBZ2EEBE
THE YEAR (62,913) (120,254)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR AEEEXHEEBEALRE
THE YEAR (1,050,723) (792,481)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeBEEREMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-AE  —F)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

M AR® TR ARET T

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LARA LG E1E
ViNNETEZ ¥ =N (995,228) (678,801)
IE 175 A% #E 7 7,418 6,574

(987,810) (672,227)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: LA TATEEZEEE A :
Owners of the Company VIN/NGIEZ =N (1,058,636) (800,117)
Non-controlling interests IE 125 A% B 2 7,913 7,636
(1,050,723) (792,481)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARAFEEREREEAEM
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREB
THE COMPANY
Basic HAK 12 RMB(1.004) RMB(0.814)
AR¥(1.000T ARO.814)5T
Diluted g 12 RMB(1.004) RMB(0.814)

AR¥(L.00AT ARE(0.814)T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M AR R

31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AR F T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BERERE 13 4,122,090 4,475,179
Investment properties wEYF 14 293,247 74,344
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 15(b) 209,088 -
Prepaid land lease payments TR A & A 15(a) - 211,413
Other intangible assets HEiEmpEE 17 1,605 2,058
Payments in advance FE K8 18 17,684 13,513
Investments in associates REERFIRE 19 17,825 4,429
Investment in a joint venture REERHERE 20 - 6,370
Deferred tax assets FEIERIEE E 35 3,195 1,557
Equity investments designated at fair EEREATEFEEEE
value through other comprehensive Fat A H b 2 A UK = 7 4
income m IR E 21 11,414 5,657
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFEAEHEEZFTA
profit or loss BEamemiE 22 - 24,265
Goodwill (GRS 16 6,448 6,448
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 4,682,596 4,825 233
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T8 23 171,799 69,592
Contract assets EHEE 24 2,007,873 2,119,517
Trade and bills receivables FEUE 5 RIE K ERE R 25 3,136,464 3,389,476
Prepayments, deposits and other TERNRIE e R HERKR
receivables A 26 815,826 596,568
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFEBEEZEFFA
profit or loss BaNemEE 22 5,000 -
Pledged deposits EHRFER 27 54,867 180,590
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREEEDY 27 1,082,835 216,151
Total current assets mEEERE 7,274,664 6,571,894
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables ERESRERENEER 28 1,438,054 901,520
Other payables and accruals Bt JE A FRIB K JE 5T AR 1B 29 384,425 449,257
Contract liabilities EHaE 30 58,307 105,067
Bank advances for discounted bills BRI ER ZIRITER 43(a) 38,889 -
Interest-bearing bank and other loans M EERITREMER 31 1,374,689 2,956,804
Tax payable JE 1~ % 18 22,245 20,317
Convertible bonds AR E H 32 - 96,000
Senior notes BEER 33 - 2,850,012
Lease liabilities HEARE 15(c) 955 -
Provision B 34 - 81,289
Total current liabilities mBAEEE 3,317,564 7,460,266
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31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5 AR®T R AR T T
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #BXE (&%) FE 3,957,100 (888,372)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAR
LIABILITIES 8,639,696 3,936,861
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Senior notes BEER 33 2,815,135 -
Interest-bearing bank and other loans M ESR 1T R Eftb B R 31 1,537,620 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 15(c) 7,502 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 35 86,860 87,680
Deferred income i FE UL 25 36 155,843 157,449
Total non-current liabilities BB ELTE 4,602,960 245,129
Net assets EEFE 4,036,736 3,691,732
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the AATEEAEERER
Company
Issued capital B2 17K 37 174,333 55,785
Reserves & 39 3,754,333 3,535,106
3,928,666 3,590,891
Non-controlling interests IF 12 B% B 2 108,070 100,841
Total equity A 4,036,736 3,691,732

Mr. Zheng Qingtao
BEREE
Director

BZ

Mr. Liu Hongwei

BamEsE
Director

s
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable o owners of the Company

ARAREARS
Fair value
reserve of Difference
financial assets arising from
at fair value change
Share through other ~ Statutory ~ Enterprise Safety fund ~ Exchange of non- Non-
Issued ~premium  Contributed  comprehensive reserve  expansion  Share option surplus ~fluctuation ~ Retained  controling controlling Total
capital ~ account*  surplus* income* fund* fund*  reserve®  reserve*  reserve’  profits®  interests® Total interests equity
BRATEI
BREEY
A2 FHRR
EliSatoka Eagy
ki3 BN SEEEN EERE (FER  BRE Z2EE ENR® RE EfZ KR 8

BEORE EEF BB AVEER g A BR BBBR BB EW  EE R 28
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000 RMBO0O ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB000  RMBO00  RMBIO0O RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARETR ARYTT ARMTR ARKTR ARNTR ARETR ARETZ ARMTZ ARMTR ARETR ARMTT ARMTL ARBTR ARETR

(note 37) (note 39(a)) ~ (nofe 39(b) ~ (note 39(c)) ~ (note 39(d))
(Hik37) (Hiikom) (ko) (W3E39)  (RH3k3a)
At 31 December 2017 RZF-t
tZA=t-H 5,785 796818 32913 (2405) 272904 109581 59,968 - (5227) 3035812 65,389 4401538 88795 4490333
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 FRARGHRZEN
E5Hye - - - 2405 = - - - - (2409 - - - -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 15 FRARGHRZEN
Z1RHTE - - - - - - - - - 1L - 107 - 10
Restated balance at 1 January 2018~ R=E-N\-A-H
g8 5,785 796818 32913 - 212904 109581 59,968 - (5227) 3044434 65389 4412565 88795 4501360
Loss for the year FERRE = = = = = - = - - (678800 - (67880) 6574 (672.221)
Other comprehensive incomef{oss) REERpRERE/
for the year (E8)
Changes in fair value of equity BAIEHERER
instruments at far value BirALfpRE
through other comprehensive WamERTa
income, net of tax HATEEY -
MEHA - - - (7915) - - - - - - - (7915) - (7919)
Exchange diferences on AEEERRAES
translation of financial £
statements - - - - - - - - (113400) - - (340D 1002 (112339
Totel comprehensive incomel(oss) KERRENE/ (B
for the year BleE - - - (1915) - - - - (113400 (678,801) - @07 7836 (792481)
Acquisiton of non-controling KEHBAANERR
interests of a subsidiary & = = = = = = = = = - (119%8)  (119%8) (20677)  (32635)
Transfer from retained profts EGARBET = = = - 133 538 - - - (1867 - - - -
Disposal of subsiciaries HENBAR = = = - (16%) = = = - 16% = = (250 (250)
Acquisiion of subsidiaries KEHEAA = = = = = = = = = - 2019 2919 2394 26883
Equity-setted share option asERRERE (0
arrangements (note 38) i#39) = = = = = = 8398 - - - - 838 234 10782
Dividend paid to non-controling HRHBATEER
shareholders by & subsidiary ELhE o < S = S - - - - - - - (0 o)
Establishment for safety fund suplus KUK 2E2BRER
Teserve - - = = = = = 21917 -9 = = = =
Utiisaton of safety fund surplus IRR2ELRRER
TEServe = = = = = = = (27917) - 297 = = = =
Final 2017 dividend declared BER-E-tEXH
k& - - (20916) - - - - - - - - (20918) - (20916)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F

t2A=t+-8 95785 796818 11997 (1916) 284552 14909 68366 - (138628) 2348657 56350 3590891 100841 30691732
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEE

BE®

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EOEE LN 1
Fair value
reserve of Difference
financial assets arising from
at fair value change
Share through other ~ Statutory  Enterprise Safety fund  Exchange of non- Non-
Issued  premium Contributed  comprehensive reserve  expansion Share option surplus  fluctuation  Retained  controlling controlling Total
capital  account*  surplus* income* fund* fund* reserve* reserve*  reserve* profits*  interests* Total interests equity
ROTEFE
BESHHA 2R
Ett2EYE E&29
R BN 2eREEZ hREE LEER BRE Zz2E¢ ENNE RE  E42 2R .34
ERRE  RER B DTERE g g BE BHREE B Al EE @it i ag
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
(note 37) (note 39(a)) ~(note 39(b)) ~(note 39(c)) ~(note 39(d))
(H337) (R&390a) (KaE39() (ME39() (HE39(d)
At 1 January 2019 RZF-h-A-A 55,785 796818 11,997 (7915) 284552 114,909 68,366 - (138,628) 2,348,657 56,350 3,590,891 100,841 3,691,732
Loss for the year AERER - - - - - - - - - (995,228) - (995,208 7418 (987,810)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEREMRE
for the year: Wi/ (58) :
Changes in fair value of equity RATEFEAREDH
instruments at fair value through Mt EERENE
other comprehensive income, EIANLTERY
net of tax NHEHAE - - - 639 - - - - - - - 639 - 639
Exchange differences on translation BERBREN
of financial statements EXzE - - - - - - - - (64,047) - - (64,047) 495 (63,552)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) TERENLE
for the year Wi/ (58) - - - 639 - - - - (64,047)  (995,228) - (1,058,636) 7913 (1,050,723)
Issue of new shares (note 37) TR (KE37) 118548 1,274,617 - - - - - - - - - 1393165 - 1393165
Transfer from retained profits BBaREET - - - - 5817 1,060 - - - (6877) - - - -
Transfer of share option reserve upon ~ REREEREER
the expiry of share options BRERE - - - - - - (16924) - - 16924 - - - -
Equity-settied share option RALERRESH
amangements (note 38) (Ri338) - - - - - - 3,246 - - - - 346 1,340 4,586
Dividend paid to non-controlling SREHBLAXER
shareholders by a subsidiary REMRSE - - - - - - - - - - - - (2024 (2,020)
Establishment for safety fund RURLELRBEE
surplus reserve - - - - - - - 33,908 - (33,908) - - - -
Utiisation of safety fund BER2ECRHHE
surplus reserve - - - - - - - (33,908) - 33908 - - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NFtZA=1-R 174333 2,071,435 11,997 (7,276) 290,369 115,969 54,688 - (202,675) 1,363,476 56,350 3,928,666 108,070 4,036,736

* These

RMB3,754,333,000

statement of financial position.

reserve accounts comprise the consolidated
(2018: RMB3,535,106,000)

in the

* REEHMBRRNERA  ZERHEREE
#RA A R¥3,754,333,000T (ZF —
N\ A R#3,535,106,0007T) °

reserves of
consolidated



—WEFERE PEKBEEXLEREEERAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE=%

—hE+ZA=+—RLFE

FLOWS

2019 2018
—E-AF —N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR TR ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax R 5 B &S 18 (976,452) (562,959)
Adjustments for: HUATIEEEL T :
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- - BEERZETE
equipment 13 191,696 184,248
Depreciation of investment properties HEMERE 14 4,560 1,589
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 15(b) 10,089 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T8 - £ Hb T8 & 58 2 8
payments 15(a) - 8,744
Amortisation of other intangible assets H it fm B = % 17 983 984
Impairment loss on financial and PREEHNEEREEIE
contract assets, net el 440,590 325,561
Write-down of inventories to net WRFEEn] &8 % E
realisable value 7 4,236 =
Share of profits and losses of DG 5 & A al s A K& E 18
associates 19 16,363 (5,872)
Gain on settlement of derivative HETESHM T AN K E
financial instruments . 7 - (4,916)
Gain on settlement of financial assets EAVFEF=EBEEH;
at fair value through profit or loss AEZNEREELE
W 2= 22 (1,003) -
Gain on disposal of associates S B N B Y I s 5 (36,274) -
Fair value gains on financial assets at /NS =
fair value through profit or loss ABZNEMEEND
T (E U 5 - (776)
Equity-settled share option expense Ae i s ERE AR M R S 38 4,586 10,782
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME - KERKEIER
property, plant and equipment mE B (U es) 4,187 (11,927)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/ REFINERBE ()
(gain), net gt (11,825) 63,315
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - N ol S ) - 15,367
Interest income from financial assets BAFEF=BEEEE
at fair value through profit or loss ABEHEREENT
Bl A 5 - (2,602)
Interest income A B WA 5 (999) (6,755)
Deferred income released to profit or BRI ZEEAETKRA
loss 5 (13,373) (10,118)
Provision for/(reversal of) ENEERE (DEBEYD
compensation for breach of BE18) 588
contracts, net \ 34 (67,251) 81,289
Finance costs Bh & A A 6 414,488 477,243
(15,399) 563,197
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R, GEm) (106,443) 47,012
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BEHEER DL M) 55,755 (815,028)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JE U E 5 518 K e Uk 2 i 1
hn (121,593) (275,728)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, A RIE - RE R HAMERK
deposits and other receivables FRIE R D, (38 0n) (209,280) 232,664
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills JE B 53R TE & B R 5 i
payables ./ Crd) 536,534 (396,324)
Decrease in other payables and accruals = i J& 15 X I8 & F& 51 5% I8
A (9,256) (2,087)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHABERD (46,760) (13,442)
Income tax paid B (20,740) (103,532)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating  &&EBELS (FTH)HES
activities mEFEE 62,818 (763,268)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 H ===

—hE+ZA=+—RLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF — N\
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥FT T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHEENBEERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEEW%  WMEKLXHEIEE
equipment (68,620) (524,252)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEETEE (527) (426)
Payment for prepaid land leases TEATS 4 b A f}\ RIE (3,605) (24,357)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB A - (1,245)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B B A E - 2,361
Investment in a joint venture E@é%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁ 20 - (6,370)
Disposal of a joint venture HE—HMEER 20 6,370 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value ~ # &% 2 ¥ & JEEE """"
through profit or loss AABENEREE 22 (5,000) -
Purchase of equity investments BEETEATEF=AE
designated at fair value through other B E) R A E b 2 E U = K
comprehensive income @E?&Tﬁﬁ 21 (5,000) -
Disposal of equity investment designed at &R FIEAFEE B H
fair value through other comprehensive i @J FIAEMEERE 2
income EREE - 17,100
Investment in associates REEQARRE 19 (35,000) =
Disposal of associates HEBE AR 293 -
Redemption of financial assets at fair BRI AFEFELEEZS
value through profit or loss ABERNEREE - 213,355
Disposal of financial assets at fair value  H&IR A ifﬁcﬁriﬁ/ﬁ\ """"
through profit or loss FFAEZRNESRMEE 22 25,268 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BMEMKEERZ
property, plant and equipment Fﬁ ?% A 34,287 174,921
Settlement of derivative financial Tiirfﬂilﬂ
instruments - (29,089)
Repayment of advance from third parties & =H{EE &R - 110,276
Receipt of maturity of pledged deposits 1 ¥ 17 2 &Il £ Fr 18 3K 3B 196,953 952,711
Placement of pledged deposits T A K8 17 3% (92,701) (746,935)
Deposits received for disposal of HEMBARMBEE
subsidiaries - 12,040
Interest received 2 W F B 999 9,011
Receipt of government grants for Q%7 % R 5 K 5% 45 B B
property, plant and equipment I # Bh 11,767 3,339
Interest income from financial assets at & A F 1A TEEHEF *Jr)\
fair value through profit or loss BaceMmEENT S
A - 2,602
Net cash flows from investing activities HEZHEEANRERE
R 65,484 165,042




—WEFERE PEKBEEXLEREEERAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ =T —NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

FLOWS

2019 2018
—E-AF —N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARMFT T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHEENEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Payment of transaction costs related to BB B QR M FHITHR
share issuance of a subsidiary 5 B AN 2 A 3 - (100)
Proceeds from subscription of shares REERR (D FT 15 37 1,393,165 -
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling &t Uk ﬁ% — & Pﬁ =N EIE
interests of a subsidiary w2 - (32,635)
Payment for redemption of convertible BEE AT AR E 5 2 R
bonds (10,324) -
Redemption of senior notes BOELEE - (210,775)
Repurchase of senior notes BOELEE (312,719) (31,367)
Payment of transaction costs related to ~ BRIZETELEZENRIHK
issuance of senior notes K2R 33(c) (83,137) =
Dividend paid to non-controlling XAt 46 BB A B 3E 1 A% A% R
shareholders by a subsidiary B R B (2,024) (1,011)
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMERABRIE 833,746 1,644,251
Repayment of bank and other loans BERITREMER (916,856) (1,484,022)
Proceeds from bank advances for BRI ERIRITE RIS RIE
discounted bills 38,889 =
Repayment of bank advances for ARERBRTERZEE
discounted bills - (13,722)
Proceeds from a loan from the controlling  #%2 fi% i% B & 2 B 15 7% 18
shareholder 10,000 =
Principal portion of lease payments HENRzA® EE (2,872) =
Interest portion of lease liabilities HEHEBEZAE (510) -
Payment of other financing costs S E @ §5X$ (2,199) (2,551)
Dividends paid BT B - (20,816)
Interest paid 2T F B (229,040) (338,874)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing & EBEL /(FAR) MRS
activities mEFRE 716,119 (491,622)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HEeRBESEEWEM R
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS D) FEE 844,421 (1,089,848)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HZHEENELEEY
of year 255,559 1,342,487
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, BEZXREHHHFE  H5E
net 792 2,920
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERZBRERBESZEY
END OF YEAR 1,100,772 255,559
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥FT T ARBT T
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HERREEEBYERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He RiRITES 27 1,082,835 216,151
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ EXSEREIHAB LR =18 A
maturity of less than three months ZEEBTEBRER
when acquired - -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in R KRR EKRNES 2B
the statement of financial position LREEEY 27 1,082,835 216,151
Time deposits with original maturity of REIEBBBE DR =8 A 2 7 &
less than three months TR 27 17,937 39,408
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RBEELHREXRRNEN 2R E
the statement of cash flows FBEEEED 1,100,772 255,559
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited (formerly known
as “China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited”, the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The registered office
of the Company is located at 4th Floor, North Cedar House, 41
Cedar Avenue, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, supply and installation of conventional curtain walls
and building integrated solar photovoltaic systems, as well as the
manufacture and sale of solar power products. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

On 28 November 2019, the Company issued and allotted
an aggregate of 1,687,008,585 subscription shares to Water
Development (HK) Holding Co., Ltd. (“Water Development”) at
the subscription price of HK$0.92 per subscription share under
the specific mandate granted by independent shareholders at the
Company’s SGM held on 31 October 2019 (the “Subscription”).
Particulars of the Subscription have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 November 2019.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the holding company, the intermediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company are Water Development,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong, Shuifa Energy Group Limited
(kB8R £ B AR A A, “Shuifa Energy”) and Shuifa Group Co.,
Ltd (ZkZ =B AR A7), “Shuifa Group”), which are incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

1.

RAREEER

REIKE A REE A R AR (A
R EEXNGRERMIERERA
Al [RARADR=ZZEZE=F+A=
THHERBREREFMA L AERR
BREFERAR o ARF KM EE
b 1E A 4th Floor, North Cedar House,
41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda ° AR ) & Z & E o k7 7
BB THIEFI8ZE 20055 ZE=F 0
7 A A E31#£3108 % -

FA-ARBAREMBARGER
[(AEEDETEREFGRER AR
BECINESE — BB RATARAT ~ B3 -
HERZE URAXGREEMRE
REE - FR - ARETEZXBHNME
BYEBEREE -

R=ZZT—-NF+—A=Z+NH £&
EREBIBRER-Z—NAF+A=
T—HRIHARARREFII RS E
HHEFERERERARERKRGKD0.92
BT RBERKESE(FB)ER
AR A7) ([Water Development]) 217
N B3 4 +£1,687,008,585 8% 772 8 A% 17
([REFHE]) REFHENFFEHR
ARARR_ZE—NFE+—A=+/N\H

WAE -

ARAREE(EZDRE  A2dA
HER AR - PEERD R R &K
PR AR AR B 7S & MK L #) Water
Development A & I AR EE A R £ M0
(TP EDFMAK A KEERERE
RAF([KERER]D RKEEBER
AEN([KBEEE]) -
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31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Pursuant to the special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 6 February 2020, the name of the Company and the
dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company have been changed
from “China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited A B4 &
EKGEERMIZERAER AR to “China Shuifa Singyes Energy
Holdings Limited AP Bl 7K 3% B 2 gE RS B A R A F]” effective from
12 February 2020 pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation on
Change of Name and the Certificate of Secondary Name issued
by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. The Certificate of
Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on 30 March 2020 confirming the registration of the new names
of the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

1.

RAREEER(E)

BERARABREAZST_FTF_A
BBHNSIRARR  ARAZEH R
X E S SN E T HBIChina Singyes
Solar Technologies Holdings Limited
B KGR R TR G R A Al
¥ 2 A[China Shuifa Singyes Energy
Holdings Limited 1 B 7K 3% 2 2 8¢ R &=
BEERRA] BREAREQAAZM
BREREHEREHIAMEZEREZ
EREERA_Z_TF_A+_HE
EX e BEBRRFMERRER=E
TEF=-A=THELEFMIFEEER
RIS FAEEMEBASE  BRAAA]
ZHEBERBEEEENFEE22ER
AR 01 F163B1E & & T 1 o

FRANBLARZESR

ARAEENBARZREMT

Percentage of

equity interests

Nominal value attributable to the

business of paid-up Company
Company name HMKL/ share capital ~AAFE{EER Principal activities
NCEE BEREEME BRRAHEE BAlkk FEEEK

%
Directly held:
EERE:
Singyes Engineering (H.K.) Co., Ltd. ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100%  Design, supply and installation
(“Singyes Engineering”) BB 1AL of curtain walls

BREXTRARRA
(TRETRE)

Rat  RERZEKER
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31 December 2019 —E —NF+ZA=+—
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

1.

RAREEER(E)

ERMBRRZER(E)

Percentage of
equity interests

Nominal value attributable to the

business of paid-up Company
Company name B3l e share capital ~AAFE{EESE Principal activities
A BEREXLE BERAEE B FEEH
%
Indirectly held:
MEsEA:
Singyes MRW Joint Venture Co., Ltd. ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%  Design, supply and installation
(“MRW”) B 10,0007 7T of curtain walls
Singyes MRW Joint Venture Co., Ltd. FE o HERTRER
(TMRWJ)
Macao Singyes Renewable Energy Macau = 100%  Design, supply and installation
Technology Co., Ltd. A of curtain walls
(“Macao Singyes”) FEt RERZERE
RPEBEFERBRBEERAA
(PRFIEZ])
China Singyes New Materials Bermuda US$5,200,000 62.4%  Investment holding
Holdings. Co., Ltd. @@ BE#E 5,200,000 T REER
(“Singyes New Materials”)
REEERHERER AR
(TEZEF R
Zhuhai Singyes Green Building PRC/Mainland China US$49,000,000 100%  Design, manufacture, supply
Technology Co., Ltd. @© R/ B AR 49,000,0003 & and installation of curtain
(“Zhuhai Singyes"“) walls and solar photovoltaic
KEREZECEENR power stations
BRRAOC ([HGHE]) Rat o BE - RERTERRE
RABREARE L
Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy PRC/Mainland China US$47,868,500 100%  Design, manufacture, supply
Co, Ltd. @© B/ B A 47.868,500% 7T, and installation of solar

(“Singyes Renewable Energy”)
KEREHERERARD
(TEEHER])

photovoltaic power stations
it - BE - HEREEAR

B3k 0 3
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAREEERE)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) ERMEARZER (&)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interests
registration and Nominal value attributable to the
business of paid-up Company
Company name HEMmA& share capital ~ARAFE{ERER Principal activities
ARER BRREXLH BRRAEE Bolk TEER
%

Zhuhai Singyes Xinye Electricity PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100%  Development of new energy
Technology Co., Ltd. ®© B/ B KR AR materials, and development
(“Singyes Xinye") 20,000,0007¢ of marine biology technology

KEEXSNRBEEARAAOO FERRRM R R R E
W) B

Zhuhai Singyes New Materials PRC/Mainland China RMB62,500,000 62.4%  Research, manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. ®©@ B K R AR of photovoltaic film
(“Zhuhai Singyes New Materials”) 62,500,0007C R REREENKEE

R8BSR R
ﬁﬂﬁi\\ﬂ(b) © (e)

(T3R8 B F M)

Yan'an Singyes New Materials. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 46.8%  Research, manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. @@ /R B AP AR of new materials
(“Yan'an New Materials”) 10,000,0007t ME - RERBEHMH

EzBEMMERBEERARC®
(MERHTR])

Hunan Singyes Solar Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB410,143,000 100%  Research, development,

Co., Ltd. © B/ B KR AR manufacture and sale of
(“Hunan Singyes”) 410,143,0007T solar products

HEEXAGERRERAFC M f% RERHEAR
(Mm% ) REmM

Singyes Energy-saving Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$65,000,000 100%  Research and development of
Co., Ltd. ® @ R/ B AR 65,000,000% 75 energy-saving products
(“Singyes Energy-saving”) %% K B BT 88 E

BEBEHEARAACY
(EETT)
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Place of

incorporation/
registration and

RAREEER(E)

ERMBRRZER(E)

Percentage of
equity interests
Nominal value attributable to the

business of paid-up Company
Company name HEMKL/ share capital ~AAFE{EER Principal activities
ARAERB BEREXLE BRERAEE Bt FTEEE
%

Xinjiang Singyes Renewable Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB438,270,000 99.27%  Research and design of and
Technology Co., Ltd, ©© B B K AR investment in solar power
(“Xinjiang Singyes”) 438,270,0007T projects

NEEREHERARAAC R Rt kREKGEER
((FEEE])

Hunan Singyes Green Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB912,000,000 99.27%  Research and development of
Co., Ltd. @ B/ B KR AR electricity and new energy
(“Hunan Green Energy”) 912,000,0007% WERRZEE N RFER

HEREGERRRHERDAC
(DA ekl

Gansu Singyes Green Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB74,000,000 99.27%  Research, construction and
Technology Co., Ltd. @ R B K AR operation of solar power
(“Gansu Singyes”) 74,000,0007C stations

HEREZERRBRERARY MR BRELERGEEH
(TH®&EZ])

Wuwei Dongrun Solar Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 99.27%  Research, construction and
Development Co., Ltd. ©© B/ B K R AR operation of solar power
(“Wuwei Dongrun”) 5,000,0007C stations

RARBAGEREERAROQ MR BRREEAGESI
(TRERE]D

Gansu Singyes Solar Technologies PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100%  Research, development,

Co., Ltd. © B B K AR manufacture and sale of
(“Gansu Technologies”) 20,000,0007T solar products

HREZAGREMRBRARC
(Mm@l

M7 R¥ - BERHEEAR

REEE i

97



98 China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAIREEER(GE)

(Continued)
EBHREBARZER (B)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interests

registration and Nominal value attributable to the

business of paid-up Company
Company name HMKEL/ share capital ~AAFE{EER Principal activities
NCEE BEREEME BRRAHEE BAlkk TEEEK
%

Yangjiang Singyes Green Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB184,080,000 99.27%  Research and design of and
Technology Co., Ltd. © R/ B KR AR investment in solar power
(“Yangjiang Singyes”) 184,080,0007C projects

BLEXRerRIRERARC A RethREAGRER
(HIBE))

Yangjiang Huazhi Green Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB184,829,619 99.85%  Research and design of and
Technology Co., Ltd. @ © HE /B AR AR investment in solar power
(“Yangjiang Huazhi") 184,829,6197T projects

BIERRERRGIERRE ME Rt RREAGEER
ﬁlé ;ﬁ(a) ()

(HIER])

Yangjiang Huayu Green Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB66,581,500 99.85%  Research and design of and
Technology Co., Ltd. @© R/ B KR ARE investment in solar power
(“Yangjiang Huayu") 66,581,5007T projects

BLETHERRRE HE R RREAGHER
BARARO
(BIZE=F])

Suixi Xinye Photovoltaic Electricity PRC/Mainland China - 99.27%  Research and design of and
Co,, Ltd. © B/ B K investment in solar power
(“Suixi Xinye") projects

BEEMEXRENFRAAC ME - RthREAGEER
(T&ZREME])

Zhuhai Gangxing Technology PRC/Mainland China = 100%  Research and development of

Co., Ltd. @

(“Zhuhai Gangxing”)
KEBEMEERRE

G73:3:1:0)

PEREAE

energy-saving raw material

B 58 T R 2 B RE IR A1 Y



CE-NAEFEFERE PEAKEEEXEREEBRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SRR MY &

31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

RAREEER(E)

ERMBRRZER(E)

Percentage of
equity interests
Nominal value attributable to the

business of paid-up Company
Company name HMKL share capital ~AAFE{ERER Principal activities
NEER BEREEME BRRAHEE BAL FEEEK
%
Huabei Limited © (“Huabei”) Hong Kong HK$10,000 62.4%  Investment holding
ZEERDAC ([¥8]) 00 10,0007 7T REER
Shenzhen Kangsheng Photoelectric PRC/Mainland China RMB12,008,062 46.8%  Research, manufacture and sale
Technology Co., Ltd. @@ B/ B KR AR #12,008,0627C of solar products
(“Shenzhen Kangsheng”) WR - LERHEEAGEER
AITEELERKERARRC
(TR )
Notes: BT 5
(@)  These subsidiaries were registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture (@ HEWBRARBEFRBEEZMA

(b)

(c)

(d)

enterprises under PRC law.

These subsidiaries were
enterprises under PRC law.

registered as wholly-foreign-owned

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s equity interests in these
companies were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank and other
loans of RMB2,200,507,000.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement in 2016
and a supplemental agreement in 2017 and 2018 respectively
(together as the “Agreements”) with Excel Deal Investment Limited
(the “Purchaser”) to sell 81% equity interests in Xinjiang Singyes
and Wuwei Dongrun (together as the “Target Subsidiaries”). As at
31 December 2019, the Group has received deposits in relation to
the sale of equity interests in the Target Subsidiaries aggregating to
RMB38,974,000 while the transaction has not been fulfilled.

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, a written agreement was signed
between the Company and the Purchaser to extend the long stop
date of the transaction to 31 December 2020.
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(e) 75%
Kangsheng were indirectly hold by Singyes New Materials, a

equity interests in Yan'an New Materials and Shenzhen

subsidiary of the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries has material non-controlling interests.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
“IASB”)
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing

International Financial

the International Accounting Standards Board (the
and
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments, conversion
rights of convertible bonds, and certain financial assets and equity
investments which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 RBEEE(E)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,
IAS 12 and IAS 23

2.1

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SRR MY &

31 December 2019 —ZE—hAF+=ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of IFRS 16 and
IFRIC 23, the adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

Further information about IFRS 16 and IFRIC 23 applied by the
Group is described below:

(@) IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, |FRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases
as either operating or finance leases using similar principles
as in IAS 17. IFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on
leases where the Group is the lessor.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated and continued to be
reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts
that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC
4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.
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31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant,
office premises, and land use rights. As a lessee, the
Group previously classified leases as either finance leases
or operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the
Group applies a single approach to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except
for two elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets
(elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected
by class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental
expenses under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the right-
of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding lease
liabilities (as finance costs).

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) at
1 January 2019 and included in interest-bearing bank and
other loans. The right-of-use assets for most leases were
measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@)  (Continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as
operating leases (Continued)

Impacts on transition (Continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-
of-use assets separately in the statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date
of initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend/terminate the
lease

Financial impact at 1 January 2019
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ST REERBE(E)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@)  (Continued) (@ (&)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (Continued) R-ZF-NF—B—BZH
EE(E)
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the R=ZZE—hnhF—A—RAZHES
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are BERZZE-N\F+ZA=1+—
as follows: Bz EeMERAEHERENT:
RMB’000
ARBT T
Operating lease commitments as at RZE—N\FE+ZA=+—H0HK
31 December 2018 L B A 11,636
Weighted average IBR as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—A—B®mMEFEH
EEEER X 4.75%-5.70%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at RZZE—NF—A—HMARLSE
1 January 2019 T E A 8,311
Less: commitments relating to short-term leases & : 245 BA7H & K %l 62 70 HA 7
and those leases with a remaining lease term —E-hF+ZA=+—Hzz
ended on or before 31 December 2019 AIEX 1E R 7E & B B A R 86
Add: payments for optional extension periods not Ml:R=_ZT—\F+-_A=+—H
recognised as at 31 December 2018 i8] 7S T 7R A AT 3 AE AR S R 2,497

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NF—HA—HWHEE&E 10,722
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current

and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances
Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered
whether it has any uncertain tax positions arising from
the transfer pricing on its intergroup sales. Based on the
Group’s tax compliance and transfer pricing study, the
Group determined that it is probable that its transfer pricing
policy will be accepted by the tax authorities. Accordingly,
the interpretation did not have any impact on the financial

position or performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Businesst
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform*

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current?

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material*
and IAS 8

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create output.
A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test
to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that
occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address the effects
of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB
in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHHRRBE

POLICIES
Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint venture are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and a joint venture is included
in profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint venture, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint venture is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

Merger accounting for business combinations under common
control

The acquisition of subsidiaries under common control has been
accounted for using merger accounting principles. The merger
method of accounting involves incorporating the financial statement
items of the combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been consolidated from
the date when the combining entities or businesses first came under
the control of the controlling party.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income and
conversion rights of convertible bonds at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and non-current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

DNREFEE)

RMBERERAEXBELFEZF
BEERABR HBRBHAFEFSE
BEEMEBEZECZREERH A SE
ETRAFEBRNETD H:

—Ef - BERESFEEXEERA
BW5 2 RECREH
B)FtE

—ER - mAERGHEFELE
ERRRABRYRF
EffEMEBERE LR
158 & A\ BUR)

BAERDE (e
RAFHRAFEFEM
FEEREC REERE
ABE)

E=ER -

REREEUEEERMBERRERZ
BEERBEMS  ARERSHED
RBBEHFEIBERHATE
AEERMEBEAZCKEERE
ABBAREBRAZEBZEESR
BER -

FETREENRE

WHBR RERRSEHEE(TBHE
FE GREE BIEHBEEE 2
MEE REMERFERDEE)E
TEEREANS  BISMAEENT
YWolE#E - BEMNAKREEEET)EE
FRECELFEMEREEEZEAFE
MEEXRAMEFNRSE - L E
MEEETE MEEXLTELEANTD
BYNEMEEREEAGNER
mMA - EZBERT - AT E & 58 A&
EEMENRELENERE -



118

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 SRR MY &E

31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) ~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 FESFBRRBEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced as
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

BER (&)
(by (&)
Vi) ZEBX@HEFATEA
RSk HRER
(vii) P (a)() BT B A I8 7%
BEREEATENLE
ZERB(IZEEBHNEAQ
ATEEBEEKE &

ZERIAEEEMNZ
KB MARERAEE
ZERARHEIEEEA
B R °

(viii)

ME- - BMERREBRFE

BREZTRENIN WE  BEERE
2R AR R ET AT B M AE A RE B 18
FIfk - —IEME BMERRHBEEW
KABREBEEMGEEEZEZEF
MR RAE - AEETEEREMEL
W ER B EEET R -

ME BERREHRBRABEFERR
EEMRAX  EERE  —KRRE
EHRERSTHR - SRRERE
BCRAEARENAXENEER
HEREMAELER - EAEHE
BARDYE  BERRE  BIARE
BeRBErERFRERZIBN/
ERIEE  LIRMIEHITE -



—WLEEERS PR AKBRELEREESsRELAT 121

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SRR MY &

31 December 2019 —ZE—hAF+=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value (nil to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Land and buildings 20-50 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years
Solar photovoltaic power stations 20-25 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowing
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value. Depreciation
is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
investment property to its residual value over its estimated useful
life of 50 years.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the costs of the item can
be measured reliably; otherwise, the expenditures are recognised
in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, the transfer does not change
the carrying amount of the property transferred, nor does it change
the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For this
to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups
and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of
a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held
for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Plant and office premises 3—-4 years
Prepaid land lease payments 25-50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipments that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted
for as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (Continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from

the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 180 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies

as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,

payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, bank advances for discounted bills, convertible
bonds, senior notes and interest-bearing bank and other loans.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both a
liability and embedded derivatives are classified separately into
these respective items on initial recognition. Conversion rights that
will be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of the Company’s
shares are derivative financial liabilities, which are bifurcated from
the host contract and are accounted for separately. Redemption
rights, conditional call options and put options which are closely
related to the host contract are accounted for together with the host
contract as a liability component.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

At the date of issue of the convertible bonds, the derivative
component of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and
presented as part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the derivative
component is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and derivative components when the
instruments are initially recognised. The portion of the transaction
costs relating to the liability component is recognised initially as part
of the liability. The portion relating to the derivative component is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Conversion options accounted for as derivative financial
liabilities are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

The liability component and the related embedded derivative of the
convertible bonds are presented as a separate line item on the face
of the statement of financial position under non-current liabilities,
unless the convertible bonds become mature or redeemable by the
holder in the next twelve months.

If the bonds are converted, the respective conversion options
accounted for as derivative financial liabilities, together with the
carrying value of the liability component at the time of conversion,
are transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T ESHBEBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating

to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill on an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@)  Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

(b)  Sale of electricity

Revenue from the sale of electricity is recognised in
the accounting period when electricity is generated and
transmitted.

(c)  Tariff adjustment

Revenue from the tariff adjustment which represents
subsidies received and receivable from the government
authorities in respect of the Group’s solar power plant
business. Tariff adjustment is recognised at its fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the additional tariff
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions, if any.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(d)

Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered.

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the amounts of claims because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which
are included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial
assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings/losses per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T EEHBRBEGE)
POLICIES (Continued)
Other employee benefits HibEEEF
Pension schemes Bikzit
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are AEBEFPRKEZENHB AR
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by EBEHEZXTFHE MK TEERF R
the local government. These subsidiaries and their employees are BIKE - ZEWBRARREREE A
required to make monthly contributions calculated as a percentage FAKREETIE RFHKEFE@LLH M
of the employees’ wages and salaries, subject to certain ceilings hOGRRET M ER - (BB BT
and local practices set by the relevant local governments, to the TR ENE TEREREMERF -
central pension scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the M R RETEION » REBEHRE K
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation for FERY MY B AR BREL 34 - ¥R
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made. Contributions to BN BEEREMEERSE - ZZat 8
these plans are charged to profit or loss as they become payable By 20 AR 5 P R R IR ST 2 B9 R Bl R
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme. FHEMEBEERIR -
In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined LA EFTiiss  REBINAEESTS
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme HEELZXHERBE®REEARESE
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes EOZEIHN EREBERBREEATES
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made BABMNEE ([RFESETE]) o 3k
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are SEHNEEEEAFESETEDLLM
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance B WiRIERFE ST 2|AR AR R
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme HEMBEERIIRG - B2
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently BEEAEEEESE  ABYERE
administered fund. HESRE °
Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by the Public ERYHEAEE2EERLEENGERE
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are charged to profit or NEEHER  DTREEREEZN

N
loss as incurred. & o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. No final dividend was
proposed during the year (note 11).

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. The functional
currency of the Company is HK$. The Company’s presentation
currency is RMB because the Group’s principal operations are
carried out in Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBEME(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain companies within the Group
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their profits or losses are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of these properties which are leased out and accounts
for the contracts as operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. FESHHERMEF(E)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within
its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased
asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not
be sold separately, the property is an investment property only if
an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Construction services

The Group’s revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the services, which requires
estimation to be made by management. The stage of completion
is estimated by reference to the actual costs incurred over the
total budgeted costs, and the corresponding contract revenue is
also estimated by management. Due to the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction service, the date at which the activity is
entered into and the date at which the activity is completed usually
fall into different accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in
the budget prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Where the actual contract revenue is less than expected or actual
contract costs are more than expected, an expected loss may
arise. No expected loss was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: nil).

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2019 was RMB6,448,000 (2018: RMB6,448,000).
Further details are given in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. FESHHERMEF(E)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for ECLs on receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and coverage by other
forms of insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s receivables
and contract assets is disclosed in notes 25, 26 and 24 to the
financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the IBR

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an IBR to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are subject
to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) CIT. As a result of
the fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT have not been
confirmed by the relevant local tax authorities, objective estimates
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related
policies are required in determining the provision for PRC CIT to
be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact
the income tax and tax provision in the period in which the final
outcome is determined. The carrying amount of PRC CIT payable at
31 December 2019 was RMB22,245,000 (2018: RMB18,864,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.

TESHERMEE(E)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) e FRERE(E)
Useful lives and residual values of property, plant, equipment and Y- B E - RERIREYELEH
investment properties F H FI 7 B 1B (B

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant, equipment and investment properties, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service
output of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful
life of the asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. The depreciation amount will
be adjusted if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from the
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at each financial year end date taking into account changes in
circumstances.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets with definite lives
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
sell and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of sell is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature. It could change significantly as
a result of changes in customers’ interests or competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period. The impairment provision for inventories as at 31
December 2019 was RMB4,236,000 (2018: nil).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets should be recognised when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value
of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2019 was RMB3,195,000
(2018: RMB1,557,000). Further details are given in note 35 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities should be recognised for all taxable
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except (a) when the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of such temporary differences and it is probable
that such temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Significant management estimation is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax liabilities associated with the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries, based upon the likely timing of the
reversal of such temporary differences. The carrying value of
deferred tax liabilities associated with investments in subsidiaries at
31 December 2019 was RMB86,860,000 (2018: RMB87,680,000).
Further details are given in note 35 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. FESHHERMEF(E)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a
market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 46 to the
financial statements. The valuation requires the Group to determine
the comparable public companies (peers) and select the price
multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates about the discount
for illiquidity and size differences. The Group classifies the fair value
of these investments as Level 3.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE

Revenue represents an appropriate proportion of contract revenue
from construction contracts, net of government surcharges; and the
invoiced value of goods and electricity sold, and net of value-added
tax and government surcharges.

The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year were
mainly derived from the construction and installation of curtain walls
(including solar power products), and operation and management
of solar photovoltaic power stations, which are regarded as a single
reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior management
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.
In addition, the principal assets employed by the Group are located
in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented
other than entity-wide disclosures.
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A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4, RBREFPHERRKAE)
REVENUE (Continued)

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (@ XREEEFEFEHHWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i)  DEKAEH
2019 2018
“E-RE —2-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR % AR®ETTR %
Revenue from contracts with REARF ALK
customers 'ON
Construction contracts BEAH 2,646,045 80.0 3,604,165 81.6
Sale of products i iH & 518,088 15.7 665,678 151
Sale of electricity BHHEE 132,778 4.0 119,618 2.7
Rendering of design and A K
consultation services R 9,608 0.3 13,983 0.3
Rendering of operation and REZER
maintenance service HERS - - 13,119 0.3
Revenue WA 3,306,519 100.0 4,416,563 100.0
Tariff adjustment* EEMHE 179,857 164,021
2 Tariff adjustment represents subsidies receivable from * EEMLERAEE
the government authorities in respect of the Group’s ZABZRE S IREE B b
solar photovoltaic power station operation business. KEXBBERTKE

B 2 %5 Bl -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4, RBRESHWERRWA(E)
REVENUE (Continued)

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) (@)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

REERFEFSHHKA

(#8)

()  DERAEH(E)

Geographical markets (Continued) [ & K} (&)
2019 2018
—E-hE —Z-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR % ARETTL %
Domestic - Mainland China* N — BB AR 3,077,302 93.1 4,210,093 95.3
Oceania RAEM 177,384 5.4 162,338 37
Macau s 6,615 0.2 17,462 0.4
Malaysia i 27,831 0.8 13,987 0.3
Hong Kong BB 17,387 0.5 9,380 0.2
Others Hit - - 3,303 0.1
3,306,519 100.0 4,416,563 100.0
c The place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating * AEBFEZEENE
subsidiaries is Mainland China. The principal revenues A BB FTAE # A P EY
of the Group are generated in Mainland China. KE - AREENEE
W AEEB+RBEK
BE o
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR F T
Timing of revenue recognition W A 52 B S
Products transferred at a point in EmREERILER
time 650,866 785,296
Services transferred over time PR 7% B& B 5] 46 7% 2,655,653 3,631,267
Total revenue from contracts with REHREFGLH
customers WA 4858 3,306,519 4,416,563
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4.

REVENUE (Continued)

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

Geographical markets (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue

recognised in the current reporting period that were

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of

the reporting period and recognised from performance

obligations satisfied in previous periods:

&

n

A

(@)

2o BERRKAGE)
REEREFEHNKRA
(%)

() PHRAEH (E)
bt 2 ()
TERERAAR S BRR
RUOMASHE - HERRE

SHMONAABNEE X
BREE R ZEXOE

HEERE
2019 2018
—2-nE  —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥T T

Revenue recognised that was
included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting
period (note 30):

Construction contracts
Sale of products

RBEBRNFARHE
[EGER A PN
F£30) :

BEAH
EmiiE

56,137 57,240
42,667 47,975

98,804 105,215
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 90
to 180 days from delivery, except for small and new
customers, where payment is normally expected to be
settled shortly after delivery of goods. No credit period
is set by the Group for small and new customers.

Sale of electricity

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point
in time upon transmission of electricity to purchasing
companies or grid companies. The payment is generally
due within 30 days from delivery.

Rendering of services
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as

services are rendered and payment is generally due
upon completion.

4.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations (Continued)

Construction services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 to 180 days from the date of billing. A
certain percentage of payment is retained by customers
until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the
satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over
a certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s existing
contracts was approximately RMB1,297,045,000 (31
December 2018: RMB1,284,231,000). This amount
represents the revenue expected to be recognised
in the future from construction services and sale of
products entered into by the customers with the Group.
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in
future when or as the construction work and sale of
products are completed, which is expected to occur
within 2 years.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION AND
REVENUE (Continued)

(b)

4., BEsBEHRBACGE)

n

Non-current assets (b) ERBEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —TE—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T % ARETIT %
Mainland China AR E K B 4,618,964 99.3 4,744 979 99.2
Hong Kong BB 15,813 0.3 18,567 0.4
Oceania AAFEM 15,243 0.3 15,840 0.3
Others H1 142 0.1 3,569 0.1
4,650,162 100.0 4,782,955 100.0

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes investments in
associates, an investment in a joint venture, deferred tax
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and equity investments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from sales to a single customer including
sales to a group of entities which are known to be under
common control of that customer, which amounted to 10%
or more of the total revenue is set out below:

LR EEERDIREE
i mE S B ABER
fEDFRE RAEREEZ
RE BEERBEEE BAF
EfEAREHHABRENE
MEEMEEEATEFER
HEFPAEMEEKENE

mE e

BT EEFHEH

KEMBE-EFPNHEE(BESH
BERRZEFHRESNTZ
—HEBZHEINBEAMRR
WA HI10% S A F) #HI AT -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR T T

Customer A ZHEA 386,491 1,331,272
Customer B ®FB 380,828 &

* Less than 10%
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5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

HAtb g A R W 5

HMWA RSSO T

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AR T T
Deferred income released to profit or loss BEBEEEBRBAFERSE
over the expected useful lives of the related HEEZEmmET KA
assets (note 36) (Fft 5£36) 13,373 10,118
Bank interest income RITHA B A 999 5,479
Interest income on other receivables =l A E SRSV N - 1,276
Government grants* AT B 24,840 10,615
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant  HEWE  BENREER
and equipment ) U 25 - 11,927
Gain on disposal of associates (note 19(b)) & Bt N B 9 U S (BT 5
19(b)) 36,274 =
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair BEAFEFEEEEH
value through profit or loss ABEZENERMEEND
R - 776
Interest income from financial assets at fair R AFEE B E &St
value through profit or loss ABEZRTEEENF
BUA - 2,602
Foreign exchange gain, net AN B I 2% 5 R 12,070 -
Rental income (note 15) & U A (Bt 5E15) 4,965 2,491
Gain on settlement of derivative financial HEETESm T AN
instruments - 4916
Gain on settlement of financial assets at fair #®Z A FEI= A EE
value through profit or loss (note 22) A BTN eREE
B U 25 (P 72 22) 1,003 -
Compensation income e A - 7,342
Reversal of provision for compensation for BROHERERED (T
breach of contracts (note 34) 34) 67,251 =
Others Hi 788 1,032
161,563 58,574

*

There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

grants.

* 1504 7 B % 55 1 B B R AR AR 1

HAREM -
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BERKA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERADHAT

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE—N\F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

o= AR T AR F T

Interest on bank and other loans RIT R B B KA S 44 188,626 186,329

Interest on discounted bills BRIR R EE A B

receivable 43 2,067 15,580
Interest on convertible bonds A| R ESR A 32 5,332 13,815
Interest on senior notes BEEENE 33 215,754 238,889
Acceleration of unwinding interest 0 2R 5 6] F) 8 44 - 34,127
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFE 15(c), 44 510 -
Others HAib 2,199 2,551
Total interest expense FEF Y E%E 414,488 491,291
Less: interest capitalised B B A B - (14,048)
414,488 477,243
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRBAIEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): ANEBBRBFEAERENR,(GEA)
LWT&IEZEH:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt 5E AR T ARBET T

Cost of construction services and RS K AR AT AR S A AN
design services 2,704,899 3,127,337
Cost of inventories sold EEGFEKA 427,829 544,800
Cost of electricity sold BEET NN 145,521 117,270
Cost of operation and maintenance B N M R TG R AR
service - 6,255
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEMKEITE
equipment 13 191,696 184,248
Depreciation of investment properties & &Y ¥ E 14 4,560 1,589
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 15(b) 10,089 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT L+ 1B & RRIA 5
payments 15(a) - 8,744
Amortisation of other intangible Hith | B =
assets 17 983 984
Total depreciation and amortisation WERBEHRE 207,328 195,565
Employee benefit expense (including EERMNFX(BIEES
directors’ and chief executive’s RITHRAH <)
remuneration) (note 8): (Fff 3E8) -
Wages and salaries and relevant TERF< REBETR
benefits 162,496 203,078
Pension scheme contributions BIRE FTE R 6,983 8,334
Equity-settled share option RAEE 2 ER RS
expense 38 4,586 10,782
174,065 222,194
Minimum lease payments under KERETHREEER
operating leases 3% - 7,632
Lease payments not included in the AR AHREAEBEEN
measurement of lease liabilities BERMK 15(d) 6,316 -
Research costs T 95 B AX 17,726 21,765
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A& 9,550 9,550
Impairment of financial and contract & & NMA& 4 & E R E -
assets, net: R
Impairment of trade receivables B REWERTE 2 RE 25 374,605 185,998
Impairment of contract assets EHEEZRE 24 55,889 124,411
Impairment of financial assets eRMEEBBEMAR
included in prepayments, other IH - H e RIA
receivables and other assets FEMEE)ZRE 26 10,096 15,152

440,590 325,561
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

7. RBEAEEGE)

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARMFT T ARBT T
Write-down of inventories to net FEMRE &35 FE
realisable value 23 4,236 =
Gain on settlement of financial assets &2~ F (&t & A H & &)
at fair value through profit or loss AEENEREE
EE W= 22 (1,003) -
Gain on settlement of derivative HETEem TE =
financial instruments 5 - (4,916)
Interest income from financial assets #EZRAFETEBH
at fair value through profit or loss FETAEENS M
AEMKE 5 - (2,602)
Fair value gain on financial assets at XA FEt £ HHE
fair value through profit or loss FFIAERHNERMEEN
N FE WS 5 - (776)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of LEME  BMEKIREE
property, plant and equipment HeyEsia (k) 4,187 (11,927)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR EE - 15,367
Gain on disposal of associates S E QR AR S 19(b) (36,274) -
Operating lease rental income KEHEHS WA 5 (4,965) (2,491)
Exchange loss/(gain), net N e () B (12,070) 40,871

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

8. EERTHAXME

R Em R B QA G F
(b) ~ (c) K () & B & A] (3%
BEEMNEER) ROIF 2R ENF

383(1)() *

NERERTRAHBMSMT :

is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR F T
Fees e 4,007 3,871

Other emoluments: H i % -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREYI & 2,294 3,506
Pension scheme contributions RIRE AT 83K 112 112
6,413 7,489
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

8. EBERMTHAZME(E)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

Pension
scheme

Total

Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e 2MR BiREFE
we BYR &= HE B & 48 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TRT AR®TR AR%®FTrR
2019 —E-hF
Executive directors: WMITES:
Mr. Liu Hongwei® L4 4 o E@ 1,797 698 28 2,523
Mr. Xiong Shi® e JRISLEW® 123 469 28 620
Mr. Xie Wen® A 1,232 679 28 1,939
Mr. Zheng Qingtao® BB R L - - - -
Mr. Wang Dongwei®© FREFLEO - - - -
Mr. Chen Fushan®© FRAE LA - - - -
3,152 1,846 84 5,082
Non-executive directors: FEMITES:
Mr. Zhuo Jianming® HERRL L 123 448 28 599
Mr. Li Hong® = REED 123 - - 123
Ms. Wang Suhui®© Ex=ELLO - - - -
Mr. Zhang Jianyuan®© iR R & AE© - - - -
246 448 28 722
Independent non-executive W& 3 IE AT
directors: F5:
Mr. Wang Ching T mEHLE 179 - - 179
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 5 KE & 269 - - 269
Mr. Tan Hongwei EAEEE 161 - - 161
609 - - 609
4,007 2,294 112 6,413
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHARZME (E)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
Fe o MKk RAKREFE
Be B A &= #HER B & 4 5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETRT ARBTI AREBTRT

2018 —E-)N\F
Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Liu Hongwei® L4 4 o E@ 1,577 1,120 28 2,725
Mr. Xiong Shi® BE SR E® 131 680 28 839
Mr. Xie Wen® @ XkAE 1,314 1,046 28 2,388
3,022 2,846 84 5,952
Non-executive directors: FEMITES:
Mr. Cao Zhirong BEELEE 89 - - 89
Mr. Zhuo Jianming® HERRLE 33 660 28 721
Mr. Li Hong® = REHE® 131 = = 131
253 660 28 941
Independent non-executive Y& IEENTT
directors: =
Mr. Wang Ching T ZREHE 175 = = 175
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon KR E 263 = = 263
Mr. Zhong Jishou A5 5 A& 47 - - 47
Mr. Tan Hongwei BHEEAE 111 = = 111
596 = = 596

3,871 3,506 112 7,489
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Mr. Liu Hongwei resigned as the chief executive officer of the
Company on 28 November 2019 while remained as an executive
director of the Company.

(b) Mr. Xiong Shi and Mr. Xie Wen resigned as the Company’s executive
directors on 28 November 2019. Mr. Zhuo Jianming and Mr. Li Hong
resigned as the Company’s non-executive directors on 28 November
2019.

(c) Mr. Zheng Qingtao, Mr. Wang Dongwei, and Mr. Chen Fushan were
appointed as the Company’s executive directors on 28 November
2019. Ms. Wang Suhui and Mr. Zhang Jianyuan were appointed as the
Company’s non-executive directors on 28 November 2019. These
directors are entitled to remuneration since 1 January 2020.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2018: nil).

EERTHAIME (B

(@) BIIHEENR_ZT-NAF+—-AZ
TNABHBERRBITRAR - B
REARBATES °

b RREERBXELER-F-AF
t—AZHN\BBAXARNITE
F o SRPAAERTRALN-T
~AE+—AZtNBREAAT
FRITEE -

© BEBEE ERELEERREL
EER-_ZT-AF+—A-+/\R
EZERERRMTES - X
RERKBREEN-_Z-AF+
—AZTN\BEZERAAFIEH
TES ZREEFAEB_ZT_F
F-A-BREBRME -

FRAEMESHITHARENE
ZRBEREEAM S Z L H (T —
NNEE R o
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31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2018: one director and the chief executive officer),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2018:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

BE PEKEEEXEREBBRAA

AfUREHESR

FAAfuBRHFEETEEMLE
ECENF: —UEERTHA
) BRENMSFBEN LXHE
8o M= (ZE—-N\F: =) R
RAEEFRFTRAERRSHEEF
N M SFBAT :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe  EMEREYI S 4,077 5,214
Pension scheme contributions PERANSAETE (KN 54 45
4,131 5,259

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

MERR T EERNNIFEERIFT
BeHESHEENBBMT

follows:
Number of employees
EE®A

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7t 21,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 % 7t &= 2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,500,001% 7t £3,500,0007% 7T - 1
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10. INCOME TAX

10.

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the respective countries or jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, Samoa and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax
in Bermuda, Samoa and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Macau, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria profits tax
has been made as the Group had no assessable profits derived
from or earned in Macau, Malaysia, Singapore and Nigeria during
the year.

Mainland China profits tax has been provided at the respective CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC for the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as
follows:

ECE:)

AEBEAREK B AR PR KEZH
B BB R 5 RARE B PTEE & o R
wmA RERBEEBMAEN -

REARZE BEDRRBREAHS
ERER  AEEEARMARE
EETNEBRAHEBNEMASG
i o

RERNAEE L ERNRP - SREA
o8« ETANIE K B B A g8 B A S R
A ERBORF - AR R - B2R
Faae ~ ¥ & BB F A SR ET iR
B o

FA - PERAEMRSHRIIZPBEARE
MEARERARBETEZEHMAE
MERMBROIEENBREEMS
BB R B -

AEEMERIXHEIEZAMHMOT :

2019 2018
—2-nE  —E)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T

Current — Charge for the year EHMET — FARX
— Mainland China — B K RE 13,775 63,720
— Hong Kong — &A 41 -
Deferred (note 35) i JE (B 5£35) (2,458) 45,548
Total tax charge for the year FRMRIEMAS @58 11,358 109,268
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRBFH (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at
the applicable tax rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which

companies within the Group are domiciled to the tax expense at

BASBEANRABMEBRRSKAERE
B A E AR BB AT B R ES
BMEXHERASEERYRFTERN

the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: REZHEERNAT:
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR T T
Loss before tax B 50 Al /5 18 (976,452) (562,959)
At the applicable tax rates RERREAE ( (159,649) (86,753)
Effect of tax holiday HEERHTE (a) (328) (6,857)
Losses attributable to associates & N A B (G B 18 (2,045) =
Income not subject to tax B BRI A (b) (16,376) (8,194)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR EHA X ) 47,882 82,122
Tax effect of additional tax deduction AT & B 1F N
for MEREORIBTE
— research costs incurred — BEEEHEARN (674) (621)
— motor vehicles purchased — BBERE (187) =
Derecognition of previously RIEERERNEERH
recognised deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E - 46,228
Deductible temporary differences not 74 & 5k # 32 &9 7] 1 40
recognised in the current year TR ER 97,262 51,643
Tax losses utilised from previous LRI FERERAHN
years which were not recognised HIBEE N E B
before (2,045) (35)
Tax losses not recognised AEBRNREEIE 47,518 31,735
Tax charge at the Group’s effective BEASEERMEGTE
tax rate A TR B 11,358 109,268
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

11.

(a)

(b)

The applicable CIT rate for Mainland China subsidiaries is 25%
except for certain subsidiaries that are entitled to preferential tax
rates as discussed below:

For Mainland China subsidiaries which are qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprises, they are entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%. For subsidiaries engaging in encouraged industries in Western
China, they are entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the
period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020. For subsidiaries
engaging in the approved projects of solar power station construction,
they are exempted from CIT for the first three years and are entitled
to a 50% tax reduction for the subsequent three years (“=% = i
") since their respective first revenue-generating years. Thereafter,
they are subject to CIT at a rate of 25% or 15%.

Income not subject to tax mainly consists of unrealised foreign
exchange gain and the reversal of provision for compensation for
breach of contracts.

Expenses not deductible for tax mainly consist of equity-settled share
option expenses, finance costs incurred in offshore companies and
the fair value losses on derivative financial instruments (if any).

DIVIDENDS

At a meeting of the Directors held on 30 March 2020, the
Directors did not recommend a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018 final dividend: nil).

10. FIB8 8 (&)

11.

(a)

(b)

(c)

iz B

n=
ZL BEFUEERARNEE=ZT

&=
=

b=1ITS

mEAREMBARZEBEEMS
BB ED25% » FXTHIEEHR X
Z B RERRIN

T = B BT 1B 2 B A 2 R B K B T
BARIENZEZISUZEERE -
A HP B 7 B 1 = 0 S D 1T T B
AR B-T——F—F—HEZ=
E_TFE+-_A=+—BHMEH
ZRI% 2 EBEBE - B K
FGReB IR EBEMKBAR - 8
BHERBE—SAELERARNB
MHEFER  F—FEF=—F2HE
RECEMSH  ER=FR¥H
WAERESRI=ZR=ZR*E]) - It
1% [R5 EIR25% H15% 2 T R
MEEBEH -

BEARBBALTZBIERERINE
WA RENRERERD -

AHMBERERX 2 BEERALE
HREBRERX BEFARELZE
BRAARITESBTAZATE
BERE) -

o

T TEHE=-A=F+HRTHNES

—NFFTZA=T—HIEFENRE
REB(CE-NFERERE: 8)-
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12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. KRBl EBERERBEREA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EEERER
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic loss (2018: loss) per share amount is EREAEBEECE-NF BB
based on the loss (2018: loss) for the year attributable to ordinary BEARNREBRERFEABGSE
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number AEE(CE—N\F: BHE)EFABE
of ordinary shares of 991,219,200 (2018: 834,073,195) in issue 17 8 AR B9 hn#E 5 £0991,219,200 4%
during the year. (ZZF—/\% : 843,073,195/ 5t & -
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts BREBEE_ZE—NEFR_ZE—\F+
presented for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 ZA=T—RLEFE  ARAEAKT
in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the Company’s FRBERNTEESRARRRMDE
outstanding share options were higher than the average market FHHE REELIREAFERBE
prices for the Company’s shares during the current and prior years. FEE2INERROHELAEBESRE

EHEREERAE -
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13. % -BERKRE

Solar
Office  photovoltaic
Land and  Plant and Motor  equipment power Construction
buildings ~ machinery vehicles and furniture stations  in progress Total
WAZHRME UL
THREF BERE "E REE  EREW  ERIE EEH)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR AR¥TR AR%TR ARETR AR%TR
31 December 2019 “E-AE+-B=t-H
Cost K&
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—fA—-H 1,554,081 371,362 17,760 49,225 3,129,853 193,175 5,315,456
Additions RE 693 8,854 10 18 5,729 46,999 62,303
Transfers @i 3,638 15,596 - - 24,088 (43,322) -
Disposals e (3,516) (8,850) (2,309) (2,816) (108) - (17,599)
Transfers to investment ERERAME(HFL)
properties (note 14) (254,065) - - - - (5,314)  (259,379)
Other transfer-out Hiph i - - - - - (1,255) (1,255)
Exchange realignment RS 539 - 33 241 219 13 1,045
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hAE+-A=1—H 1,301,370 386,962 15,494 46,668 3,159,781 190,296 5,100,571
Accumulated depreciation RAMERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE—-A—-AH 175,825 237,884 15,975 32,390 378,203 - 840,277
Depreciation provided for the K4 47 & & 5 (F1557)
year (note 7) 29,483 32,749 964 4,832 123,668 - 191,696
Disposals e (38) (5,241) (2,138) (1,665) (43) - (9,125)
Transfers to investment ERERAME ()
properties (note 14) (44,649) - - - - - (44,649)
Exchange realignment &5 AR 9% - 21 127 38 - 282
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=1+-H 160,717 265,392 14,822 35,684 501,866 - 978,481
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2019 R=E-NE-A-H 1,378,256 133,478 1,785 16,835 2,751,650 193,175 4,475,179
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+-A=1—H 1,140,653 121,570 672 10,984 2,657,915 190,296 4,122,090
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

13. % HBERR®E(E)

Solar
Office  photovoltaic
Land and Plant and Motor  equipment power  Construction
buildings  machinery vehicles and furniture stations  in progress Total
NG A8
THEEF  HEERE "E REE  KREW ERIE @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARKTT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETE
31 December 2018 “Z-\§tZRA=1-H
Cost KA
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\F—f—H 1,528,079 348,850 17584 46,198 2,877,364 140,763 4,958,838
Additions nE 25,141 2,482 26 3,522 315,521 209,165 555,857
Transfers i 52 = = = 153,386 (153,438) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB A = (716) - (765) = (3,315) (4,796)
Disposals HE (79) (1,468) (50) (187)  (188,964) - (190,748)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENB AR - 22,214 140 43 - - 22,397
Other transfer-out Hi g h = = = - (27143) = (27143)
Exchange realignment 5 AR 888 = 60 414 (311) = 1,061
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1+—-H 1,554,081 371,362 17,760 49225 3,129,853 193175 5,315,456
Accumulated depreciation 2 FERBE
and impairment
At 1 January 2018 R=ZE-N\&-f—H 144,270 198,321 14,704 27,156 290,410 = 674,861
Depreciation provided for the K4 & 47 & & 5 (F1357)
year (note 7) 31,388 30,442 1,185 5,040 116,193 = 184,248
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = (43) = (49) = - (92)
Disposals HE (27) (1,143) (35) (19) (28,383) - (29,607)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKB AR - 10,307 % 28 - - 10,431
Exchange realignment RS 194 = 25 234 17) = 436
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\E+-A=t—-H 175,825 237,884 15,975 32,390 378,203 = 840,277
Net carrying amount EEFE
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$-H—H 1,383,809 150,529 2,880 19,042 2,586,954 140763 4,283977
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+=A=1-8 1,378,256 133,478 1,785 16,835 2,751,650 193,175 4,475,179
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s buildings and motor
vehicles with an aggregated net carrying amount of approximately
RMB972,450,000 (2018: RMB982,056,000) were pledged to secure
bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 31(a)).

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s solar photovoltaic
power stations with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,280,636,000 (31 December 2018: RMB1,378,740,000) were
pledged to secure bank and other loans granted to the Group (note
31(b)).

As at 31 December 2019, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB253,152,000 (2018: RMB259,254,000) was in
progress. Those buildings can only be sold, transferred or mortgaged
when their relevant ownership certificates have been obtained. In
the opinion of Directors, there is no major obstacles for the Group
to obtain these building ownership certificates.

As at 31 December 2019, the right on the annual return generated
from a solar photovoltaic power station (the “Relevant Asset”) with
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB26,089,000 (2018:
RMB27,307,000) was assigned to an independent third party for
twenty years for an other loan obtained by the Group (note 31(c)).

13. % BERR®E(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

R-B-hFE+=-A=+—B  EAE
R ELENAARIT2,450,0007T
(ZZ — N\ F : A R #982,056,000
TIZAEEE TEFRABER
HEARTASBENRITREME
2 AR (MY 5E31(a)) ©

R-ZB-—h&E+-A=+—8 K@\
R B4 A R #1,280,636,0007T (=
Z—NE+-_A=+—H: AR%
1,378,740,00070) 2 A& B & F K
Gt RBEHEERERRE TASE
ERRITREMERZERLE
31(b)) °

R-ZE—NAF+_A=+—H K
mF B4 5B A R%253,152,0007T
—ZT— N\F: A R¥259254,000
TIZETEFIZMEEREELE
EHRFBEED - ZEEFERI
SHEEBNERZERTAILE
ERENIRE  cEERA  AEE
BRERBFMEARISELESKRRE
B o

RZEBE—NE+=-A=+—0H " K
REX R B ((HEREE ) REF
A A R#26,089,0007T (ZF— N\
£ A\ R#27,307,0007T) 2 € [ [@
HENERAEBMEBSZFHAZ
TFENEMERERTELE=F
(Pt #£31(c)) °

m S8 3
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) As at 31 December 2019, the right on the annual return generated
from a solar photovoltaic power station with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB572,497,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB541,882,000) was pledged to secure other loans granted to the
Group (note 31(d)).

(f) As at 31 December 2019, certain machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB7,408,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB10,886,000) (note 28) was sealed up by a court according
to the civil ruling as a guarantee for the Group’s trade payable of
RMB2,409,000 (31 December 2018: RMB4,872,000) to a supplier.

13. % HBERR®E(E)

B A ()

(e)

R-ZZE—-AE+=-A=+—8' ' K
BEREXKEUEEFEHNARE
572,497,0007c (ZE—\F+=-A=
+ —H: A R #541,882,0007T) 2
FEERENE S ANE BB H A
B R 4R (B 5E31(d)) ©

R=T—hAhF+=—A=+—8 "k
| ¥ E 4 A R ¥7,408,0007T (=
E—N\F+_A=+—H:AR¥
10,886,0007T) (fff 528) 2 & F 1
BERBRBHREMBEERES -
ERREBEERNHERZESREA
R #2,409,000(—E—\F+= A
=+ —H: AR#%4,872,0007T)
ER -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REWME

2019 2018

ZE-hEF —EN\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F R AR T T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BXMEAE 74,344 75,183

Additions NE 1,538 750
Transfers from owner-occupied properties wEEE Ay E (M E13)

(note 13) 214,730 =

Transfers from right-of-use assets HEBERFERAEEE

(note 15(b)) (Bt 5£15(b)) 7,195 -

Depreciation provided for the year (note 7) REEFHERE (L) (4,560) (1,589)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RZKHEE 293,247 74,344

Notes:

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of the investment properties
were estimated to be approximately RMB328,291,000 (2018:
RMB78,659,000). The valuation was performed by Zhuhai Dewei
Real Estate and Land Appraisal Company Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer. Selection criteria of the external valuer
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The valuation was estimated
using discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future rental income or market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, where appropriate. The fair value
measurement hierarchy of the investment properties requires certain
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

As at 31 December 2019, the investment properties were leased to
the third parties, except for certain investment properties with an
aggregate net carrying amount of RMB23,921,000 (2018: nil) were
leased to an associate under operating leases.

UEE

(a)

(b)

R-_E-NAE+-_A=+—8 &
EMENATEGTAODARE
328,291,0007L (Z 2 —NE: AR
#78,659,0007T) ° {HEHBY
BB EMK =B E T
AR ARNIT o NS E AN A B 3E
EADETSMHS - BE BUM

REAIARISEEZE - AT
1B % R 2R & U A B9 AT 52 ik 515k 48
)+t Bh K AR 5 80 [B) K8 4 2 O TR 5 R
c(WER)  RACHRBESRE
BRIEE - REMENAFEE
BREEETEATAHBEGE AL
B(E=E)-

RZFE—NAFE+=ZA=+—8" Kk
FREFE G £ A ARM23,921,000
T(ZE-—N\F - BNETRED
¥BRBEERELHET —RBEQ
BN REMETDBBEFE=H -



CE-NAEFEFERE PEAKEEEXEREEBRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SRR MY &

31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15.

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

As at 31 December 2019, the application for the property ownership
certificates of certain buildings with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB64,481,000 (2018: RMB64,246,000) was in
progress. Those buildings can be sold, transferred or mortgaged
when their relevant ownership certificates have been obtained. In the
opinion of the Directors, there is no major obstacles for the Group
to obtain these building ownership certificates.

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB7,357,000 (31 December 2018: nil) were pledged to secure the
bank loan granted to the Group (note 31(g)).

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for plant and office premises used in

its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire

the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 25 and 50

years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of

these leases. Leases of plant and office premises have lease terms

between 3 and 4 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from

assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@)

Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019)

14.

15.

REME(GE)
CETRC)

(c) R-ZE—hFE+-—A=+—8 " E@A
FEL A AR 64,481,0007T (=
T—N\F : AR¥64,246,0007T) 2
ETEFZYEERIEEERE
BREEFR  ZEEFRNEEAR
BREESERTLE  #EER
B-EERE AKENEZEE
FHERBZSWEE KEH -

(d RKRZE—hEF+ZA=+—8"
AEBEERERFEOARY
7,357,000 (ZE—NF+=A=
+—B:E)NETREMEERE
FAEEMRITERZERHFE
31e)) °

HE
AEEEREEA

REBBRAREEBLZENRE R I
REMEMNHEESL - BIRAIEL—
RMERFAmEERBRAEL - A
B G251 504% @ MBEZELHHEE
R - TS B8 S HMEMFKIE -
BERHEAEYEHHEBABEN T3
BAF - — T AEE A AA
SEUIATERZERSEHEESE -

@ BENLHWHEEAR R =F—/I

F—H—HZH)
RMB’000
ARBTF T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-N\F—A—HNERE 198,964
Additions NE 21,193
Amortisation charged for the year (note 7) N Z ET IR B B 5 (P 5E7) (8,744)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R_E—N\F+-_A=+—HBZKEHAE 211,413
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15. HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued) rEBERAEBAE)
Right-of-use assets b) FHEELEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and FAREEFEAEEENKRE
the movements during the year are as follows: BEREZEFHMT:
Plant and Prepaid
office land lease
premises payments Total
HER FE AT £ i
WAEYE HERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT ARBTT
As at 1 January 2019 R=ZE—hF—H—H 6,706 215,429 222,135
Additions NE 1,296 3,605 4901
Terminations Rk (679) - (679)
Transfers to investment properties & % Z= 1% & ¥ %

(note 14) (B 3£14) = (7,195) (7,195)
Depreciation charged (note 7) TR T & (Mt #E7) (2,360) (7,729) (10,089)
Exchange realignment PE 58 B 15 = 15
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF

—A=+—H 4978 204,110 209,088

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s prepaid land

lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB78,087,000 (2018: RMB80,344,000) were pledged to
secure bank and other loans granted to the Group (note

31(f)).

R=ZZE—hF+=-A=1+—8 "
AEBEEBEDFENAR
#78,087,000L (=& — )\ £
AR #80,344,0007T) K% T 18

L E R

RERRTAE

B H SR1T R E M B R 2 HE R (M

F31(f) °
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15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE(E)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (continued)

At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s prepaid land
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB104,392,000 (2018: RMB108,317,000) were sub-leased
from certain grantees of the land use rights and therefore
the relevant land use rights were not registered under the
name of the Group and they cannot be sold, transferred or
mortgaged by the Group.

AEBEREEAGE)
b) RAEESEE

RZE—NLF+ZA=+—
B ASEE@MFEHNARE
104,392,000 % (ZZF—\F : A
R ¥108,317,0007T) B & F 78
B ERBRNME T L
Hh {5 PR AR A 9 A Lt A
AL AL EREY
FUAREBERERT  A5E
N ETHE  EERIRIE

(c) Lease liabilities c) MHEEARE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FAHEEENEREREY
during the year are as follows: T
2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ART T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B®ERHEE 10,722
New leases igHEE 1,296
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 4 A& 52 89 A 2 3% 0 (B 5£6)

(note 6) 510
Payments (N (3,382)
Termination Ak (702)
Exchange realignment bE i, & 13
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-ZA=+—HZEHAE 8,457
Analysed into: DA

Current portion R EEB 955

Non-current portion SEmE D 7,502

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
47 to the financial statements.

HEBENI B R TRE
MR TLTAHE -
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15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

15. HE (&)

FEBEZEBEAGE)

@ NEZAEIANEHEFHEN
EREBINWOT :

2019
ZE-hF
RMB’000
AR® TR
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HE & E 2 F E(E6) 510
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRAEEE ZIMER(MET)
(note 7) 10,089
Expense relating to short-term leases and the BHEHEERFSKERR =N
leases with remaining lease terms ended on or FH+—A=+—HsZAIE LA
before 31 December 2019 (included in selling HEEBENRIXGIAEER D
and distribution expenses and administrative SHFASZ RITERAZ) (M)
expenses) (note 7) 6,316
Total amount recognised in profit or loss REZANERNESEHE 16,915

()  The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed
in note 44 to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of
certain of its buildings under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was RMB4,965,000 (2018: RMB2,491,000)
(note 5).

e BEAEFHENRSRHAER
B R iR 2 B B B R R
BeRESBRPBEHRME
AANIREE -

AEBERHAA

AEBREBECERETHHBER
EME(MFIHREETEF - A
ERF—RELBELZNRES A
RERBERTREHAZRS - &
SERFARRNASKRABAR
#4,965000L(ZE—\F: AR
2,491,0007T) (B 5£5) °
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments

receivables by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

15.

HEGE)
AEBERHBAGE)
R-B-AF+-A=+—R %%

BREEAPITVNTARBBELE
HERARBEEENORBEEE

RIBWOT

2019 2018
—2-nE  —EN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT T AR T T
Within one year —F R 8,309 2,019
After one year but within two years —EWF 7,957 400
After two years but within three years WE=F 3,943 =
20,209 2,419
16. GOODWILL 16. BHE

2019 2018
—E-hF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Cost and net carrying amount AR BR TR B 6,448 6,448

Impairment testing of goodwill (SR RN

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
Shenzhen Kangsheng cash-generating unit (“Shenzhen Kangsheng

CGU") for impairment testing:

BREBEHESNBENIEER
YERReELEEM(RIIERRSE

B A A ) R BB
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 19.8% (31 December 2018:
23.35%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the industrial products unit beyond the five-year period is 3% (31
December 2018: 3%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The budgeted revenue is based on the
historical data and management’s expectation on the future market.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross
margins achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Pre-tax discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development
of the cash-generating unit and discount rate are consistent with
external information sources.

16.

7' (&)
B LB R ()

RYIERBRER € B A B R AT E £ 58
DIREBEFERAEEFERESRE R
BHENTEHVBEESRRER
EEAEE BARBEESREEA
M ATERIRE B19.8% (ZF—N\F+
—H=+—H:23.35%) - ARHET
FEmBEMAFHINR SR ERE
RER/3I% (ZE—N\F+ZA=1+—
H:3%) e

EZZT—NF+ZA=+—HR=ZF
—N\FE+ZA=+—BFIERES
EXEMNFEREEFTERERATR
F o TNHMTERERERESRE
TER S B ETRENRD S E S
REBK:

FERA — REWAERE L BUE
MERBHARKRMSHOERY -

HEEFE — NFREFEA—F
BOTFHENXSER  RETRE
ENENBE - BEENRIZEHR
KW ERTEH TS R ML

HATAA R F — FI{E MBI X Rk
MRl B X R R BOR Y| R R IR & B
TENBENEERR

DERTREELEBEMHISERMEE
T B B R AR A (B B E SN ERE B K
B2 e
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16.

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The Directors had estimated the reasonably possible changes in
those factors and acknowledged that, even if the most unfavourable
possible values were assigned to those factors, the recoverable
amount then calculated, after incorporating any consequential
effects of such assignments on the other variables used to measure
the recoverable amount of the Shenzhen Kangsheng CGU, would
still exceed its carrying amount.

7' (&)
B LB R B ()

EFECRA%ZFRENAEAREE
B WHER - AERS KA L
BENPRETZEREZ  EARGERII
BERRCELSUMNAKEEERNE
i 8 & 77 T A 5 B8 5 AL & (E {7 BB
ZEENTER  FENTROSR
DisBEEREE -

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HttEEEE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Software Bt
Cost 2%
At 1 January Rn—H—H 6,626 6,394
Additions NE 527 426
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QA - (201)
Exchange realignment PE X 58 & 5 7
At 31 December Wn+=ZA=+—H” 7,158 6,626
Accumulated amortisation B £
At 1 January ®n—A—H 4,568 3,579
Amortisation provided during the year B S B (BT RET)

(note 7) 983 984
Exchange realignment PE H 5 & 2 5
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 5,553 4,568
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,605 2,058
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18. A FIE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Advance payments in respect of: LB BBy FE 1T 50 0F -

Prepayments for a patent B F| 2 B FRIE - 3,600
Purchase of machinery 0 B 23 16,974 5,580
Purchase of office properties BENRAZME - 3,036
Others HAh 710 1,297
17,684 13,513

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE QTR E
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR T T

Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMRE @ BEKA 36,200 40,820
Share of losses of associates D {REE & N E]E 1B (18,375) (36,391)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBRBERAIRE Z

investments in the associates REAE 17,825 4,429

The Group’s trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities
balances with the associates are disclosed in note 42(c) to the
financial statements.

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no material associates
of the Group during the year.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held through
subsidiaries of the Company.

7 £ 5] B Bt 28 R O B UCE 5 BROR -
BHMEEREGMNABEHRRMBRE
B FE420) NI R -

EEZRR FAXKEY ESKEE

NG

REBREE QAR IREEBAAT]
MEARREE -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. REEERBIRE(E)
The movements of unlisted investments are as follows: JEEMIEEZEHHI AT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥ET T

At beginning of year RE ) 40,820 40,820
Additions NE (a) 35,000 =
Disposals & (b) (39,620) -
At end of year RER 36,200 40,820
The movements of share of losses/(profits) of associates are as DIEEERREER S Caf)) 2 EEH
follows: BN
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
At beginning of year RE ) 36,391 42,263
Share of losses/(profits) for the year ~ ANF[E 51k
&8GR 16,363 (5,872)
Disposals i} {5 (b) (34,379) =
At end of year RER 18,375 36,391
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group invested a total (a) BE_Z—NFE+-_A=+—81t
of RMB35,000,000 in Weining Xinye Renewable Energy Technology FE-AEEFMKZOHERLE
Co., Ltd. and Hezhang Xinye Renewable Energy Technology Co., Ltd. Fee R ER AR R EFERN
on their incorporation. EREEAERAGAHREBEEARE

35,000,0007T °
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19.

20.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
of its equity interests in three associates for a total consideration
of RMB41,515,000 to different independent third parties, which
resulted in a gain on disposal of RMB36,274,000 (note 5). The
considerations of RMB41,222,000 were not received and recognised
in other receivables as at 31 December 2019 and RMB29,720,000
has been received subsequent to the reporting date.

No further losses (2018: RMB15,790,000) were not recognised
in profit or loss during the year due to the share of losses of an
associate exceeding the Group’s capital contribution, for which the
Group has no obligation.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

19.

20.

REBENRRE (E)

by BHE-Z-—HhF+-—A=+—8L
FE AEERTRBYLE=FH
EER=-MEBERARNKE B8R
8 A\ R#41,515,0007T © B H &
U 2% A R#636,274,0007T (Fi5E5) °
R=ZZFE—NLF+=-—A=+—8 "' X%
I B (B B A R #41,222,0007T -
A R#29720,0007t B R R & B H
% U ER -

HRAARNEBE (R E AR EEER
AEEMTEETNEBTERS
WEHE—FEER(CT—)\F: ARK
15,790,0007T) R A F & 7 18 7 N T#

.
=7
o °©

REELEERE

2019 2018
—8-hE ZFN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥T T

Share of net assets (5 & EFE

- 6,370

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed
of its equity interest in Yijun Tianxing New Energy Co., Ltd. for a
consideration of RMB6,370,000 to an independent third party as
the investment no longer coincided with the Group’s investment
strategy. No profit or loss was recognised through the disposal.

HEZFT-NF+-A=1+—HBLHF
g - REBE MK EARH6,370,0007T
M—EZBUE=FHEEREEHR KX
FET LR AR AR RIRRHE - TIERZ
HETHENEEK R EREEARR o
WERRALEFEEREMER -
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21.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR

21.

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

EERBRAVEFEAH

SEITAHMEERER
HRARE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARB T ARBF T

Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair

BERBEATEFEBREZS
AHMEEEREROBRERE

FLTRAKE RAFE:

value:
Weihai China Glass Solar Co., BAERRIEERR AR
Ltd. 5,911 5,272
Jiuhua New Energy Management NEFEREEFRAA
Co., Ltd. 380 380
Xi'an Singyes Metro Media Co., 78 % B 3 B B R A A
Ltd. 5,000 =
Others H A 5 5
Exchange realignment M H R 118 =
11,414 5,657

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair

value through other comprehensive income as the Group considered

these investments to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a fair value gain of
RMB639,000 (2018: fair value loss of RMB7,915,000) regarding
the equity investment in Weihai China Glass Solar Co., Ltd. was

recognised in other comprehensive loss. The fair value measurement

of the equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive

income is categorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

HRAEERSZEREBRRIL
Bl AR B P R RE M 3R

REATFEFEAEZEHFTAEME
E R °

BHE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—-BL
FE BRERBTRAEEARD
ANRAKRENAFEREARE
639,000T(ZE—/\F : A FEEE
A K #7915,0007T) 1A H ftb 2 T &5 18
iR - MAFEFAEEEEFHAA
Hp2EREROBRAIKENRFE
AENBREATEERE=ZELA -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018

—E-hF AL

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBT T

Life insurance contracts ASREBEH - 24,265
Structured deposits EEETR 5,000 -
5,000 24,265

The fair value of the two life insurance contracts (the “Insurance
Contracts”) represented the cash surrender value of the Insurance
Contracts entered into between the Company and an international
insurance company in July 2015. The Company is the policyholder
and beneficiary of the Insurance Contracts. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group settled the Insurance Contracts
for an aggregate consideration of RMB25,268,000 with a gain of
RMB1,003,000 (note 5) recognised in other income.

The structured deposits at 31 December 2019 were issued
by banks in Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest. The structured deposits are with expected rates of return
(not guaranteed) at rate linked to 3-month London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR").

MBEBASRBREHTRBREHNDHA
F A AN R HE—EERRR AR R
—E—RAFt ATV RBRELONEL
& ARAARBRENMIZRAR
FRABE-_ZEZ-—NAFE+-A=+
—BIEFE AEBNBREARE
25,268,000 T & E R E K » Wz A
R #1,003,0007T (B 5E5) 7 H fth I 25

R-ZF-NF+_A=+t—HNEE
HERBPBEARERITEST - ZE5F
AR HEDBELSEAFEFERR
EPAABRRNEREE  HARE
BHNRERELIFARINAE RF
B ABUETF RO REECIR
H)E={E A fRBBRTRZERE (R
FIRITRXKE D B -
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 7€
2019 2018
—E-nE  ZBN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARET T

Raw materials R 48,300 41,384
Finished goods 72 X 127,735 28,208
176,035 69,592
Inventory provision FE#E (4,236) =
171,799 69,592

24. CONTRACT ASSETS 24, EHNEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F —ZT—)N\F
t=A=+-8 t-A=+-~8 ~A—8
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETT AR®TE

Contract assets arising from: BERBEEZ
EREE:
Construction services® RO 2,078,223 1,801,000 976,179
Retention money receivables?® ERERE 121,023 454,001 463,794
2,199,246 2,255,001 1,439,973
Impairment VR (191,373) (135,484) (11,073)

2,007,873 2,119,517 1,428,900
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

(1)

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from
construction services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on successful completion of construction. Upon completion of
construction and acceptance by the customer, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

At 31 December 2019, the retention money receivables from the
contract customers amounting to RMB121,023,000 (31 December
2018: RMB454,001,000) were still in warranty period. Retention
money receivables are normally collected within two to five years
after the completion of the relevant construction work.

The Group’s contract assets included net carrying amounts generated
from the Group’s associates of RMB142,474,000 (31 December
2018: RMB19,356,000) (note 42(c)).

Management expected that the majority of the above disclosed
contract assets as at 31 December 2019 will be recovered or settled
in two to five years.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, RMB55,889,000 (31
December 2018: RMB124,411,000) was recognised as an allowance
for ECLs on contract assets. The Group’s trading terms and credit
policy with customers are disclosed in note 4 to the financial
statements.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract

assets are as follows:

24. ERNEE(E)

1) ANBEENTREERBEAE
R ARRENEIUAZERD T
BRGNS - EEF TRZENRIK
% BERIEGNEENEEEND
HERKRESRA -

2 R=ZT—hhFE+=ZA=+—H8 %
BANBEFHNEREREARE
121,023,000 (=2 —N\F+=A
=+ —H: A R#454,001,0007)
MEERBAN - BRERSESE
RTEHBREETRTTIERN_-E
FFAUYER e

REBHNANEEBEANEEH
BRNREAEMEAFEARE
142,474,000 (ZE —NF+= A
=+—H: AR#19,356,0007T )(f}
F£42(c)) °

EREHEN  LMBEBEOR=_Z—
hE+—A=+—BHKREDAH
BEER-_ZAFAKEXEHE

BE_T-NAF+_-_A=+—H
IEF E - A K #55,889,0007T (=
Z-NF+ZA=+—H:AR%
124,411,0007) R BRAKNEETR
HERBERNEE AKEEZTF
B2 5 16K e M5 B R B X B 75
R M A -

EBHEEREBEBRENESHNT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT T ARET T

At beginning of year 7 9] 135,484 11,073
Impairment losses, net (note 7) SRl (B /&5 18 7 B8 (M 5E7) 55,889 124 411
At end of year NG 191,373 135,484
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24,

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates for the
measurement of the ECLs of the contract assets are based on
those of the trade receivables as the contract assets and the trade
receivables are from the same customer bases. The provision
rates of contract assets are based on days past due of trade
receivables for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and coverage by other forms
of insurance). The calculation reflects the probability weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s contract assets using a provision matrix:

24,

BRNEEE)

FEREAME BB EERETRE
o U EBRHEREBX - FES
MEENEHREEBBENBERIR
BREEZFAFR  BRANEE
REKESHBARBRA -FPER
BREENBEBEXTIREAEBRU
ERRANSEREFP2ABIRER
A R H AR AR R e &6 B 79 8 IR
B RENBMRYE - ZAER
BRTYBEXRMEGER EREREEEN
RBREEHANESNERBEEMN -
B AT MR R E MR E
BMAXEER -

TXHIFHEERBEBERESAE
BANBEENEERBRNEH

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE—N\F

+=BA=+—H +-—RA=+—H

ECLs rate TEAEEEEX 8.70% 6.01%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREF T

Gross carrying amount WEREE 2,199,246 2,255,001
ECLs EH{EEEE (191,373) (135,484)
2,007,873 2,119,517
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25. EWESREREREE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
Trade receivables e Z 5 7R IE 3,706,413 3,590,244
Bills receivable JE W 3= 45 32,349 26,925
Less: impairment R E (602,298) (227,693)
3,136,464 3,389,476

The Group’s trade receivables included net carrying amounts

due from the Group’s associates of RMB36,391,000

RMB272,054,000), which were repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the major customers of the Group (note 42(c)).

The Group has pledged trade receivables of approximately
RMB2,169,056,000 (2018: RMB19,588,000) to secure bank and

other loans granted to the Group (note 31(g)).

Credit terms granted to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

Sale of products

For the sale of products, the Group normally grants credit periods
ranging from three to six months to major customers. Trade
receivables from small and new customers are normally expected
to be settled shortly after the delivery of goods. No credit period

is set by the Group for small and new customers.

AEENERES KRB REEKAE
SEBEARREREAFEARY
36,391,000 (=T —/\F: AR ¥
272,054,0007T) * It AR EE £
ZE P =B KRR 2 E W E M=
42(c)) ©

REBERIFEKE S RBEHARE
2,169,056,0007C (=& —/\4& : AR#&
19,588,00070) fE & % T 748 & E &) iR
TREMER 2 HE R E31L) °

BRI AEEXERPHNEERNT:
Em#EE

HEMPEMS - ~AEB—RETE
ERPNF==2EANEEH - XK
BNE KRBT FHEWE S RIER
%ﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%%*ﬁ%\ﬁﬁ:Z&iﬁﬂ#

Kﬁgﬂiﬁ‘i NIRRT IRR PR E

EREE|
l:l/\
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Sale of electricity

The Group’s trade receivables from the sale of electricity are mainly
receivables from the State Grid Corporation of China (the “State
Grid”). Generally, trade receivables are usually settled within 30
days from the date of billing.

Construction services

The Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period
granted to its construction contract customers. The credit periods
for individual construction contract customers are considered on a
case-by-case basis and set out in the construction contracts, as
appropriate. In the event that a project contract does not specify
the credit period, the usual practice of the Group is to allow a credit
period of 30 to 180 days.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the billing date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

25.

EH&)(E%%’(IE&EH&%E

ENHE

kY

Mt

/N

ns

7

AEBREENHENEYE S A
TERERUEERREBARATERE
WDRE - —KRME - BREZKIEA
—REZEBMEF0BERNEIE -

BER%

AEBYERTHRETIREPRE
EGi—mEEH - @AREETER
FOEEHREBME - XHARE
EENP(MEES) - W—HEEEL
RATAEES  AAKRENED R
SN FI0HEIB0HMEEH -

REmERR  ZREEARRINERE
BRBTENEKESRARER
REKREOFTMOT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —EN\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR T

Within 3 months =EAR 955,555 426,591
3 to 6 months =& ~AA 450,123 445,343
6 to 12 months NETZ@EA 243,007 1,052,722
1 to 2 years —EWE 817,528 1,374,077
2 to 3 years e =F 622,769 90,154
Over 3 years =F E 47,482 589
3,136,464 3,389,476
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 25.

Construction services (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

JE

I

=

EEREREBEREREE

T

/\\

BERK(E)

EKEZFEREBEEGNE
LUE

2019 2018
—8-hE ZFN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥T T

At beginning of year R E #) 227,693 42 895
Impairment losses, net (note 7) TR B 5 18 F RE (M 5E7) 374,605 185,998
Amount written off as uncollectible 58 A 8 5 W B 5B - (1,200)
At end of year RER 602,298 227,693

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and coverage by other
forms of insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

REBEAMRBBRBREELETRE
oI U EBRBEEEE - BEX
DEREABEUBEERA (EFPE
ARkEMBRREABELE) NS @
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬂﬂé’]ﬁﬁﬁlﬂ%{%rﬁ ° #& &t
ERMEATMESLER  ERHER
Rk ERHAE E’]ﬁ?ﬁiﬂﬁ%lﬁ 2
AR S0 Be R 248 8 {6k 1 TR B O & 32
KA SEE R o
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31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. EWWESGREREVREE
(%)
Construction services (continued) BEER®(B)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on TR AEEFRABREREAER
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: ERESZENEERBER :
As at 31 December 2019: R-ZE-hF+=-A=+—8:
Past due
gt
Less than Less than Over
Current 6 months 12 months 12 months Total
Bl &3 ~ME A +=@A +={@A #ot
ECLs rate FEHEERBEX 5.30% 15.25% 12.25% 27.62% 16.25%
Gross carrying amount BEETEE
(RMB’000) (ANR¥F77x) 1,379,871 309,283 489,406 1,527,853 3,706,413
ECLs (RMB'000) BHEEES
(AR F7T) 73,169 47,170 59,963 421,996 602,298
As at 31 December 2018: RZE—N\FE+_A=+—8:
Past due
%0 HA
Less than  Less than QOver
Current 6 months 12 months 12 months Total
B AR ~MEA +=ZEA +=EA Bt
ECLs rate FEHEEEBEX 2.05% 4.55% 9.16% 13.93% 6.34%
Gross carrying amount BEETEE
(RMB’000) (ANR¥FIT) 864,278 1,101,228 1,393,456 231,282 3,590,244
ECLs (RMB'000) EHEEEE
(ANR¥F7T) 17,719 50,056 127,702 32,216 227,693

199



200

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 SRR MY &E

31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. AFHIE  RERHME
RECEIVABLES ]

2019 2018

—E-hEF AN S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARET T

Prepayments to subcontractors and suppliers T84 % 82 78 M 4 f& i 5018 113,504 69,133

Deposits e 47,491 58,601

Tariff adjustment receivables* JE U (& i Bh - 335,830 194,844

Other receivables H fth JiE W 5% I8 346,341 293,720
843,166 616,298

Impairment BB (27,340) (19,730)
815,826 596,568

& The Group’s tariff adjustment receivables from the sale of electricity * AEBEREENHENEREERH

are mainly receivables from the State Grid. Tariff adjustment
receivables represented the government subsidies on renewable
energy for ground projects to be received from the State Grid based
on the prevailing government policies.

The Group has pledged tariff adjustment receivables of
approximately RMB322,290,000 (2018: RMB182,340,000) to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 31(h)).

BEIBZRBEEREMWE KRR -
& 5 (B 8 B FE AR PR 3R 1T BUR BUR
% 17 B 2R B 48 MR 2 P B AR BE R 3
EIEE B

AN B 2L A R #322,290,000
TT(ZZ —\F - A R #182,340,000
TONEKREBHEERR TALHE
B R 17 B 3R 2 42 fR (B RE31(h)) e
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. ANNIE RERHEME

RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of financial
assets in prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as
follows:

Wk E ()

BNRIE - BE M EMRKHIEN S
MEEREBEEREBEESHINT:

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR F T

At beginning of year REH) 19,730 4,578
Impairment losses (note 7) BB & 18 (M 5E7) 10,096 15,152
Amount written off as uncollectible i 88 A A W Bl 5K 18 (2,486) -
At end of year RER 27,340 19,730

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering ECLs, which are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

In determining ECLs for prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, the Directors have taken into account the historical
default experience and the future prospects of the industries and/
or considering various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information, as appropriate, in estimating the probability
of default of each of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
occurring within their respective loss assessment time horizon, as
well as the loss upon default in each case.

AEBR2EREBRCEREB
FEREBEXEZHEREAMNMEE
HEEBBRELREST - BEXH
REE R B RRIRE B
RIEBRKZBEER

EEEAMNKE REREMEK
RENRHEEEER  ARAES
ERBERITENELENERRIT
EARAIR BEESAENGEERE
NHE - ReREMBEUKREERLS
BHBKFERREEANEOME
ARESEBERTHERRNNE - ZE
ERRBALEERENZREINERK
IREVEE M
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

27. RERBAEEFEYURE

PLEDGED DEPOSITS HEXR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR F T
Cash and bank balances BEeRIRITHER 1,082,835 216,151
Time deposits E B 17 3K 54,867 180,590
1,137,702 396,741
Less: pledged time deposits for: B BLATIEE 2 IR E B K
Bidding guarantee TEER 500 1,553
Short term performance guarantee MHEIE A ER 4,574 12,669
Bills payable (note 28) &S 4% (B 5E28) 11,811 49,663
Frozen deposits* BREFR 37,982 19,993
Pledged for litigation** Y FA A < - 13,136
Letter of credit = A& - 12,615
2019 Senior Notes —E-NFEEERE - 70,961
54,867 180,590
Cash and cash equivalents BHehkIReEEY 1,082,835 216,151
@ As at 31 December 2019, deposits amounting to RMB25,464,000 * RZEBE—NF+_A=+—0 ' AR

(31 December 2018: RMB19,993,000) were frozen by courts to
secure the Group’s payables to certain suppliers (note 28). As at
31 December 2019, RMB12,518,000 (31 December 2018: nil)
was sealed by a court as Singyes New Materials has been named

as a defendant in a lawsuit in a product quality dispute arising in

the ordinary course of business. Further details of the lawsuit are

included in note 40 to the financial statements.

xx As at 31 December 2019,

no deposit (31 December 2018: *x

RMB13,136,000) was held at bank as guarantee for a closed

litigation.

#25,464,0007t (ZE—N\F+=A
=+—H: AR#19,993,0007T) 7
R AP RE - FARSEREMNE
T R RIBAER (T 5E28) - B
—E-AFt+-A=+—H8 ARE
EFMHR —SREAEERKBE
REARERE 24 B IR BOFRA
FH5 AW E - AR12,518,000
T(ZE—N\FE+=_A=1+—8: &)
WAEAREH - BEAFAZE—FF
15 3 R B 75 ) R M 5240 o

RZZE-—NAE+ZA=+—H 1
B(CE-N\FE+ZA=+—H:A
R #13,136,0007T) 17 3 # 1 # £
RIT - (ERIFAFARDBORESL ©
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 27. RERBSEBYURKE

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

The Group’s cash and bank balances and time deposits were
denominated in the following currencies:

HERGE)

AEBRERBTEFARERZF
AT 5 E & 51(E :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR T T

RMB equivalent amount: ARBESESE:
RMB AR 1,083,814 304,456
US$ =TT 2,227 74,134
HK$ BT 45,162 13,602
MOP R P TT 1,307 1,504
EUR B 7T 9 1,178
TOP % 0% N 341 1,142
MYR W R 4,789 722
NZD AT - 2
SG$ T 53 1
1,137,702 396,741

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and one year, among which RMB17,937,000 (31
December 2018: RMB39,408,000) are within three months and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

ARBIAERE AR ASEMER -
AT - AR R T BK [ 9 S BE B IR 14 )
RiEE  SERNEEERE A&
BEEBEBERERLEINMNERERN
RITBARBLABEMLER -

RITHEEERRITERNRZ F
BARFE - THERZEREN
T—HZE—F  WIEBEHTHT
K EFTE - HRARK17,937,0007T
(ZE—N\F+-A=+—H: AR
39,408,0007T) 2 17 X B & = 18 A LA
Ao RTETFRERGEREFAILES
WEFARHERDE - FERTFHETT
q:n °
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28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date or issuance date,
where appropriate, is as follows:

CEHESREREANRE

RBEHR  ERNBREHLETA
HERFBERME) St EH N E H K
AERERNEBRNKREDTOT:

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZE—)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR ARBTF T

Within 3 months =@AAR 715,387 414,373
3 to 6 months =FNEAA 292,124 259,914
6 to 12 months ~NE+T=@A 228,644 137,542
1 to 2 years —EWF 147,537 43,808
2 to 3 years WE=F 32,708 22,021
Over 3 years =FLAE 21,654 23,862
1,438,054 901,520

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within one to six months.

As at 31 December 2019, certain machinery with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB7,408,000 (31 December
2018: RMB10,886,000) (note 13(f)) and frozen deposits of
RMB25,464,000 (31 December 2018: RMB19,993,000) (note 27)
were restricted by courts according to the civil ruling to secure the
Group’s trade payables of RMB101,507,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB16,956,000) to certain suppliers.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bills payable were secured
by the pledged deposits amounting to RMB11,811,000 (2018:
RMB49,663,000) (note 27).

BNEZRERENERAREY
BREZ-—EXNEAMREE -

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—0 KE
FEHARET7408,0007T (ZF—\
F+-—A=+—H: ARK#%10,886,000
TC) B T s (B 52 13(0) R A R
25,464,000 (ZE—N\F+= /=
+ —H: A R #19,993,0007T) 0 &
iz e (M 5E27) B IE BT AR 1R Bl V& &
EELHRS - KIEAXEEB AR
101,507,000t (ZE—N\F+ = A=
+—H: AR¥#16,956,0007T) &9 f& 1
ETHEBZESIREZER-

R-_E-—AFE+-_A=+—H K
EENENZEEIACEAARE
11,811,000t (Z & — N F: A B
49,663,0007T) #3717 50 HE 4R (B
F£27) °
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. H B RRIE K B st RIA

2019 2018

—E-hF —TN\F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt = ARB TR AR T T

Tax and surcharge payables JE 1< %4 7B K Y o & 166,769 149,323

Accrued expenses e X 31,523 30,668

Interest payables FE 7 2 38,680 116,433
Amount due to the intermediate JE {1 P AT 22 AR R R IR

holding company 42(a)/(b) 10,000 =

Other payables H fth & A 3R 137,453 152,833

384,425 449,257

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-interest-bearing

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(a)

As a result of the initial application of IFRS 16, no accrued
lease payments previously included in “Other payables and
accruals” were adjusted to the lease liabilities recognised at
1 January 2019. Refer to note 2.2 to the financial statements
for further details.

As at 31 December 2019,
deposits in relation to the sale of equity interests in the
Target Subsidiaries aggregating to RMB38,974,000 (2018:
RMB38,974,000) while the transaction has not yet been
fulfilled. Subsequent to 31 December 2019, a written

the Group has received

agreement was signed between the Company and the
Purchaser to extend the long stop date of the transaction to
31 December 2020.

HoAth A RR K B SRR A AR
B REBETEEEN -

(a)

B ) 2 BR A B R B 7 e oS
A 165% - MR AT E MR
R\ EFERINEFEE
NRAERZZE—NF—A—
ERRANEERE E—FF
BR2HPBHRRME2.2

RZE-—NE+A=+—
B A5ERLEEEEMNBER
Al BREWREIRE EFARE
38,974,000 (Z&E — \F: A
R #38,974,0007T) © M X 5
MAERK - RZZE—NF+=
A=+—HBf% AREBIHREH
R EEM®E BRIV EE
HREERE_T-_TE+ -4
=+—H-
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30. ENAR

31 December 31 December 1 January
2019 2018 2018
—E-NF —E-NF ZE-N\F
+=Z—A=+—-H8H +=—A=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREFTT AREFT

Advances received from customers 2 W E P 8%
Construction services BERK 35,835 60,040 65,683
Sale of products iH & &= m 18,236 45,027 51,383
Rental services HE RS 4,236 - -
58,307 105,067 117,066

Contract liabilities consisted of short-term advances received from

customers in relation to sale of products, construction services and

rental services. Changes in contract liabilities during the year are

as follows:

EHNEEERRERETFERHEEE
Mo AR R HE R A S H B
Ko FRANBENEFHNT

2019 2018
—E-NF —E)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T ARBT T
At beginning of year R E 4] 105,067 117,066
Revenue and other income recognised that FAAFVIEHBENERER
was included in the contract liabilities at LN
the beginning of the year (note 4) (B 5£4) (98,804) (105,215)
Addition from acquisition of subsidiaries DERIE 1= NG R 0Bl - 1,443
Net increase due to cash received, excluding  F 2 URER & & A HFE N -
amounts recognised as revenue and other TBEEFABERERA
income during the year B H A Wz B & 58 52,044 91,773
At end of year R R 58,307 105,067

The Group’s contract liabilities included net carrying amounts of
RMB11,411,000 (31 December 2018: nil) (note 42) received from

the Group’s associates.

AEENAEHNBERRERIFESA
K #11,411,000c(ZE—N\F+= A
=+—8: )M Es2) MR EE

i NGB/ SR
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 3. HERITRHEMERN
LOANS
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
—E-hF+=A=t+-H —F-N\F+t-A=1—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000

ERAE% HARE ARWTT BEBEMXG%) HHKE ARETT

Current TE
Revolving loans BIRE R
- secured - AEH Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered
Rate
(“HIBOR™)+
BBIRT
RZEHFE+
- - - 3~3.5 2018 11,978

Bank loans RITER

— secured - A HIBOR+ HIBOR+
FHET BBIRT
BA¥FE+ [F 3 7 B+

1.3~4 2020 136,444 0.95~3  2019-2020 176,645
- secured - AEH LIBOR+
RBR T
RZEHFE+

- - - 1.5~3.75 2019-2022 10,428

- secured - B 4.78~7.35 2020 1,071,730 4.35~7.2 2019-2029 2,127,688
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

31. HERTRAEMER(E)

31 December 2019
—E-hFE+=A=+-—H

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+-A=+—H

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BERAER% HHRE AR®BTT EBENE% IEHEE ARETT
Bank loans RITER
- unsecured - \mHA HIBOR+
BB RAT
7 3 37 B+
On demand
- - - 4 BREX 93,491
Other loans H &3
- secured ©® - FHE#FO 15.00 2020 83,713 3.92 2019 15,000
- secured @ - FEAO 6.51 2020 23,616 761  2019-2025 252,912
- secured @ - FIKH@ 6.52 2020 186 748 2019-2023 148,631
- secured - 5HEA - - - 5.65~6 2019 61,718
- secured © - FKRe 24.00 2020 41,000 24.00 2019 41,000
Other loans H &3
— unsecured @ - EEA 9.07 2020 18,000 9.07 2019-2034 17,313
1,374,689 2,956,804
Non-current ¥R E
Bank loans RITE R
~ secured - EEH HIBOR+
BRRT
B EFE+
3.3~34 2021 132,402 = = =
- secured - FHEMA 5.15-7.35 2021-2029 1,065,328 = - -
Other loans H & 3
— secured - BHEAO 6.51 2021-2025 205,705 = - -
- secured @ - BHEAY 6.52 2021-2029 134,185 = - -
1,537,620 =

2,912,309

2,956,804
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31.

—hE+=ZA=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

(1)

(2)

(3)

It represented an other loan borrowed from an independent third
party leasing company by Yangjiang Singyes, a subsidiary of
the Group, by way of a photovoltaic equipment sale-leaseback
arrangement, with the principal of RMB273,000,000 in 2018, which
bears interest at an effective rate of 6.51% (31 December 2018:
7.61%) per annum with quarterly instalment payments up to the
maturity date on 15 December 2025. Yangjiang Singyes pledged the
right on the annual return of its solar photovoltaic power station and
the Group pledged the equity interests in it as the security to the
other loan in substance.

On 7 November 2014, Singyes Green Investment (HK) Company
Limited entered into a revenue distribution agreement regarding
the Relevant Asset, which is one of the assets held by Hunan
Singyes, a subsidiary of the Group, with a counterparty, whereby
the counterparty prepaid RMB19,000,000 to the Group for the
exchange of the right on annual return of the Relevant Asset for
each fiscal year (the “Annual Return”) for twenty years. The Annual
Return is the annual electricity revenue on the Relevant Asset net
of related PRC tax. If in any fiscal year the Annual Return is less
than RMB2,000,000 (the “Minimum Return”), the Group shall pay
the counterparty the Minimum Return.

It represented an other loan of RMB41,000,000 borrowed from
an independent third party in 2018. Hunan Singyes pledged the
prepaid land lease payment as the security to the other loan. Hunan
Singyes paid RMB1,500,000 to an independent third party financing
guarantee company appointed by the creditor, as performance
guarantee. The prepaid land lease payment with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB22,345,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB23,253,000) was pledged as the guarantee for the loan.

BREBEARRAA

. HERRITREMERGE)

HiEANEBHEQRBIEFTR
BYFE=ZFHERRINURXRKEK
ERARZHz A REEZHMBE
FRZE-—NFE2EAEABARE
273,000,000t © & B F =& & F F
R651% (ZE—NE+_A=+—
H:761%) 8 ZERENES
ENoHMMAR R—TE-_AF+=A4
+HBIHE -BEHEELE BISEE
38 H KBS BE E (A B U5 80 2 [@ 3R
RAEECEKBREPORE &
BREMERNER -

MRZZ—MFE+—AER  EEAL
BREGEB)ARARE-—ZHF
STHBEE(REENEBERRMHE

BEEBBENEE)FTL—DRAD
Fetha® - Bt ZYFHRAAEE

F& 5 A R#19,000,0007 » JA R #a
HEEER-_TEHHESEMK
FEMNFELBR(FELR]) 2 #E
- FEORAEBEENFES
DA REEBREFE - AFE
o] B BR 6 [ B9 F /2 [B] SRR A A R B
2,000,000 ([FREEH]) - BIAR&E
BERAHFFIAZEBR -

HERZTE—N\FRBILE=H
fa A B E A B 5k A R#41,000,000
T ° mﬁiﬁi%m&ﬁ%ﬁiﬁiiﬂﬁf’f
RIE - ERZEMERNER -
@ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%AéM@ﬁi%—ﬁ
BEER AR AR1,500,000
TIEABHER - EEFENAR
#22,345,000 (ZE—\F+= A
=+—H: AR¥23,253,0007T) 1Y
AT AERECRE  EAZ
BEROER -
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

(4)

It represented an other loan borrowed from an independent third
party leasing company by Yangjiang Huayu in 2019, a subsidiary
of the Group, by way of a photovoltaic equipment sale-leaseback
arrangement, with the principal of RMB134,419,000, which bears
interest at an effective rate of 6.52% per annum with quarterly
instalment payments up to the maturity date on 15 December 2029.
Yangjiang Huayu pledged the right on the annual return of its solar
photovoltaic power station and the Group pledged the equity interests
in it as the security to the other loan in substance.

It represented an other loan of US$12,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB83,713,000) borrowed from an independent third
party funding company by the Company in 2019. The Group pledged
the equity interests in Singyes New Materials as the security to the
other loan and one of the Company’s shareholder, Strong Eagle
Holdings Limited (“Strong Eagle”) and Mr. Liu Hongwei guaranteed
the other loan.

31. HERTRAEMER(E)

(4)

(5)

HEAEBEHBARBIEFRN
- hERBRXREBHEEEE
ML FRAMBLE=FHE
ARIBANEMER A& ARK
134,419,000 * HE=ZZT=-NF+
—A+THRBEMNEBHBEEFTE S M
R BBREFRE652% BE £
FSIEFEEFHE KR IKE U
WFEERERAEEEAERES
HARAE - tERZEMEBERMNER o

HEARARZZE—NEREL
FE=FMERAEAREME K
12,000,000 7t (1 & R 4 A R ¥
83,713,0007) - AEEEEM AR
FERMBRE  FAZHEME
FE IR » i Strong Eagle Holdings
Limited ([Strong Eagle] * 7 2 & f%
RZ)RBAKEED BRZEAM
ERIRHER -
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31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 3. ERITREMER(E)
LOANS (continued)

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—\F

+t=A=+-8 +=A=+-~8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARMET T

Analysed into : Fak =
Bank loans MITER
— repayable with a repayment: - JHEE&:
Within one year or on demand —FAHIEEK 1,208,174 1,151,899
In the second year F_F 306,032 236,537
In the third to fifth years, E=ZFEFRF

inclusive (BREREEME) 433,248 424,090

Beyond five years HF £ 458,450 607,705

2,405,904 2,420,231

Other loans H &R
- repayable with a repayment: - JAEE&E:
Within one year or on demand —FRREER 166,515 186,982
In the second year F_F 24,304 50,980
In the third to fifth years, FZFEFRF

inclusive (BEERWE) 126,290 132,663

Beyond five years RELE 189,296 165,948

506,405 536,573

2,912,309 2,956,804
As at 31 December 2019, except for those bank loans which were RZE—NFE+_A=+—H8" ke
denominated in HK$ and US$, amounting to RMB178,103,000 o Rl A& AR #178,103,0007T & A
and RMB83,713,000, respectively, all bank and other loans were R #83,713,000 T R TTE KA B T
denominated in RMB. RETTEEIN - MBERITREMERK

BUAREE -
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by:

mortgages over the Group'’s buildings and motor vehicles with
an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB972,450,000 (31 December
2018: RMB982,056,000) (note 13(a));

mortgages over the Group’s solar photovoltaic power stations
and their respective rights on the annual return thereof, which
had an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB1,280,636,000 (31 December
2018: RMB1,378,740,000) (note 13(b));

the right on the annual return of the Relevant Asset with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB26,089,000 at the end
of the reporting period (31 December 2018: RMB27,307,000)
(note 13(d));

mortgages over the right on the annual return of the Group’s
solar photovoltaic power station with an aggregate carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB572,497,000 (31 December 2018: RMB541,882,000)
(note 13(e));

mortgages over the Group’s investment properties with a
net carrying amount at the end of the reporting period of
approximately RMB7,537,000 (31 December 2018: nil) (note
14(d));

31. HERTRAEMER(E)

AEBETROREMGERHATE
HEM:

(@)

(e)

REEBEZBFRAENKES
RBEEHAREALREOAR
#972,450,0007 (= & — )\ &
+ A=+ —H: ARK
982,056,0007T) (K #£13(a)) :

ANE B KA IR E I RE
EXAZEERHRER 2%
B RAREPREEAEDA
R #1,280,636,0007C (= & —
NFE+ZA=+—H:AR¥
1,378,740,000 7T )(Kf 7£13(b)) :

RBEHREAEOARE
26,089,000t M HEEE EFE
BlfE(CE—NF+_A=*
— B : A R ¥27,307,0007T (Kt
FE13(d)) :

AEBARGREAREHFER
WM ER - R IMEHRAERR
E{E#) A K#572,497,0007T (=
Z-N\F+-A=+—HB: AR
#541,882,0007T)( ff7E13(e)) :

REBMEBEEMENIEZE R
BREHARE@RFEHARE
7,537,000t (ZE—N\F+=A
=+—8: &)(Mf7E14)) ;
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by:

(continued)

()

mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease payments,
which had a carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB78,087,000 (31 December
2018: RMB80,344,000) (note 15(b));

the pledge of certain of the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately RMB2,169,056,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB19,588,000) (note 25);

the pledge of certain of the Group’s tariff adjustment
receivables of approximately RMB322,290,000 (31
December 2018: RMB182,340,000) (note 26);

a guarantee by Strong Eagle (31 December 2018: nil);

the pledge of equity interests in the following subsidiaries of

the Group:

99.27% equity interests in Xinjiang Singyes;

ii. 99.27% equity interests in Wuwei Dongrun;

iii. 99.27% equity interests in Suixi Xinye;

iv. 99.85% equity interests in Yangjiang Huayu;

V. 99.85% equity interests in Yangjiang Huazhi;

31. HERTRHEMER(E)

AEBEETRIOMEMERHUATS
HER: (B

()

(i)

AEBBEMNTHAEREN
BB RBEHAEEELY
A B #78,087,0007T (= & —
NEF+ZA=+—B:AREH
80,344,0007T) (i &E15(b))

REBMEHRNEYKE S FKIEBL
A R #2169,056,0007T (= &
—N\E+ZA=+—H: AR
19,588,0007t) (Fff 5£25) :

AEBEHNETEE/ME
W kI8 4 A R #322,290,0007T
(ZZ—N\F+=ZA=+—H:A
R ¥182,340,0007T X Kf5£26) :

Strong EagleM#ER (ZF—/\&F
+—A=+—H:#&):

& B A AT BT B A R AR
i

58 B M99.27% B
T

ii. N B R O #999.27% A&
T

ii. 2% OE R % #99.27% i

£ F #)99.85% AR

=
5@
v
1

I H #99.85% A%

<
%
v
1
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

(}) the pledge of equity interests in the following subsidiaries of
the Group: (continued)
vi. 99.27% equity interests in Yangjiang Singyes;
vii.  62.37% equity interests in Singyes New Materials;
vii.  46.95% equity interests in Zhuhai Singyes;
iX. 24.78% equity interests in Singyes Renewable Energy;
X. 54.20% equity interests in Hunan Singyes;
Xi. 60.90% equity interests in Singyes Energy-saving;
xii.  66.04% equity interests in Singyes Xinye;

xiii.  54.21% equity interests in Gansu Technologies; and

xiv.  66.04% equity interests in Zhuhai Singyes Ecological
Agriculture Technology Co., Ltd.

31. HERTRAEMER(E)

& B A LA KT B 2 R E AR
g2/ (&)

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

XiV.

k% T 8 % M99.27% KX
T

2 M E962.37% Bk
1

kB B % mM46.95% Ak
1

51 £ 5T B R H24.78% A%

>

T/

o

W E ¥ #954.20% A%
P

% £ B §960.90% Hx
1

& X T 7 M66.04% K
&

BRI A 54.21% M HE
¥4

KEREXEREREH
B R 2 #966.04% X
1E -
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
LOANS (continued)

In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain of
the Group’s bank and other loans for nil consideration (note 42(b)),
details of which are as follows:

(1

(11

(V)

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed
the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB706,690,000 (31
December 2018: RMB765,330,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s
former director, Mr. Sun Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the
Group’s bank loans of RMB513,995,000 (31 December
2018: RMB615,969,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s
former director, Mr. Xie Wen, have jointly guaranteed the
Group’s bank loans of RMB120,000,000 (31 December
2018: RMB368,631,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei and the Company’s
former directors, Mr. Xie Wen and Mr. Sun Jinli, have jointly
guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of RMB414,494,000 (31
December 2018: RMB232,050,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has guaranteed
the Group’s bank loans of HK$198,825,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB178,103,000) (31 December
2018: HK$201,604,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB176,645,000);

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei has guaranteed
the Group’s other loans of US$12,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB83,713,000) (31 December 2018: nil).

31.

MERTREMERE)

BEoh KRB EERAERE TR
1T H M E R (E IR G E R R
42(b)) ' FFIBAT :

(1)

(11

(V)

AAREERL B ELEER
AEERTEEMERAR
#706,690,0007T (= & — J\
F+_A=+—"H: AR¥
765,330,0007T) :

RNAREE D% KERRN
REIMEZRERBEEHRA
ERAEBMBITERAR
#513,995,0007t(= T — N
F+_A=F+—HBH: ARK
615,969,0007T)

RNRATEF AL E RARRA]
MEEMNEERRERESE
HR1TER A K# 120,000,000
T(CE-N\F+-_H=+—H8:
A K #368,631,0007T) :

RABEBFRROAKLE AR
RIAME S W EERFKESEL
EHERERAEEEITER
A R #414,494,0007T (= & —
NE+ZA=+—H: AR¥
232,050,0007T) :

ARRESRAHEECER
AN & B R 17 B 198,825,000
woT(E B R B AR &
178,103,000 cX = Z— N\FE+=
B =+ —H:201,604,000/ 7T
(g R4 A R ¥176,645,000

JT))

ARARESRAHEECER
AN & E H b & 12,000,000
7t (A& 149 A R#83,713,000
L ZE—N\F+=—A=+—
H: /ﬂa\i\) o
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

32. ARKRES

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AR F T

Convertible bonds, liability ARRES  8EFD
component: (a) - 96,000
Fair value of embedded derivatives xR ARLTETEH R FE (b) - =
- 96,000

On 8 August 2014, the Company issued 930 units of 5%
convertible bonds in the denomination of RMB1,000,000 each due
8 August 2019 with a nominal value of RMB930,000,000. The
Company has repurchased 114 units and redeemed 720 units of
these convertible bonds in previous years.

On 19 December 2019, the Offshore Notes and its Restructuring
(as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 19 July 2019
(the “Announcement”)) was effected whereby the Group’s Offshore
Notes were exchanged for 2.00% cash-pay and 4.00% pay-in-
kind guaranteed senior notes with an aggregate nominal value of
US$414,932,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB2,905,559,000)
at face value, which will mature in 19 December 2022 (the “2022
Senior Notes”). For those exchanges with substantially different
terms, the Offshore Notes were derecognised and the 2022 Senior
Notes were recognised at their fair value at the effective date.
No gain or loss representing the difference between the carrying
amount of the related Offshore Notes derecognised and the fair
value of the 2022 Senior Notes was recognised.

RZZE—MENANB  AARET
RZZ—AFENANBRHEEAA
R #930,000,0007T K930 17 & D E &
A R #1,000,0007T5% 7] # j% (& % ©
RRARRERFER R BN & E
E720 % E B RES -

R-ZE-—NAE+=-A+hIB BEEZE
BEREEHA(EERAARBHAE S
T-NAFLtATIANAE (T2%])
AR B AEERERIBEREE
WA B2.00% H & At K4.00%E
MEAHERELERE BERE
73414,932,000% 7T (B E R A R
2,905,559,0007T) * =T ==
TZATARIBMI=ZE=_—FE%
ZB)) RZEABEUTRERZ
R EEERKLEER —T=-=
FEAZERREERAZRATFER
R oo ZNE B I £ T 2R W 2 ok B 48 (BT
ERIEERNEEE=ZEENERE
BEE-_ZE-—_FEEAZBENRAFEZ
FH?H"]%%E\) °©
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 32. ATRRES(E)
(@) Liability component @ BEdRD
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR¥ET T

Liability component at 1 January R—A—BmMaEss 96,000 80,819
Effective interest recognised for the REEBARNERR S
year (note 6) (fft 5%6) 5,332 13,815

Acceleration of unwinding interest D0 iR B Bl F B - 6,166

Interest payable during the year REEENMNFE (5,332) (4,800)

Repurchase of convertible bonds R AR ES (96,000) -

As at 31 December R+—_A=+—H - 96,000

(b) Conversion rights (b) EHiRE

The fair value of conversion rights as at 31 December ERERN-_ZE—\F+_/A=
2018 was nil. No fair value change of conversion right was +—HHNAFEAST - FRNI
recognised during the year. BREAEREATEZD -
The related interest expense of the liability component of the ARBREFEEBIRAF
convertible bonds for the year amounted to RMB5,332,000 EMHEBENERAZAEARYE
(2018: RMB19,981,000). 5,332,000 . (ZE—NF: AR

19,981,0007T) °
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33. SENIOR NOTES 33. BEEE
2019 2018
—F-NF —F-N\HF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR AR F T
2018 USD Senior Notes —E-NEEXETEBLEERE (a) - 1,065,583
2019 Senior Notes —E-NEFELEEE (b) - 1,784,429
2022 Senior Notes —EEFELEER (c) 2,815,135 -
2,815,135 2,850,012
(@ 2018 USD Senior Notes @ =FE-N\EEXZREEREE

On 11 October 2017, the Company issued 6.75% senior
notes with an aggregate nominal value of US$160,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,053,070,000) at face
value, which matured in October 2018 (the “2018 USD Senior
Notes”). The net proceeds, after deducting the issuance
costs, amounted to approximately RMB1,039,118,000. The
effective interest rate is approximately 8.32% per annum after
the adjustment for transaction costs.

As mentioned in note 32, the Group’s Offshore Notes were
exchanged for the 2022 Senior Notes. No gain or loss
representing the difference between the carrying amount of
the related Offshore Notes derecognised and the fair value
of the 2022 Senior Notes was recognised.

R=—ZZFE—+t&F+ A+ —
B AQA#FITHMERSE
160,000,000 7t (18 & M 49 A
R #1,053,070,00075) — & —
N+ A B B F 5.6.75% &) &
EZBRE(ZE—N\FEXTLEL
ERD-MBREBEETER
% FIBREFEROARYE
1,039,118,0007T ° #€ 5t 2 5 BX
REH AR  BEREFEFELY
%8.32%°

AR B FE32F s - AN £ B A BE
ERCHHB AT - —FEE
FR - ASEWEERKEL
B8 (BB &R IE R e ERE BE =
EEMNEAER_T - —_F&
EEBNATEZENERE) -



CE-NAEFEFERE PEAKEEEXEREEBRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR MY &

31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

33. SENIOR NOTES (continued)

(@) 2018 USD Senior Notes (continued)

33. BRERB(E)

The 2018 USD Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are calculated as follows:

—E-\EXRERARE
(%)

RSP BRRRTRERN=
E-\FELBERBENERE

BT IR E
2019 2018
—E-AE  ZF)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BXEAEE 1,065,583 1,030,807
Effective interest recognised for the AEEERNERF B

year (note 6) (Pt 5£6) 70,825 83,033
Interest payable during the year REE RNMNFE (70,825) (74,123)
Repurchase of senior notes EOELEE (1,087,208) (31,367)
Exchange realignment [ 21,625 57,233
Carrying amount at 31 December N+—A=+—HA8EmEE - 1,065,583
Fair value of the 2018 USD Senior ZE-NFETLELEEE N/A N/A

Notes A FEE TEHA T E A
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33. SENIOR NOTES (continued)

(b)

2019 Senior Notes

On 15 February 2017, the Company issued 7.95% senior
notes with an aggregate nominal value of US$260,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,785,350,000) at face
value, which matured in February 2019 (the “2019 Senior
Notes”).
the United States in compliance with Regulation S under
the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“Regulation S”). The 2019 Senior Notes initially were sold

The 2019 Senior Notes are only offered outside

to a small number of financial institutions. None of the
2019 Senior Notes was offered to the public in Hong Kong
or to any connected persons of the Company, and they
have been listed on the HKSE (stock code: 5372). The net
proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately RMB1,749,691,000.

The effective interest rate is approximately 9.27% per annum
after the adjustment for transaction costs.

As mentioned in note 32, the Group’s Offshore Notes were
exchanged for the 2022 Senior Notes.
representing the difference between the carrying amount of

No gain or loss

the related Offshore Notes derecognised and the fair value
of the 2022 Senior Notes was recognised.

33. BEREB(E)

(b)

—E-NEFEERE

—t¥-_A+AHB XK
77T {E #2%8260,000,000
%ﬁ(*H*EA%/\E%
1,785,350,0007T) = & — fL &
= EJHH%%795%E’M§\5‘E%—‘%TF
(ZF-NAEFBEEED-
%*ﬂi@?ﬁﬁ%&,a*ﬂz
=FXBEERETSHI (R E
FI([S#RHI1) (2 70 55 B35 o) 3
- _E-NFERERERKRN
HETLHBERBER —T—
NEBEZRBHELETER
NRLARAERBEAL
BEeaEdRABMm LT (RN
5% :5372) - KR ETE M
BRHEFMBRBFRONBARE
1,749,691,0007T °

BRZXIKAELFHER -
BREFI R4 59.27% °

AR FE32RT i - AR E BB F
RBECHBMA T __FE5%
ﬁﬁfﬁ o AEE Y EMER MR K
B 18 (BN B 48 L7 R A AR BA B =2
EENEEER_T-_FF
%xﬁ%ﬂ’\] RFEZHNERE) °
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33. SENIOR NOTES (continued)

(b)

(c)

HEEXEREBBRAA

3. BAEE(E)

2019 Senior Notes (continued) b) ZFBE-HhhEEEZEE(E)
The 2019 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated REEFBERARFERN =
statement of financial position are calculated as follows: T-NFELEEBZUTHR
ATHE
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BRE®EE 1,784,429 1,677,498
Effective interest recognised for the 7% 4F & #E 2 H) B B K B
year (note 6) (K 5E6) 138,541 153,632
Interest payable during the year NEE N F B (138,541) (141,862)
Acceleration of unwinding interest il & % [a] | & - 3,918
Repurchase of senior notes BOELEEE (1,820,650) -
Exchange realignment ME 3 B 36,221 91,243
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—-A=+—HBWHE®@E - 1,784,429
Fair value of the 2019 Senior —E-NEEAEBNATE N/A
Notes TiE R 990,360
2022 Senior Notes ) —B-__FEB%(E
On 19 December 2019, the Company issued the 2022 RZZE-NAEFE+=ZA+NEB -
Senior Notes. The 2022 Senior Notes are only offered RRRBIT_E_—_FELEERE
outside the United States in compliance with Regulation S BT _—_FEAEZEER
under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended —N==FXBBFHETSHA

(“Regulation S”). The 2022 Senior Notes initially were offered
to eligible Scheme Creditors and the Holding Period Trustee
(as defined in the Announcement dated 19 December 2019).

The 2022 Senior Notes have been listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX”).

(EMERTSIRE ) E R EBE
INBEE  —E-—FEEFR
BYIRBEEENLTHEREA
kFEHZEA(EEZRBHA

—NFE+ZA+NLEHR
H ZEZ_FEEERER
FMEEERZAHTFHRA])
ETe
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33. SENIOR NOTES (continued)

(c)

2022 Senior Notes (continued)

The major terms and conditions of the 2022 Senior Notes

are as follows:

(1)

(i)

Interest payment election

The Company may, at its discretion at any time, elect
to pay interest on the principal amount of the 2022
Senior Notes on each interest payment date (i) in cash
(@ “Cash Coupon Election”) at the rate of 2.00% per
annum prior to a Cash Coupon Election and thereafter
at 6.00% per annum (the “Cash Interest”) and (ii) by
increasing the principal amount of the 2022 Senior
Notes or by issuing any 2.00% cash-pay and 4.00%
pay-in-kind guaranteed senior notes due 2022 (the
“Additional Notes”) in a principal amount equal to
4.00% of the aggregate principal amount of the note
then outstanding (the “PIK Interest”). The Cash Coupon
Election shall be irrevocable.

Mandatory redemption of the Company

On 19 June 2022 (the “Initial Mandatory Redemption
Date”), the Company shall redeem 40% of the 2022
Senior Notes outstanding on the Initial Mandatory
Redemption Date (including, for the avoidance of
doubt, any Additional Notes that have been issued
as PIK Interest and added to the principal amount of
the Notes) at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount thereof, together with accrued
and unpaid interest thereon (at the rate of 6.00% per
annum, corresponding to the aggregate of the interest
ordinarily payable in cash and the interest ordinarily
payable in kind) to, but excluding, the Initial Mandatory
Redemption Date.

33. BEREB(E)

(c)

“EC_FEREB(E)

TECCFEBAEEBEZEEKR
KRB ET T

(1)

(ir)

1.8 & #

RNAE A B RE R
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BEEE 2 AE F B (1) A
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BASRREMN400% ([E
MEEFED - BERE
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33. SENIOR NOTES (continued)

(c)

2022 Senior Notes (continued)

(iii)

Redemption at the option of the Company

Upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice
to the Holders, the Trustee and the Paying Agent (each
such date, an “Optional Redemption Date”), at any
time, the Company may at its option redeem the notes
outstanding on the applicable Optional Redemption
Date
Additional Notes that have been issued as PIK Interest
and added to the principal amount of the notes) in

(including, for the avoidance of doubt, any

whole or in part at a redemption price equal to 100%
of the aggregate principal amount thereof together
with accrued and unpaid interest thereon (at the rate
of 6.00% per annum, corresponding to the aggregate
of the interest ordinarily payable in cash and the
interest ordinarily payable in kind) to, but excluding,
the applicable Optional Redemption Date.

As the estimated fair value of the early redemption right is

insignificant at initial recognition, the embedded derivative

is not separately accounted for. The effective interest rate

is approximately 7.23% per annum after the adjustment for

transaction costs.

33. BRERB(E)

(©)

—E__FEREB(E)

(i)

K2 F] 2 E

ARFEA - ZFEARMK
REZFHTDRI0BER
8 B60 R H) & 1% (18 7
EMERaREELERD
BH ) - AR E) AR
BREANEEEEDR
HiZEOERED 2K
MOREERR (BT
5 BENEWMNE
BARTALEMNEREAR
EZEMBEIRE) - B
EERENZEEZBA
THE RNBEERE
BUEBLORAHRA(TEREZ
B) &t AR BB (5
MEH6.00% @ HERBE
BRSO B R
BEABYSMNOMEZ
) o

HARIEFELEN A TFE
FEIRFEREEY TE KA R
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33. SENIOR NOTES (continued) 33. BEEB(E)

(c) 2022 Senior Notes (continued) () “FEEEB(E)
The 2022 Senior Notes recognised in the consolidated REEFHERARPERN =
statement of financial position are calculated as follows: B _FEEZEBERATAHR

ATE

RMB’000
ARBT T
Nominal value of 2022 Senior Notes TEC_FBAREEE 2,905,559
Issuance costs BETEA (83,137)
Fair value at date of issuance BITHEBNAFE 2,822,422
Effective interest recognised for the year (note 6) N4 [Z #E 2 89 B B 7 B (Fff 3£6) 6,388
Interest payable during the year NEE ENMAF A (1,898)
Exchange realignment PE 58 B (11,777)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 E—NFE+ZA=+—8Af
BREE 2,815,135
Fair value of the 2022 Senior Notes* TR _FREZBNATE" 2,523,987

* The fair value of the 2022 Senior Notes is determined based * TECFEEEENAT

on the price quoted on the SGX on 31 December 2019.

BNER-ZE—ILF+=A

=T —BAHMRAMEEE
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34. PROVISION 34. &1

2019 2018
—E-NF —E)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF R AREF T

Compensation: 5 8
At beginning of year RE 1] 81,289 -
Additions nNE - 81,289
Payment SN (14,038) -
Reversal (note 5) = £ (Bt 7%5) (67,251) =
At end of year RER - 81,289

(1) Compensation for breach of banking facility (1) BRERBTREBEN
agreements BB

On 28 August 2018, the Company went into two facility
agreements with a bank and on 14 October 2018, the
On 1
February 2019, the Company received a written demand

Company terminated these facility agreements.

letter from the bank in respect of compensation of
US$6,025,139 (equivalent to approximately RMB36,232,000)
as the Company’s termination of these facility agreements
constituted an event of default. On 8 August 2019, the
Company received a
bank with the Hong
for the compensation. The Directors made a provision of
RMB36,232,000 in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

winding up petition filed by the
Kong Court against the Company

On 19 December 2019,
dismissed as the bank agreed with the Company for the
payment of US$2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB14,038,000).

the winding up petition was

RZZ—N\FNA=+/\H &
ARE—FRIBITEI LD ELE
W MR- N\E+A+r
B AARKIEZSRERE °
R-ZE-AFE-F—H BHRA
RRARIEZEMERHEERE
WEH ARRIMEERTER
6,025,139 L (MHE R AR
#36,232,00070) BE B EE 2
$fg e RZZE—AENANR -
RARWEIRITHEESE R
EELERRENERES - B
2T \F+-_A=+—HIt
FE EFERGEMBRE
A 1E B A R #36,232,000

JG ©

RZE—-—hE+ZA+NA -
ARTEAQRARE X[
2,100,000 7T (& R A R
#14,038,0007T) M 25 & 2

==
AR °
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34. PROVISION (continued)

(2)

Compensation for breach of the other loan contract

Yangjiang Huayu obtained an other loan amounting to
RMB200,000,000 from an independent third party leasing
company by way of a photovoltaic equipment sale-leaseback
arrangement, in which the Company was set as guarantor by
a guarantee contract.

As at 31 December 2018,
right to require a compensation of RMB45,057,000 from

the leasing company had a

the Group according to the default clauses in the sale-
leaseback agreement. The Directors have made a provision
of RMB45,057,000 in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The provision of RMB45,057,000 was reversed as the other
loan was repaid on 30 December 2019 with no compensation
charged by the leasing company.

34. #E(E)

(2)

AREREMBERSHON
R fH

BIEFRBLRREERD
M T AABLE=H
&R FES A R#200,000,000

THEMER ERARE R
BERAVNKBERA-
R=F—N\F+=H=+—8” -

HEARBRREEREMARG
EHENBERERKEE R
8 A B #45,057,0007T - 8 &
- N\F+ZA=+—8Lt
FE EZERGEMBHRE
A 1E T # # A R #45,057,000

JG ©

HEMERE
_Hf-i-EMa@ Ha‘ =R/NG]
WEEREEE  WEEEEA
R #45,057,0007C °

—h&ET+



CE-AEEESE PRAKBEEREREBAER2T 227

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SRR MY &

31 December 2019 —E —NF+=ZA=+—H

35. DEFERRED TAX 35. IR IE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year REMBEEHBERNFTFANE
are as follows: W
Deferred tax assets EEMREEE

Lease Government
liabilities grants Others Total
HEAE BAHE Hity st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—HA—H - 31,771 15,334 47105
Deferred tax charged to FAMKBEBRZENEL
profit or loss during the 4 18 (P 5£10)

year (note 10) (31,546) (14,002) (45,548)

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+—-—A=+—8H = 225 1,332 1,557
At 31 December 2018 BT —\F
+=-—A=+—8H - 225 1,332 1,557
Effect of adoption of B 40 B R B 7% =R 5 2E A
IFRS 16 F16H A & 1,640 - - 1,640
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF
(restated) —A—BH&E3) 1,640 225 1,332 3,197
Deferred tax created/ FANFTA R A)
(charged) to profit or 18 % B IR IE Y 18
loss during the year (Fff 5£10)
(note 10) (381) 792 846 1,257
At 31 December 2019 RZZT—NF

== 5 1,259 1,017 2,178 4,454
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35. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 35. IEIEFHIE(E)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has total tax losses arising in
Malaysia, Singapore, Macau and Hong Kong of RMB99,273,000
(2018: RMB8&6,741,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose and tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB485,381,000
(2018: RMB220,253,000) that will expire in one to ten years for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose, as well as other deductible temporary differences
of RMB1,031,794,000 (2018: RMB388,274,000) that were available
for offsetting against future taxable profits, for which deferred tax
assets have not been recognised as it is not considered probable
that taxable profit will be available against which they can be
utilised.

EEBIREE(E)

RZE-NANEF+=ZA=+—H ' &
SEEEFREE - HME - R
REBEENTESBAEARKE
99,273,000 (ZZE —NF: AR
86,741,0007T ) AT A 7 A BR ER 4K 4 8 A
B8 2 ARIMARRERTEF - BA
EFBAEEEANTHEERARE
485,381,000 (ZF—N\F: AR
220,253,0007t) °A] A S EE A &5 18
ZRARKRRERF R - HR—2=
TEREIE - DA KRB H b AT R R
2= 58 A R #1,031,794,000T (= &
— \4 « A R #388,274,0007T) ] B
JINEEEV = NG 3 1 | N 1= I 7 N
hHERELEHBEEE  BERAR
DA o | RN e o B U
HEE o
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35. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 35.

Deferred tax liabilities

—hE+=ZA=+—H

HEEXEREBBRAA

i SE B IR ()
I 7 B E £ 1

Accelerated
depreciation

Right-of-use for tax ~ Withholding
assets purpose taxes Total
15 A I8 A%
BEE NMRHE BB Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARKTR
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—HA—H - - 86,860 86,860
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEHT B A A = 820 = 820
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-A=+—H - 820 86,860 87,680
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\EF
+=-A=+—8 = 820 86,860 87,680
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 R 4 B R Eﬁkﬁﬁi%&—ﬁ”
ENSiA: -2 1,640 - - 1,640
At 1 January 2019 (restated) — N
—A—B(EE7)) 1,640 820 86,860 89,320
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss ~ F Rz AEBZHH
during the year (note 10) i 3E 7 38 (i 5£10) (381) (820) = (1,201)
At 31 December 2019 RZE— 715
+=ZA=+— 1,259 = 86,860 88,119
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities HEVME ETELEHEEERE

have been offset in the statement of financial position. The following
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

BECEMRRNMBMRRLKRFPEE - T

RAKBRERBE G2 ON - AH

MBHmREZA:
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35. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 35. BEBEE)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EEBEBEEE(E)
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR F T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in &R & B 75 AR St 2k o R R
the consolidated statement of financial HIEET I B EF R
position 3,195 1,557
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in R & B 75 AR 3R P RE R
the consolidated statement of financial MELEHIBEEFE
position (86,860) (87,680)
Net deferred tax assets EETIAE E S5 (83,665) (86,123)

Under the CIT Law of the PRC, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China effective from 1 January
2008. Under the Arrangement between Mainland China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of
Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect
to Taxes on Income, the withholding tax rate for dividends paid by a
Mainland resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident enterprise is
5% if the Hong Kong enterprise owns at least 25% of the Mainland
enterprise.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries during the
year, as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB903,576,000 as at
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB1,894,799,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

REFECEMAERE A-FFN
F-A—BE ERBEARERZLZIH
BEORAMRINEREETIRERE - A
BUI0%TEIH - RIBPBEARERE
AERITREBN YR REEHN
MLERMBHROZH HEBLE
BROBEAARERE5RM AR
HAEERCENTEERREEN
B BB TR B R B5% °

FR PAZN 55 [ AT 47 i) 485 [ B RF 22 BB A
B BEREFEAEESHARTE R
B MW ERFNELEBRRIBEA
Alm Al R B R A MR
RAFHRBELERIE - RZZT—NF+
ZA=1+—H8 BEAMKRFPBEARRE
WBARBENEREZEAENA
A R #903,576,0007T I £ 5t It #E 52
ELERMEEBRBCEZ-N\F:ARE
1,894,799,0007T) °

ZNCIDE S NN N SR
EAMERZE -
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36. DEFERRED INCOME

36. JEJE W 5

2019 2018
—E-hF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
Government grants XA 78 B
At beginning of year REH 157,449 164,228
Government grants related to assets received 4 A U B B2 & 2= #E B A9 X
during the year T 7 B 11,767 3,339
Released to profit or loss (note 5): =18 5 (D) -
Over the expected useful lives of the ERBE ETEH{E A
related assets F Hf (13,373) (10,118)
At end of year RER 155,843 157,449

Deferred income represented government grants received by the
Group in respect of the construction of roof top solar power stations
under the “Golden Sun Demonstration Project”, and other items of

property, plant and equipment.

The deferred income is released to profit or loss by equal annual
instalments to match with the expected useful lives of the relevant

assets.

BT B o

BELEWRSREASER KNG RET
RITERNETRKE
Hip¥z - BFE R FR B MU E &

BB UK

BEWSIZFFH o HBEEEER
NEEAHBEENTRRAEAFY -
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. BRA&
Shares % 12
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
uUS$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: VETE ¢
2,600,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,600,000,000% & J& HE {E0.01
US$0.01 each ETLHEBER 26,000 12,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREHR:
2,521,081,780 2,521,081,780& (= F — N\ :
(2018: 834,073,195) ordinary 834,073,195/%)
shares of US$0.01 each FRMEEO.OIE T EFEAX 25,211 8,341
Equivalent to RMB’000 MEARETT 174,333 55,785
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as follows: FRNEBHTRAESHWOT :

Number of shares

in issue Issued capital
ERTRHOEE 2R TRA
RMB’000
AR T T

At 31 December 2018 and R—ZE—/\F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2019 F—ZE—NEFE—HA—H 834,073,195 55,785
Subscription of shares (note) RER 5 (M) 1,687,008,585 118,548
At 31 December 2019 R-E—hF+=-_A=+—H 2,521,081,780 174,333

Note:

On 28 November 2019, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
1,687,008,585 subscription shares to Water Development at the subscription
price of HK$0.92 per subscription share under the specific mandate granted
by independent shareholders at the SGM held on 31 October 2019 (the
“Subscription”). The net proceeds from the Subscription are approximately
HK$1,550,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,393,165,000), of
which RMB118,548,000 and RMB1,274,617,000 were credited to the issued
share capital and share premium account of the Company, respectively.
Particulars of the Subscription have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 November 2019.

Bt :

RZTE—hAF+—A=Z+AB A2
ARBEBYBRER-_Z—HLFE+A=
+—BE2THREENASELED
R RERSRRAERKRMD0ILE T2
2 B& {8 A Water Development 2 17 & &
% & #£1,687,008,5850% R & B’ 5 ([3R
BEED RBEBEZMEREBEFE
# /1,550,000,000% JT(# & BN 4 A
R #1,393,165,0007T) © H & A R #
118,548,0007t & A & #1,274,617,0007T
ARFHARRB B EITRA KRG 5% E
B - REZENFBHARARAR-ZT—
NE+—A=+NBHRE -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 38. BRESTE

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) to replace the former share option scheme (the “Former
Scheme”) which terminated on 19 December 2018 for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who
contribute to the success of the Group'’s operations. Eligible persons
of the New Scheme include directors, employees, consultants and
suppliers of the Group. The New Scheme was approved by the
Company’s shareholders on 4 June 2018 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in such limit being
exceeded.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of the share options granted under the New Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to any eligible
person(s) (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding share
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue, unless (i) such
grant has been duly approved, in the manner prescribed by the
relevant provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, by ordinary
resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, at which the
relevant Eligible Person and his/her close associates (or his/her
associate if the grantee is a Listco Connected Person) abstained
from voting; (ii) a circular regarding the grant has been despatched
to the Shareholders in a manner complying with, and containing
the information specified in, the relevant provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules; and (iii) the number and terms (including the
subscription price) of such options are fixed before the general
meeting of the Company at which the same are approved.

ARBRBT H AR E & (H
FED ReBRR-_F-N\F+=
At B ERBER S (&5
) BNRABEAKREZENKY
EHE B A ERA LR BB MR
B o FAtEMEEBALBREAEH
WEE  EE - BRI NRHEER o Fat
BN N\FARNANBAEFSERAR
PRERALE - BRIESTTHUBRIER] » &
A B Z AREFRT TFENRT -

TTEAREHF B RAREHEA M
B RHEEFITENMBEART
6 B MBS B AT RO AR (D) MBI SR 38
THREBEITRMOBEMN30% - RIEH
ot &) R AN ) E fa E A R A A AT B
IRBHZRE  AASREERNE
P -

TTERIBF AT 8 R AR RHE M E A B
RAEFERTEMNSERALNE
EREEERTRETRTZBRNDES
BE(BRCHEE  CTEREKRT
EHEEE) ERERHAHNER
TEAHEA - T EEEEHTK
MEBMI% RIFONEERLEE L
MARAFBI7ERBIEXAETAN R
ABRRABERASE LBBERRS
REAE EEBEEAERALR
HETBEABBIARARLETA
AEAL  RIABEBBAKER
R (NAARHNBRENFTE LD
A 17 ARG H 51 E A5 A
BROTATETER: RiilZFH
BENEE RER(BREIBBE) XA
RA AR IR K& HEfE AT REE ©



234

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 SRR MY &E

31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the time of adoption by the Company of the New Scheme or any
new share option scheme, the aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
scheme, the New Scheme and all schemes existing at such time
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of scheme adoption, which
is expected to be 83,407,319 shares for the scheme.

Where an option is to be granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director (or any of their respective
associates), and the grant will, in the 12-month period up to and
including the offer date, result in the number and value of the
relevant shares exceeding the following: 0.1% of the total number
of shares in issue at the relevant time of grant; and an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, such grant shall not be
valid unless: (a) a circular containing the details of the grant has
been dispatched to the shareholders in a manner complying with,
and containing the matters specified in, the relevant provisions
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (including in particular, a
recommendation from the independent non-executive directors
(excluding the independent non-executive director who is the
prospective grantee) to the independent shareholders as to voting);
and (b) the grant has been approved by the shareholders in general
meeting (taken on a poll), at which such grantee, his/her associates
and all core connected persons of the Company have abstained
from voting in favour at such meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within
28 days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the Grantee of a share option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of a share option is HK$1.00.

38.

BRESE(E)

AN B R 40 37 5t & 5 A ] 3 S AR
FTEIR - (TERIRETE - FstEl kA
DRI Z T 5T 85 A FT A B AR
EREITHRMBE - TEBBEE
RAMBBHEEHTROBEMNI0% &
&1 5% AT 8119 B 19 & 83,407,319%

MRMEERRABIENITES
(HEESEEMBEA) R ERE
BREEEESEHZZHNAM(BIE
ZAMMNTZEANEBAEERG
FEREEBBUTHE: REHD
HEREDZETRGOD B EHM0.1%:
RBBEREEZAANSEL B
O ERREROROKTE) BB
5,000,000/ 7T + Al IEH B &R -
BRIE : (@) B 5 IR 1B B E AR
S EMRBEL7EBBIE LT E
FTET A B A 5 =03 2 T AR 38 (A
BREBIUFNTES(TREBNE
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The subscription price of the New Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the board and notified to an eligible person and
shall be at least the highest of (i) the HKSE closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average HKSE closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No options have been granted under the New Scheme during the
year.

(@) The following share options were outstanding under the

38. BRERTEI(E)

HABNRBEAHEESHEAETE
WEBMEEBALNER ALEED
EATEENESE (IRBERER
#) BB R B B A0 A 7 8 B 32 T RO MK
TE MBEEZHEHMIEERSH
RRTPRAD IR B 78 B X PO F 2 e
B R(i)kHEE -

BRELTNHTHEAZBERE XA
BRRAGERZNER -

F A EAR B R B EAER
-

(@ FAREAETHRTEZER

Former Scheme during the year: BT
2019 2018
—F-hF AL

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

hn ¥ 35 hnE F13
THEE REB®E TRE REBHE

HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
BEREBRT TH BRET T
At 1 January n—A—AH 4,72 36,500 472 36,500

Expired during the F N E 5

year 3.56 (11,242) - -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 5.23 25,258 4.72 36,500

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a total of
11,242,000 options were expired.

HE-_TE—NhEF+=-_A=+—
BIE&E - & 11,242,000/
BERRREEIER -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 38. IBRESTEI(E)

(a) (continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Number of share

(@)

R E R ERITEBEREZ
THEERITERHNT

RO BE
2019 2018 Exercise price Exercise period
ZE-AEFE  ZEZEN\F TEE TEMH
000 '000 HK$ per share
TH T BB

- 2,763 3.56 23/01/10-22/07/19
- 3,336 3.56 23/07/10-22/07/19
- 5,143 3.56 23/07/11-22/07/19
1,447 1,447 2.67 11/10/12-10/10/21
1,447 1,447 2.67 11/10/13-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/14-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/15-10/10/21
1,446 1,446 2.67 11/10/16-10/10/21
2,008 2,008 11.65 22/5/16-21/5/25
2,009 2,009 11.65 22/5/17-21/5/25
2,009 2,009 11.65 22/5/18-21/5/25
4,000 4,000 3.55 05/4/18-21/5/27
4,000 4,000 8.55 05/4/19-21/5/27
4,000 4,000 3.55 05/4/20-21/5/27

25,258 36,500

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$3,686,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,246,000)
during the vyear (2018: HK$9,946,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB8,398,000).

NEERARFERERERBE
7 $2.3,686,0007% 7T (18 & 1 4J
A R #3,246,0007T)( —=Z — )\
4 : 9,946,000/ T (8 & M 4
A R #8,398,0007T)) °
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
25,258,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 25,258,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of US$25,258
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,967,050) and share
premium of approximately HK$130,136,000 (before issue
expenses and after the amount to be transferred from share
option reserve to share premium upon the exercise of the
related share options).

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the
Company had 25,258,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.00% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

Share option scheme of Singyes New Materials

A subsidiary of the Company, Singyes New Materials,
operates a share option scheme (the “Singyes New Materials’
Scheme”). The Singyes New Materials’ Scheme was adopted
for the primary purposes of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the growth and development of Singyes New
Materials and its subsidiaries (“Eligible Persons”). Eligible
Persons of the Scheme include:

(i) (a) (whether

any director or proposed director

executive or non-executive, including any
independent non-executive director), employee
or proposed employee (whether full time or part

time) of, or

38. BRERTEI(E)

€))

(b)

RmEBR » ARBREZE
#) 525,258,000 i A& 17 £ B8
PR o 5% % 1) AR 1T 0 B AR A e
EHETHR EARBZEA
BARBT  BEEBRINE
725,258,000 A< x 7] & & X
T EE R IMNR AR 25,2583 T (#8
5 R #11,967,0507% 7o) & & 15
& {8 £7130,136,0007% 7t (7 1
bR 8 17 7 < AT B R A0 BR 1§ 1R 4R
28] i S JE 1T (6 s ot O RO
HBEBERNDEENSREER) -

RAMIEREZUER XA F
1R 1% 3% 51 £ 525,258,00017 i
RITEBRE  HERARQA
Rz BEEITRG £1.00% °

FEEFHBNBERETS

/NI AR =ERNCTE S S S
B -EBRER B (REH
MR EREID) o B R G 8
5 A A5 B2 T R K EL T I
REIZERFEREHER N
BEREBMZAERAL(RE
BALTDRHUER R - 5
B EBMALRE:

AEBEEIMAMKER
BESSOES3:$:1
2 E R RCREHIH
(= ENIN: R Cl-
ERAMEEECT
AT EERIE
HWITES  BREE
B LIFHITE
B) - BEHEE
BET®HAERE
k) - 3

(i) (a)
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(i) (continued)

(b) any individual for the time being seconded
to work for, any member of the Group or
any substantial shareholder or any company
controlled by a substantial shareholder;

(i)  any person or entity that
development or other technological support or any

provides research,
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to
any member of the Group; and

(iii) ~ for the purposes of the Singyes New Materials’ Scheme,
shall include any company controlled by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes of
participants.

The Singyes New Materials’ Scheme was approved by its
shareholders on 17 October 2017 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Singyes
New Materials’ Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Singyes New Materials must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total issued share capital of the Singyes New
Materials as at the date on which the Singyes New Materials’
Scheme is adopted unless the Singyes New Materials obtains
a fresh approval from shareholders to refresh the 10% limit
on the basis that the maximum number of shares in respect
of which share options may be granted under the Singyes
New Materials’ Scheme together with any share options
outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Singyes New
Materials’ Scheme and any other share option schemes shall
not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Singyes
New Materials from time to time.

38. BREREI(E)

(b)

(&)

0) (%)

(b)) EREASETHE
HEATE A

(i)  MAEBEEMBEAFR
AT - FE I E A
XFF AR TR - R
ERSE MRS A (EA
ALTHRER R

(iv) FEEFMHAEME
BAEB RN Lt R/ — 8
DEEN-BHEZEAL
ZHINEM AR -

BEFMBAGFEER-_F

FHATERBEERRAE
BROEZITRESHEIERT » WA

ZEBEFRFTFEORS -

17 AR 45 B2 3 11 B4 5T 8 I B
SRR RO AT f) E At BB AR R
TR EMMA BB
HITHNRMABITFERER
IRV SR P E S
MEHERITIRABENI0%
BRIFBLEMM R SR IREH
HE/E LA #T10% BRER (R EAR
R B SR M R AT &I ] BE R Y
2 B 1 52 R AR 9 B 36 3 A1 R AT
B I AE fa] £ At BB R A St 815 R
1718 BB 15 17 L 60 (F 17 B8 AR
ERNRERNBETFER
5 MRS B BB AT RN
30%) °
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the share options granted under the
Singyes New Materials’ Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Singyes New Materials to any Eligible
Persons (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding
share options), in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue,
unless (i) a circular is dispatched to the shareholders; and
(i) the shareholders approve the grant of the share options in
excess of the 1% limit referred to in this paragraph; and (iii)
the relevant Eligible Persons and his associates shall abstain
from voting. The number and terms (including the exercise
price) of share options to be granted to such Eligible Persons
must be fixed before shareholders’ approval.

Any grant of a share option to a director, chief executive
of the Singyes New Materials or substantial shareholder
(or any of their respective associates) must be approved
by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
share options).

38. BRERTEI(E)

1R 4 B SR T A R B I B
MR EMELERESSRT
EREERALTZ BIREETT
EREHTRETRHRITIRN
RSHE (BEEEHE BT FE
RERTERERE)  REER
HEHIEEA+=ERRE - &
SHRESZETHRMNEEZ1%
BRIE) — B REEF & TR
(ii) B SR HE /8 75 1 788 58 7K BR Pt
Z1% EPR 2 BB R ¢ K (iii) A B8
BEBALTREBE AARE
BRE -BRTEERALZE
Pt 2 BB R (BIETTEE)
WBARBRAM R EE

FMEXMMHES  TRAR
FETERR(AEZEEMHE
N BEHEMBRE -FEXAE
BEYIFRTES (TEEBER
5 A HE AR A B (E ] 08 32 3F
TES)HE -
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Where any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director (or any of their
respective associates) will result in the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the share
options already granted and to be granted to such person
under the Singyes New Materials’ Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Singyes New Materials (including
share options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the shares at each date of grant, in excess of HK$5
million, such further grant of share options is required to be
approved by shareholders in general meeting in accordance
with the rules governing the listing of securities on Growth
Enterprise Market of the HKSE. Any change in the terms of
a share option granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their respective
associates is also required to be approved by shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
HKSE closing price of the Singyes New Materials’ shares on
the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average HKSE
closing price of the Singyes New Materials’s shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

38. BREREI(E)

MR EERL B E) W EM
T_EARFEREZRRNE
VEHTES(REEEEH
E AT B B8 A) 35 M {F ] i RO #
—EREHITERBEREHNY
Tt 8 B B AR A9 (E ] E
R EABERTRAE TR
TERALHNBRERDET
E#ETERTHORDBB(BE
BiTE CREERRITENE
) - (VAFHEEBEITRME
0.1% A £ R (i) iR 45 % % 4 B
HkhBmEENEERS
5,000,00078 7T » RIFE BB
PRGEMFE = EM AR - E—2F
REBREAESRRLRER
ARELE#HE BRFEZBRRK
BYRTEEREZAEM
E YNNI L0k C T4 0R= 0
BTN A R R AL e

BETHBERENEOINRENA
HIREET30R A B4 » I A8 AR
BRI XN BERRELE TIE

P
=

BRENTEETASEEE
B ETBERUTREE:
(1) R 22 400 2% R SR 32 95 1
R 9 3 75 7 8 22 B By WO T 0B ¢
(WEEEHNEMNERERSH
550 52 37 b1 KL AR 03 20 B 7 6 22
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

38. BRERTEI(E)

(b) (continued) (b) (%)
The following share options were outstanding under the NEZEFEEFMBETEITE T W
Singyes New Materials’ Scheme during the year: RITEZEREDT :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
hn#E 15 DNHE 15
THEE BREZE TEE BREHE
HK$ HK$
per share '000 per share ‘000
FRET T4 BRETT T 19
At beginning of year RE ] 1.16 21,000 - -
Granted during the year FRF T - - 1.16 21,000
Forfeited during the year F R KK 1.16 (5,300) - -
At end of year RER 1.16 15,700 1.16 21,000

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

REBEERREARTEEREZ
11

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as FEERITHEBRDT :
follows:
Number of share
g 4=|
2019 2018 Exercise price Exercise period
—E-hF —E-N\F TEE THEH
'000 ‘000 HK$ per share
T 4 ) =
5,233 7,000 1.61 31/1/21-30/1/28
5,233 7,000 1.61 31/1/22-30/1/28
5,234 7,000 1.61 31/1/23-30/1/28
15,700 21,000
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a total of
5,300,000 options (2018: nil) were forfeited due to the
resignation of grantee.

Singyes New Materials recognised a share option expense of
HK$1,522,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,340,000),
net of reversal of share option expense due to the forfeiture
of share options during the year (2018: HK$2,823,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB2,384,000).

At the end of the reporting period, Singyes New Materials had
15,700,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of Singyes New Materials,
result in the issue of 15,700,000 additional ordinary shares
of Singyes New Materials and additional share capital of
US$157,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,223,000,
before issue expenses).

As at the date of approval of these financial statements,
Singyes New Materials had 15,700,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 3.02% of shares of Singyes New Materials in
issue as at that date.

(b)

38. BREREI(E)

(&)

BHE_Z-NFT+-A=+—
BIEFE & 5,300,000 &
BRI (=2 —)\F &) AAERA
B B 1 2K A

£ 30 B AR A R AR R 2K m
EEMNERERIBD(Z
— J\ £ : 2,823,000 7T (4
RH A R #2,384,0007T)) 1%
B3 3 M R AE RIS AR R 2
1,522,000 st (HHE RO AR
#1,340,0007T) °

Bk 4

RIEER - EEFMEEZ
5t Zl '~ £ 15,700,00013 & 77 &
FEARAE o IBIR B ZEFM OB B AT
WAERERE  2HITERTE
i % # 1% & B % 1715,700,000
% B8 2 5 MR ) BB AN B AR
8 9)B% 157,000 JT (1 B 3%
TR AT - HHE R 41,223,000
) °

RZEVBKHREIEBH -
MEFMBEZTETAE
15,700,00017 & 17 {2 & A% % -
HERZBBEITEENME
B& 17 ) 493.02% o
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39. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 87 to 88 of the financial

statements.

(a)

(b)

Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures
Using Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective
articles of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China, appropriations from net profit, as determined in
accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (“PRC GAAP”) and after offsetting accumulated
losses from prior years, should be made to the statutory
reserve fund and the enterprise expansion fund, and before
profit distributions to the investors. The reserve fund can be
used to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.

Enterprise expansion fund

The enterprise expansion fund can be used for business
development or to increase capital. The percentages to be
appropriated to the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion
fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are determined by
the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-owned
subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated
to the reserve fund shall be no less than 10%. When the
cumulative reserve fund reaches one-half of the registered
capital, the appropriation is no longer mandatory.

39. #f&

AEBRAFERBAFEZ#HES
BRARESHHN Y B RERF7A
EFBBAZHAEREHRNA -

(@)

(b)

B B B YR E R R

REB(REARKMBFINGE
RECLERRAEBEFEK
EMBARINARER - Al
BRTBEARBEER(HE
ARG ) EERAN (K
HHEEFRFBERE kA&
B & Ik F A B OE TE
BESREXRBRES - L
BESARREERFTERX
EMER -

TERERES

TCEERESATANERHR
HIBMER - SNEREMER
ARENERHEESREEER
EeHASHLHEZEERE -
o - S EBE KB R BB A
BANBNECEXERES
MBENERBEESNENLA
THRI0% - REBES RG
EEIEMEA—FKE  TF
SR Il 7 A
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39. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options expire or be forfeited. As
at 31 December 2019, the forfeited share option as the
expiry of exercise period amounted to RMB16,924,000, which
transferred to retained profits.

Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to Notice regarding Safety Production Expenditure
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC in February 2012,
the Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus
reserve. The safety fund can only be transferred to retained
profits to offset safety related expenses as and when they
are incurred, including expenses related to safety protection
facilities and equipment improvement and maintenance as
well as safety production inspection, appraisal, consultation
and training.

39. EE(E)

(c)

(d)

BRERE

BREREREAERLEBRER
TEONBERENRATE £
SR BB RRME246 7
VA B 10 70 2 B B9 ST AN O & R B
B o RN BK NI EREE
THRESBRERMNDEER X
1t A5 A o 4 R B A8 MR
RSB EREEN R-_FT—
NEFT-A=+—H 17EH
B R R B E AR
16,924,0007T #% ¥ £ = (R B &
A o

REESBHBHE

R A% 7 B A 1B A Ko B 5 2 2 A
EEEEEZEEN_T——F
“HBMABRMGNEAR 2L E
EWEM  NEBARIRZE
ESBHFHE RE2ESRA
RELREBREREENNUE
HEZ2HBARY BRERRKR
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40.

41.

—hE+=ZA=+—H

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, Singyes New Materials was involved
in a product quality dispute arising from the ordinary course of
business where a customer initiated a proceeding against Singyes
New Materials to claim a compensation relating to the product
quality dispute. As a result of this lawsuit, cash at bank of Singyes
New Materials amounting to RMB12,518,000 has been set aside
and sealed by the court in the PRC. The Directors, based on the

advice from the Group’s legal counsel, believe that Singyes New

40.

HREE

—E-AF+ZA=+—H 8%
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%%ﬂ&$%J§m
Bl BREPHEXHMBIRER
A BERABEREEMNIELE
18 o AR ARE B EFMEAIRITH
& A R#12,518,0007T B # H B % B
i - REAKREZZBERNESR
EEHEREFVHITHZFLRIE

Materials has a valid defence against the lawsuit and, accordingly, HEDE At BREBEEER
have not provided for any loss arising from the litigation, other than AN - I £ BE A R EF EA T B B A R Rl B
the related legal costs. o
COMMITMENTS 41. EIE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the end @ REBEHR AEBBUTE
of the reporting period: AN A HE
2019 2018
—E-NEF T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Contracted, but not provided for: SHEREE S L
Construction of buildings and solar BREFR
photovoltaic power stations NG E I AN 127,403 134,257
Purchase of machinery R B k23 9,120 1,045
Capital contributions to be injected into M B & QA FEE
associates 4,500 12,000
Purchase of a patent BEEF - 14,400
Purchase of office properties BERAEME - 12,792
141,023 174,494
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41. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

41. EE ()

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December (b) R=B-NF+ZA=+-—
2018 B EEHERARE
The Group leased certain of its office premises and land from AEERBECEHEZHEEA
certain grantees of the land use rights under operating lease ETHMAEMERAESR T LM
arrangements. Leases for office premises were negotiated FREARABB LM - A
for terms ranging from one to five years, and those for land EMERERBERB LA =5
from certain grantees of the land use rights were for terms F - mBEE T T A EERR
of twenty-five years. ARz B ERP L =T
R o
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum RZZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H"
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling REERBERT S FH R B
due as follows: A HEEERENRRREE
HENTAENT :
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR T
Within one year —FR 3,447
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ZFRAF(BIEEERSE) 2,416
After five years hF % 5,773

11,636
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEFRZRE &k
BALANCES
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) BZEVEMEREMM S FL
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions RN AEBERFEFRNER T
with related parties during the year: HIEREEFTHRS -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Associates: R /NCT I
Construction services 2R 443,574 83,991
Operating leases KERE 917 =
Sales of products HEEm - 344,230
Rendering operation and RELERBEERS
maintenance service - 7,500
444,491 435,721
Interest from loans B3R F B - 1,276
The sales and construction services to associates were MEE R AAIREZIHERESE
provided according to the published prices and conditions RIS TIARETASEEZ R
offered to the major customers of the Group. ZEAMERRIEHBKE -
(b) Other transactions with related parties (b) EHBEIMNHEMRS

Details of bank and other loans guarantees provided at

31 December 2019 by related parties of the Group for nil

consideration are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

the Group’s bank and other loans of RMB706,690,000
were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB513,995,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Sun

Jinli, who was the former director of the Company;

R-F-NF+-A=1t—8"
AEEBETEERME ZRT
REMERERFENOT

i) AEEBZRTREME
A K #706,690,0007T
MBI R ERER:

(il AEEZRITERAR
#513,995,0007T H 2 4T
U RN EIRTE B 1R
SEEAEEREFR:
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the Group’s bank loans of RMB120,000,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei and Xie
Wen, who was the former director of the Company;

the Group’s bank loans of RMB414,494,000 were
guaranteed jointly by Messrs. Liu Hongwei, Sun Jinli
and Xie Wen;

the Group’s other loan with a
US$12,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB8&3,713,000) were guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei

and Strong Eagle; and

principal of

the Group’s bank
HK$198,825,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB178,103,000) were guaranteed jointly by Messrs.
Liu Hongwei and Sun Jinli.

loans with a principal of

42. REARRFREHR(E)

(b)

(&)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

AEBZRITERAR
#:120,000,0007T 1 %I 4T
MR E RARBI R EEH
A RER

AKREZERTERXAR
#414,494,0007T # 2 4T
mTE - ReRts R
XeEHRER:

NEEZ EMBERANSE
12,000,000 Jt (48 & %
#) A R %83,713,0007T)
M 2 4T # & & K Strong
Eagle 1R : &

REBEZRITERNETE
198,825,000/ Jt (1 &
»# A R #178,103,000
TREAEEERFES
BEEKRER o
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42.

BREBEARRAA

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEFRZRE&(E)
BALANCES (continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties HESIREZLR
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ T ARETF T
Due from associates: JiE Uk B & A )
Trade receivables Eﬁ”ﬂl%ﬂ%z
(note 25) ) §9E25> 36,391 272,054
Contract assets (note 24) BHEBE
(Bff 5E24) 142,474 19,356
178,865 291,410
Due to associates: NN
Contract liabilities EHAaE
(note 30) (Fft7£30) 11,411 -
Due to the immediate holding  F& {5 B £ % i% A A
company (note 29) (Fff 5£29) (i) 10,000 -
(i) The balance as at 31 December 2019 represented an (i) E—-NF+ZA=+—

interest-free loan granted by Shuifa Energy, which is repayable
on demand.

B2 BRI KB IRE T

BEREREZRBEER -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEFRZREH(E)
BALANCES (continued)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the d FTEEBFZEZEBEAENE
Group ()
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR F T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e ZMEREDNG
7,742 10,006
Pension scheme contributions RN FTEI R 198 200
7,940 10,206

BREZRITHAZNME 0 E
—FHBERP BRI ES -

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial

statements.
43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 43. TREEEE

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised AERZRIBANEEERSA

in their entirety BE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T AR F T

Gross amounts of assets that HERRANEER
continued to be recognised: [ERE

Discounted Bills AR R B (a) 39,370 -
Endorsed Bills BEZR (b) 26,959 8,293

66,329 8,293
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43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety (continued)

(@)

Discounted Bills

At 31 December 2019, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable (the “Discounted Bills”) with a total carrying
amount of RMB39,370,000 (2018: nil) to a local bank in
the PRC. The Discounted Bills have a maturity of four to
five months at 31 December 2019. In accordance with the
law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Discounted Bills have a right of resource against the Group
if the PRC banks default. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to the Discounted Bills, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the carrying amounts
of the Discounted Bills and the respective bank loans (the
carrying amounts of the Discounted Bills deduct the discount
interest). Subsequent to the discounting, the Group did
not retain any rights on the use of the Discounted Bills,
including sale, transfer or pledge of the Discounted Bills to
any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount of
the bank loans recognised due to the Discounted Bills was
RMB38,889,000 (2018: nil) as at 31 December 2019.

43. TRIEEER(E)

AEEZRUEBRIANCERSH
'EE(E)

(@)

HHEZE

RZE-—NEF+ZA=+—
B AEERKLEEEEARE
39,370,000t #) & T fiE I = &
(TMBEER] —T—\F: &)
BRI FHREEMET R=2F
—hE+-A=+—H B#RE
B HERANERMA -
BIEFBEEEE - R E AR
TERN MREBONFEAR
BRAAEEER - EERAE
REEERB A R b K& E
HREBEURERENRER)
BRI 4 45 e SR BL IR R 4R R AR B
WRTEXOERERIRE
BRREmE RN L) - AR
& AEEINEREBE AR
ZERMEMER - BEM TR
HthE=75HE - BRI
BEEE R_E-hA&Et+—
B=+—8 BRMEZEM
BEROBITEZNBREDEAR
AR #38,889,000t (==& —/\
FmE) o
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43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety (continued)

(b)

Endorsed Bills

At 31 December 2019, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC
(the “Endorsed Bills”) with a total carrying amount of
RMB26,959,000 (2018: RMBS8,293,000) to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to those
suppliers. The Endorsed Bills had a maturity of one to six
months at 31 December 2019. In accordance with the Law
of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse against the Group
if the PRC banks default. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to the Endorsed Bills,
and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group
did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills,
including sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to
any other third parties. The aggregate carrying amount
of the trade and other payables settled by the Endorsed
Bills during the year to which the suppliers have recourse
was RMB26,959,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
RMB8,293,000).

43. TRIEEHER(E)

ARZRIBANCERZESH

'EE(E)
b)) EEZEE

RZE-—NEFF+A=+—
B - AEEEHREETEH
RITEIHNAREDEARYE
26,959,0007C (— & — L4 : A
R #8,293,0007T) ) & T FE UL
ZER(BEEERNDEETET
HER  NEEEMNZSHE
HANENESRIE RN_F—
NE+ZA=+—1 BHEER
WEHEEA—ZREAR - R
BHREZEE MR EARTT
BH BEEZEBFEABER
AEBEER -EZRAB A&
BEEREBARHDDERRER(E
BEERRENRR) Bt
BREASEZBERAEEEE
ENESRENZHEERE -
BER AEEWERBER
EERBNEMEN  BER
FAEME=FHE  #EEk
BEREERE - FAAHER
FRRENEEZRAENE
SHREMENMRER=ZZ—N
F+-_A=+—HWEKREHE
B AR#E26,959,000C(—F—
J\E : AR #8,293,0007T) ©
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43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 43. T RMEEEZE(E)

(continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

As at 31 December 2019, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC, with a
carrying amount in aggregate of RMB10,840,000 (referred to as the
“Derecognised Bills”, 2018: RMB208,223,000). The Derecognised
Bills had a maturity from one to nine months at the end of
the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amount of the Derecognised Bills. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised
Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expense of
RMB2,067,000 (2018: RMB15,580,000) (note 6) on discounted
bills receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.

EXZRIBANCEREHE
E

—NWE+-_A=1+—8 &&
ERIEPEE THNERRTEINERR
B A R#10,840,0007T 1) & Uk 22 3%
(RIEEREZEE] —T—\F AR
#£208,223,0007T) ° M E B R « 42
tERZENIHER A — = AE
B BEHRBEZE L nPEMET
BA RIERRRBEREABERAE
SEER(FES2EH]) - EFRE
AEBEDREZREKL IERZERFHAO
BAIH R KB - ALt - NEE
ERIIBREIBERZERN 2 IR
HE AEEFBELHEKIBRRERE
REBZERIELERZENARR
Eﬁéhm?ﬁﬁunﬁ’] =LA Mﬁ»ﬁA/H\
FHEE -ZEZRA ASEFESH
RIFEREZEHNATFELTEK -

FR AEEERERIERZ RN
FEMAT ARE20670007 (=ZF —
N\ : AR#15,580,0007T) (i zE6) °
WEEAFE2EBMNE RN R ER
Ea Uzt BB -
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(1)

Major non-cash transactions

(a)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB4,901,000 and RMB1,296,000,

in respect of lease arrangements for plant, office

respectively,

premises, and prepaid land lease payments (2018: nil).

On 19 December 2019, the Group’s Offshore Notes
were exchanged for the 2022 Senior Notes with
an aggregate nominal value of US$414,932,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB2,905,559,000) at
par value.

During the year, The Group’s own-occupied properties
of RMB214,730,000 (2018: nil) and right-of-use assets
of RMB7,195,000 (2018: nil)
investment properties.

were transferred to

44. ZERERERMT

(1)

FTRFREXRS

(a)

FRAEERBE -
MAEMEREMNL
HERBENHE R R
EREEERMEERRE
MIERERE DR AA
R 4,901,000 & A R
#1,296,0007T (ZZ —N\
Fi|E)

RZEBE-NAE+ZATAN
B AEENBEEESRD
REABEBELRA-T -
FRAEE LHEHEAR
414,932,000 7T (F8E 7
# A B #2,905,559,000

JL) °

FAAEENERYE
A R #214,730,0007T (=
T-)N\FE)NERE
& E A R ¥7,195,0007T
(ZZ—N\F: &) K8 #
EREWE -
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 44. ffEB S RERME(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(2) Changes in liabilities arising from financing 2 MEIBELZEEEH
activities
Amount
Bank due to the
advances for intermediate
Bank and  discounted Lease  Convertible Senior Interest holding
other loans bills liabilities bonds notes payables company
BTk HERE AR
HER #HOEX HEAE TARES B%FE EFFE ARARE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AR®Tn ARETR AR®Tn ARETn ARETR
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=-A=+—H 2,956,804 - - 96,000 2,850,012 116,433 -
Effect of adoption of RABERETEREE
IFRS 16 EIESE:004 - - 10,722 - - - -
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-hF—-F—A8 2,956,804 - 10,722 96,000 2,850,012 116,433 -
Changes from financing BREBSRES
cash flows (83,110) 38,889 (3,382) (10,324) (312,719)  (229,040) 10,000
New leases HEE - - 1,296 - - - -
Termination &1k - - (702) - - - -
Issue expenses BIRY - - - - (83,137) - -
Interest payables 72 (157,368) (2,067) - (5332) (211,264) 376,031 -
Interest expense (note 6) F 2R (i :%6) 188,626 2,067 510 5,332 215,754 - -
Foreign exchange loss, net (B {18 %% 1,952 - - - - - -
Exchange realignment IE A% 5,405 - 13 - 46,069 - -
Other non-cash HittkBe 28>
movements® - - - (85,676) 310,420 (224,744) -
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+=A=t+—-A 2,912,309 38,889 8,457 - 2,815,135 38,680 10,000

*

Group’s Offshore Notes.

The Group issued the 2022 Senior Notes to exchange the

AREFBRT_E-—FE@/E
ZE NHBAREENEER
&% -
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(2)

(3

44, ZEBRER

BRIHFEGE)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (2) METHELEZEEEE
activities (continued) (%)
Bank
advances for
Bank and discounted Convertible Senior Interest
other loans bills bonds notes payables
RITK HREE
Hfth B RITER  ATRRES BRER A F 8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\§—A—H 2,704,110 13,722 80,819 2,916,526 82,986
Changes from financing cash flows REHSRED 160,229 (13,722) = (242,142) (338,874)
Interest payables RS, (134,412) (15,580) (4,800) (217,529) 372,321
Interest expense (note 6) 1.8 5 2 (K 556) 172,281 15,580 13,815 238,889 -
Acceleration of unwinding interest (note 6) A & & [ 7| & (K :£6) 24,043 - 6,166 3918 -
Foreign exchange loss, net BN EEFE 17,777 - - - -
Exchange realignment BN AR 12,776 = = 150,350 =
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-\E+ZRA=+—H 2,956,804 - 96,000 2,850,012 116,433
Changes in liabilities arising from financing ) BMEITHELZEELSH

activities

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

of cash flows is as follows:

AARSRERNEERESR
HAAEMT

2019

—E-NF

RMB’000

ARBTR

Within operating activities TR E N 6,316
Within financing activities MEEEA 3,382

9,698
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019

Financial assets

Financial assets at
fair value through

45 RERE TN ERMIA
ZEHEeRIARNREHRNKRE AN
I
Z—E-NF
THEE
Financial assets at
fair value through Financial
other comprehensive assets at

profit or loss income amortised cost Total
BRAFENE RATENE
BESHTABE BHSBHIAEML ZREBEALRHE
MEMEE 2EARBNEREE HEMEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥ TR AR¥ TR AR%TR
Equity investments designated EBERAFEFEEHES
at fair value through other FHAE fth 2 H I %5 K
comprehensive income EmiRE - 11,414 - 11,414
Trade and bills receivables W E 5 IE KRR & 32,349 - 3,104,115 3,136,464
Financial assets included in FAEMRE R Rk
prepayments, deposits and Hih g RIE 2
other receivables SREE - - 702,322 702,322
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFEAEZFHFA
through profit or loss B epiE 5,000 - - 5,000
Pledged deposits B FR - - 54,867 54,867
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBELEED - - 1,082,835 1,082,835
37,349 11,414 4,944,139 4,992,902
Financial liabilities cRAE

Financial liabilities at

amortised cost

REBSBRATE

Hemas

RMB’000

ARBFR

Trade and bills payables ENESHERENZE 1,438,054
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals  FFAEMEMNKER EFTRENSRES 186,133
Senior notes BEER 2,815,135
Bank advances for discounted bills MR ERBITER 38,889
Interest-bearing bank and other loans B B8R 1T R H At B K 2,912,309
Lease liabilities HEEE 8,457

7,398,977
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. Z ¥ 5Bl &
(continued) (&
2018 —T-N\F
Financial assets ERMEE

Financial assets at

THEMIA

Financial assets at fair fair value through
value through  other comprehensive  Financial assets at
profit or loss income amortised cost Total
BAFEFE BEAFEHNE
BEEHABE HBHEFHFTAEM REBHK A2
MEeMEE 2ERRNEREE MemEE FERy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTTT ARBTTT AREFTT
Equity investments designated TR AFEFEALHE
at fair value through other SPAEME2EKED
comprehensive income ERRE = 5,657 - 5,657
Trade and bills receivables N B 5T IE R W E & = 26,925 3,362,551 3,389,476
Financial assets included in SAEMNRE  ReR
prepayments, deposits and H i & R IE 2
other receivables TREE = - 527,435 527,435
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFEBEZEFA
through profit or loss BalMemEE 24,265 = - 24,265
Pledged deposits TR = = 180,590 180,590
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED = - 216,151 216,151
24,265 32,582 4,286,727 4,343,574
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
RERKAGTENS
MmEE
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Trade and bills payables BN ESHERENEE 901,520
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals ST E At FE 5 SR IB R FE AT IR
THEE 269,266
Convertible bonds AR 5 96,000
Senior notes BERE 2,850,012
Interest-bearing bank and other loans M S RITR EME R 2,956,804

7,073,602
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 46. €I TEMNAFERAYF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEER
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEESRTA (AR HARERE -
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably FEEHEAFEAGEBEEABKRIND
approximate to fair values due to short term to maturity, are as EEERAFEMT:
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AFE
2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-AE “EB-\F —B-hE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTE ARMTR ARBTRE ARETR

Financial asset LRMEE
Equity investments designated EERATEFEEESE

at fair value through other E)Et A E M 2 E W A

comprehensive income D& 11,414 5,657 11,414 5,657
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEAHEEHH

through profit or loss ABZHNEMEE 5,000 24,265 5,000 24,265

16,414 29,922 16,414 29,922

Financial liabilities TREHE
Convertible bonds A% (E 5 - 96,000 - 95,488
2018 USD Senior Notes —E-N\EEXTELEIER - 1,065,583 - N/A
2019 Senior Notes —E-NEEBEER - 1,784,429 - 990,360
2022 Senior Notes B _FERER 2,815,135 - 2,523,987 =
Non-current portion of interest- Mt 2 ERITE R R EME R

bearing bank and other loans: IETR BB D -

Bank loans RITEK 1,197,730 - 1,161,186 =

Other loans HihE® 339,890 = 296,228 —

4,352,755 2,946,012 3,981,401 1,085,848
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 46. €I TEMAFERAF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, short term pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and an amount due to the intermediate
holding company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on assumptions
that are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price-to-book (“P/B”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple is calculated
by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by
an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted for
considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between
the comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
to measure the fair value. The Directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and
the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

KREEENG RekBREeEEY -
REERER  BRESFIARER
2R EBNEIFEARENRERE &
ABNFRIE - R R EHAM R IRR
TREE  StARMMENFIARER
TN & R B ENA R EMPEERA
ARAEAEREERES  T2EAR
B TANIHERBRE -

TREERBENATERZARZS
ZEEMR S GRHHIFREERIN
Pz LA R ERIIE -

Ok REBR AR AT E:

BERAVFEAELAEZEHAAR
2B ERAFELTRARENR
FERBHSHERMGE  %HE
RMMERABEMSERI LTS
XFENBRR - HEEREERET
% RR - ER MR BEE AT LL LAY
EHRAR(RZE) XA 5 E R BB
AELBRRFEEENTFX (M
FER])  BABUELBRARNER
EBEBABNAEFERHR - ARR
BARRENSTEMNBRL - Z R
FERBUMAE L BRAR ZRHHRE
ZREZNFTHRFEBCETUI » B
REBUERR I ETRAKENIAE
BHNFENFTERFE EERS -
B BT E £ Wl 5t 2 FE(RRER
RAaMBRRNERAR) LR FEHRE
B(REENEtmEEEER)BAE
BERBFEMRANEEZ/EE °
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 46. €I TEMAFERAF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

HRRAFEFELEZEHTAEM
PHRSERAFFELTRARENRF
B BEEECHAERAEARENE
REEERBERENE ABNEE

2/ 4
% —

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has estimated
the potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives as
inputs to the valuation model.

Fair value hierarchy PEEER

TESHAAEEESH TANRFER

of the Group’s financial instruments: 25K

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

BAFEFABHEE

Assets measured at fair value:

Fair value measurement using

FERANTEEFELTFE
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EBTERE EATEERA EATTHEHEGA
(E=F) HE(E=E) HiE(E=E) 5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARETT ARETR
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZF-AF+=-A=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFEEHS
through profit or loss SIAEBENESREE - 5,000 - 5,000
Bills receivable Bk E & - 32,349 - 32,349
Equity investments designated EEEREATEFEAH
at fair value through other ZEALMEANE
comprehensive income MERKRE - - 11,414 11,414
- 37,349 11,414 48,763
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-—N\F+=ZA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value RATEEAHED
through profit or loss AABENERMEE - 24,265 - 24,265
Bills receivable A ES: = 26,925 = 26,925
Equity investments designated EERATENFEAE
at fair value through other AL MEERD
comprehensive income MERKE = = 5,657 5,657
= 51,190 5,657 56,847
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during
the year are as follows:

2019 2018
—®-nE  —EN\E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARET T

Equity investments at fair value through other & A F{E:t & B H & &)t

comprehensive income: A E b 2 U = R

fRAIE &

At 1 January ®n—H—H 5,657 12,966
Total losses recognised in other REMEE SR ER

comprehensive income B 18 4858 639 (7,915)
Purchases BE 5,000 -
Exchange realignment PE X 5 118 606
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—~H 11,414 5,657

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2018: nil).

The Group did not have any financial assets for which fair values
are disclosed as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: nil).
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

46. eMI AN A FERAYF
EER(E)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: HENFEHEE:
Fair value measurement using
EAUATEEGEATE
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERT S RE EARUBEEAAN EAFTTHERHA
(E5—18) HE(E=E) HE(E=E) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTR ARBFT AREBTR
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+=A=+—H
2022 Senior Notes T _FRBAER
(note 33(c)) (B 5£33(c)) 2,523,987 - - 2,523,987
Interest-bearing bank and other MERITREMER
loans, non-current portion RS - - 1,457,414 1,457,414
2,523,987 - 1,457,414 3,981,401
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\E+=A=+—H
Convertible bonds AR &S
— Liability component (note 32) - BfE M5 (M F32) - - 95,488 95,488
2019 Senior Notes “E-NEFEEEE
(note 33(b)) (B #£33(b)) 990,360 = = 990,360
990,360 = 95,488 1,085,848
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other loans, convertible bonds, senior notes and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and
bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade
and bills payables, other payables and accruals, and bank advances
for discounted bills, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank
and other loans are disclosed in note 31.

The Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and variable rate debts. At 31 December 2019, approximately
54.2% (2018: 75.9%) of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other loans bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit/loss before tax (through the impact
on floating rate loans).
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

47. BB EREEBNREE

AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
Interest rate risk (continued) F = = b (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit/loss
in basis points before tax
B2 B Bt AT = F
i, R ) O 2)
RMB’000
AR T T
2019 - _n&
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 2,688
Hong Kong dollar B TT (100) (2,688)
United States dollar ETT - -
United States dollar ETT - -
2018 —E-N\E
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 2,821
Hong Kong dollar B IT (100) (2,821)
United States dollar ETT 100 104
United States dollar =T (100) (104)
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47 MERBEEBNRBE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s principal businesses are located in Mainland China and
most of the transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for those of
the overseas subsidiaries which functional currencies are currencies
other than RMB and certain items of cash and cash equivalents
that are denominated in HK$, US$ and other currencies.

If RMB strengthens/weakens against HK$ as a reasonable possible
change of 5%, the loss before tax of the Group will increase/
decrease by approximately RMB82,189,000 (2018: the loss
before tax of the Group will increase/decrease by approximately
RMB13,697,000), due to changes in fair values of monetary
assets and liabilities. The Group does not consider that it has any
significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in the exchange rate
between US$ and RMB as a reasonable possible change of 5% in
RMB against US$ would have no significant financial impact on the
Group’s loss.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. B EABEEENRBE
AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
Credit risk FERRKR
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third AEEERERIRZEEEENE=S
parties and its associates. It is the Group’s policy that all customers FALTREBEARS o NEEBE KK
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification RE FIEREZEAKIRINER
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on BB ERARERER o o - B
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not TEHBEYEEER  MAEEMAT
significant. B AR B I A EE K e
Maximum exposure and year-end staging = A O % F K g E
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure TRERTR+TZA=+—HERK
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly EEEERR(EZEERBHER
based on past due information unless other information is available RIEHMENTEZTRBEERAKSEN
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification BATHANEEE=ZMEERR
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying mAME - A RFEREEDLE o Fr3l
amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk. SHATHEENFEBEATERE
EREBEA o
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hF+=-A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
T-BAEH
FEEB ZHEHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1REE FoMER HEIRE SR (973 @t
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETRT ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARET:R
Contract assets* AHBE" - - - 2,199,246 2,199,246
Trade receivables* YW E 5B - - - 3,706,413 3,706,413
Bills receivable EWR & 32,349 - - - 32,349
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATBAT A « E b U R
other receivables and other assets FEMEENSREE
- Normal** -E&*™ 601,237 - - - 601,237
— Doubtful** - g - 128,425 - - 128,425
Pledged deposits BREFH
— Not yet past due - ABH 54,867 - - - 54,867
Cash and cash equivalents BekHEEEY
- Not yet past due - K@ 1,082,835 - - - 1,082,835
1,771,288 128,425 - 5,905,659 7,805,372
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  47.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

N EREERNREE

7
==
=]
(#&)

FEmRE(E)

RA MO R F K (&)

RZZE—NFE+=ZA=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZAAEH
FEER 2HBREEEESR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1REER FEREE F3R R k@73 FoE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRL

ARETT ARBTT ARKTR

Contract assets* BNEE" = - - 2,255,001 2,255,001
Trade receivables* B E S HIE* = - - 3,590,244 3,590,244
Bills receivable EREE 26,925 - - - 26,925
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATERTFIE - H it el 0B
other receivables and other assets REMWEENGREE
- Normal** - EE* 439,892 - - = 439,892
~ Doubtful** - A& = 107,273 = = 107,273
Pledged deposits BEER
- Not yet past due -RBH 180,590 = = - 180,590
Cash and cash equivalents BekBHeEEY
- Not yet past due - KaH 216,151 - - - 216,151
863558 107273 - 5845245 6,816,706
& For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies * ARAEEGRERAEENE
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the WEBSHRBEBRAEHNEE  EREE
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 25 and 24 to the financial FERE B B Bl K BR A B 75 R T
statements, respectively. 25824 ©
G The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, i FTATEMNRIE HttEWRRE R H

other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when

they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the

financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

BHBEREEERACHEEDT
YATE R A SRS B R B L TH RS
BRIEE] B REENE
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47 MERBEEBNRBE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 8.00% and 27.88% of the Group’s
trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers, respectively. All of these customers
have good credit quality by taking into account of their credit
history, and a long-term business relationship has been established
between the customers and the Group. The Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and monitoring
procedures to ensure that there will be follow-up action to recover
overdue debts.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  47. ﬂjﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬁ HY & B SR

AND POLICIES (continued) (%8
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESRAM(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end REHR - EREFIHERIIRL
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted 3 AEEZzeRAERBHERD
payments, is as follows: i
Less than 3 to less than 1to Beyond
On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
ZEOR
RER JSR=EA +=A —ZRE REHNE @t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR AR%TR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR%TR

2019 —Z-NE
Convertible bonds* AR ER - - - - - -
Senior notes BEERE - - 58,472 3,345,617 - 3,404,089
Interest-bearing bank and Bt 2 3R 17 K E A B3R
other loans - 723,495 748,089 1,114,846 696,586 3,283,016
Trade and bills payables ERESREREMNERE 430,543 292,124 715,387 - - 1,438,054
Financial liabilities included in A E AR I R
other payables and accruals B ERANEHER 186,133 - - - - 186,133
Lease liabilities HEAE - 524 1,752 5,188 4,377 11,841
616,676 1,016,143 1,523,700 4,465,651 700,963 8,323,133
Less than 3 to less than 1to Beyond
On demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
ZELR
REX LR=@EA +=f@AR —ZRF AN LE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTE ARETTR ARETT AREBTE ARETT ARETR
2018 —E-)N\F
Convertible bonds* AR ES - 513 98,380 - - 98,893
Senior notes BEER 1,207,028 1,658,262 - = - 2,865,290
Interest-bearing bank and W2 R 1T R E f B K
other loans 106,567 220,344 1,128,725 1,172,192 851,205 3,479,033
Trade and bills payables BENESRBERENRE 227,233 113,835 560,452 = = 901,520
Financial liabilities included in B fth FE A RH R FE AT
other payables and accruals EAMNERARE 269,266 - - - - 269,266
1810,094 1,992,954 1787567 1172192 851,205 7,614,002
& Conversion rights of the convertible bonds are not included in the i AMREFNERETETA L
table above as they will be settled through issuance of own shares. * REAREBERZETEFRNG

maEHE -
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47 MERBEEBNRBE

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, and to provide an adequate return to
shareholders by pricing services and products commensurately with
the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt comprises trade and
bills payables, bank advances for discounted bills, interest-bearing
bank and other loans, lease liabilities, other payables and accruals,
senior notes and tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Adjusted capital includes the liability component of
convertible bonds and equity attributable to owners of the Company.

7
==
(=]
(#&)

EXREE

i

AEENEREREARRREAEH
RERENRE S ABHATES Rk
RIEHE R SE MM S HEE R
HAEA - 58 8 B R R /K FAR = AR
BRERNEERKRREHREHD
] o

AEERERLOIFTERNEHE - K
SEEEREEAGEBLRELEMN
U By I AR B A O R e o B 0 DA SR
B oRIHRIBEERERE K&
BRI HEEMRROKRE S - K
REEER  BHTHREIHEEEEMN
AR

AEBABERLREEER  ZHLE
REBEBHRABERINFES - F
EEBREENESREANENRE
BMARERITER - WERITREM
EX HERE  HtEMNRERE
AR BERERREMNRIE  BE
RekReEENRERETR - £H
BEANBRABRBREZRBERY A
NEIEBANEEES -



272

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

China Shuifa Singyes Energy Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 SRR MY &E

31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy

capital level in order to support its businesses. The principal

strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not limited to,

reviewing future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet debt

repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable

level of available banking facilities and adjusting investment plans

and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a

reasonable level of capital to support its business. The gearing ratios

(#8)

EXEE(E)

47. BB EREEBNREE

AEBNRBEEREERLXER
REOBEAKE UIHEER - K%
ERRNEEXRBRBEETRRE
B ARKIR SR E BRI 2 BB
BB - RIFATARITRE £ A FEK
FRAEREFENBEE(WFE
2) ABERAEEHEE SR KT
BAXFHERE - RESHROER

as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows: (529 INE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR T T
Trade and bills payables BB SHRIERENER 1,438,054 901,520
Bank advances for discounted bills BRI Z=E ZIRITE R 38,889 -
Interest-bearing bank and other loans Bt S8R 1T R B B K 2,912,309 2,956,804
Lease liabilities HE&E 8,457 -
Other payables and accruals E BN B K E R EIE 384,425 449,257
Senior notes BEER 2,815,135 2,850,012
Tax payable FE B 18 22,245 20,317
Less: cash and cash equivalents HBRERESEEY (1,082,835) (216,151)
Less: pledged deposits R R E (54,867) (180,590)
Net debt (A) FEE(A) 6,481,812 6,781,169
Convertible bonds, the liability component ABmRES  aEILH - 96,000
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR &) # G A fE(L #E % 3,928,666 3,590,891
Adjusted capital KA R 3,928,666 3,686,891
Capital and net debt (B) BEARRFERB) 10,410,478 10,468,060
Gearing ratio (A/B) 18 12t % (A/B) 62% 65%
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. FEHREE

Impact of the recent coronavirus situation

Up to the date of approval of the financial statements, management
has not been aware of any cases of COVID-19 infection among
the Group’s staff and the outbreak did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s operations. The Directors currently have an
appropriate response plan in place and will continue to monitor and
assess the ongoing development and respond accordingly.

Change of the Company name

Pursuant to the special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 6 February 2020, the name of the Company and the
dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company have been changed
from “China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited A B &2
¥ KBGEERMIZERAER AR to “China Shuifa Singyes Energy
Holdings Limited R EI/K B3 g8 R EE B R AR effective from
12 February 2020 pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation on
Change of Name and the Certificate of Secondary Name issued
by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. The Certificate of
Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on 30 March 2020 confirming the registration of the new names
of the Company in Hong Kong under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong).
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  49. 772 7] iy 81 & AR i &

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company RIMEHR - BEEAARRR IS AR
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RERWT:
2019 2018
—E-hE — N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment R /%& 14,813 17,027
Amounts due from subsidiaries A IENGIE- S 3,868,985 2,836,360
Investments in subsidiaries REBLARE 44,388 41,818
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RATFEFEAEEFHFAR
EHERMEE - 24,265
Equity investment designed at fair value through other ~ IR A FEF & B H &&=t
comprehensive income AEMZHABENERTE 6,029 5,272
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 3,934,215 2,924,742
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Pledged deposits BEEBER - 70,961
Cash and cash equivalents ReELREEEY 63,348 5,550
Total current assets REEELE 63,348 76,511
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H it FE A FRIE K& FEET R IE 23,738 114,395
Provision B - 79,512
Interest-bearing bank and other loans MERITREMER 129,415 187,073
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE {5 BT B 2 B 31 7R 9,093 9,420
Convertible bonds ARRES - 96,000
Senior notes BAEER - 2,850,012
Total current liabilities mEAERRE 162,246 3,336,412
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (98,898) (3,259,901)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAERADAR 3,835,317 (335,159)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other loans MERTREMER 132,402 -
Senior notes BEAER 2,815,135 -
Total non-current liabilities FnRBaERE 2,947,537 -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(afg) %A 887,780 (335,159)
EQUITY Ex
Issued capital BEITRA 174,333 55,785
Reserves (note) it s (P ) 713,447 (390,944)
Total equity/(deficit) B/ (RE) 8% 887,780 (335,159)
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. XA T MBI B iR R &k (&)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARWFEEHREZNOT
Fair value reserve of
financial assets at
Share  fair value through Share  Exchange
Premium other comprehensive  Contributed option  fluctuation ~ Accumulated
account income surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RATEHER
HEBHIALL
GEhENEH EXRD
R RER BEEERE HARHG BRERE e RHER @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\$-A-H 796,818 (3,701) 32,913 59,968 21,693 (900,341) 7,350
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 RMERIBREER
FOFHYE - 3,701 - - - (3,701) -
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§-A-BEJEH 796,818 - 32,913 59,968 21,693 (904,042) 7,350
Loss for the year AEEER = = = = = (364,746)  (364,746)
Change in fair value of equity instruments st~ R AT E: 8 AEZHA
fair value through other comprehensive Hi 2 EYErER TR
income, net of tax ATEES  NBEE = (7915) = = = = (7.915)
Other comprehensive income Hth2 AN R = = = = (13,115) = (13,115)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEZ2ARZLE = (7915) = = (13,115) (364,746)  (385,776)
Equity-settled share option arrangements R4 BB R EZ 5 = = = 8,398 = = 8,398
2017 final dividend declared BEER-S—tFRBRE = = (20,916) = = = (20,916)
At 31 December 2018 W=F-\F+-A=1+-A 796,818 (7,915) 11,997 68,366 8578  (1,268,788)  (390,944)
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-AF—F—H 796,818 (7,915) 11,997 68,366 8,578  (1,268,788)  (390,944)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - (160,175  (160,175)
Change in fair value of equity instruments at R AT E 8 AELHA
fair value through other comprehensive Ht 2 ANERERTAR
income, net of tax ATEZY NBEHE - 639 - - - - 639
Other comprehensive income 2 AN - - - - (13,936) - (13,936)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2EMEHE - 639 - - (13,936)  (160,175)  (173,472)
Issue of new shares BIHRS 1,274,617 - - - - 1,274,617
Transfer of share option reserve upon the ~ RNEREEREES
expiry of share options BRERE - - - (16,924) - 16,924 -
Equity-settled share option arrangements AL EBRERH - - - 3,246 - - 3,246
2018 final dividend declared BERZZ-\ERERE - - - - - - -

At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+ZA=t-H 2,071,435 (7,276) 11,997 54,688 (5,358) (1,412,039) 713,447
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31 December 2019 —E — N F+=ZA=+—H

49.

50.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are exercised, or
transferred to retained profits should the related options expire or
be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 28 April 2020.

49.

50.

ARB BB AR MR &R (E)

BREFERFBEEREERRTTERN
BRENATE &P RMBE
BERME2ABBARN BERH X
B ETBR o % RIA KA R H
BTSSR EER - i
A P S i Sk R U - IR = AR

i R o
R 1S R

BBRREN_Z_EFMA_+N\H
EEEoitERRET -
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